
MEETING: Health and Wellbeing Board
DATE: Tuesday, 30 January 2018
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

1  Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests  

2  Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 3rd October, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/2)  
(Pages 3 - 8)

3  Minutes from the Children and Young People's Trust Executive Group held on 
28th September and 13th November, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/3)  (Pages 9 - 20)

4  Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 14th September, and 27th 
November, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/4)  (Pages 21 - 38)

5  Minutes from the Provider Forum held on 13th September and 13th December, 
2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/5)  (Pages 39 - 48)

6  Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 15th August, and 
21st November, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/6)  (Pages 49 - 64)

7  Minutes from the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership held on 8th September, 13th October, 10th 
November, and 8th December, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/7)  (Pages 65 - 118)

8  Public Questions  (including review) (HWB.30.01.2018/8)  (Pages 119 - 122)

For Decision/Discussion

9  Barnsley Health and Care Together (HWB.30.01.2018/9)  (Pages 123 - 130)

10  Integrated Carers Service (HWB.30.01.2018/10)  (Pages 131 - 156)

11  Falls Prevention, Early Help and Frailty (HWB.30.01.2018/11)  (Pages 157 - 162)

12  Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (HWB.30.01.2018/12)  (Pages 163 - 216)

To: Chair and Members of Health and Wellbeing Board:-

Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE, Leader of the Council (Chair)
Dr Nick Balac, Chair, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice Chair)
Councillor Jim Andrews BEM, Deputy Leader
Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson – People (Safeguarding)
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson – Communities
Rachel Dickinson, Executive Director People
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities
Julia Burrows, Director of Public Health
Lesley Smith, Chief Officer, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group

Public Document Pack



Scott Green, Chief Superintendent, South Yorkshire Police
Emma Wilson, NHS England Area Team
Adrian England, HealthWatch Barnsley
Dr Richard Jenkins, Medical Director, Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Rob Webster, Chief Executive, SWYPFT
Helen Jaggar, Chief Executive Berneslai Homes

Please contact Peter Mirfin on  or email governance@barnsley.gov.uk

Monday, 22 January 2018



MEETING: Health and Wellbeing Board
DATE: Tuesday, 3 October 2017
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present 

Councillor Sir Stephen Houghton CBE, Leader of the Council (Chair)
Councillor Jim Andrews BEM, Deputy Leader
Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson - People (Safeguarding)
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson - Communities
Rachel Dickinson, Executive Director People
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities
Julia Burrows, Director Public Health
Scott Green, Chief Superintendent, South Yorkshire Police
Emma Wilson, NHS England Area Team
Tony Alcock, HealthWatch Barnsley
Helen Jaggar, Chief Executive, Berneslai Homes
Sean Rayner, District Director, South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust

24 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest.

25 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 8th August, 2017 (HWB.03.10.2017/2) 

The meeting considered the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th August, 
2017.

RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a true and correct record.

26 Minutes from the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw STP Collaborative 
Partnership Board held on 14th July, 2017 (HWB.03.10.2017/3) 

The meeting considered the minutes from the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw STP 
Collaborative Partnership Board held on 14th July, 2017.

RESOLVED that the minutes be received.

27 Public Questions (HWB.03.10.2017/4) 

The meeting noted that no public questions had been received for consideration at 
today’s meeting.

28 Performance Dashboard (HWB.03.10.2017/5) 

The meeting received a report on a proposed approach to tracking performance and 
progress against the priorities of the 2016-2020 Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  For 

Page 3

HWB.30.01.2018/2



2

each priority, this would give a performance data summary, identifying areas for 
improvement and areas of strength, together with a RAG rating for activities in 
relation to that priority that were making a difference (Green), were work in progress 
(Amber) or where further information was required (Red).  This was then linked to 
detailed performance data relevant to each priority.  

The Board welcomed the approach set out in the report and discussed key areas of 
concern arising from it.  In particular, the meeting welcomed the work of the Tobacco 
Alliance in encouraging the development of work place strategies across partner 
agencies to stop smoking.  The meeting noted the extent to which this priority, as 
with many others, needed to achieve behavioural change and the need to consider 
examples of success, particularly at the community level.  

The meeting discussed the need for greater clarity about mental health provision, 
with confusion about the roles of GPs, SWYPFT and the Hospital, which would 
benefit from information about the new operating model, particularly in relation to 
early help.   The meeting noted arrangements for a stakeholder workshop on mental 
health during November and the outcomes of this could be reported to the Board at a 
future meeting.

The meeting noted that there had been feedback to Councillors that access to GPs in 
many parts of the Borough remained a key area of concern for residents, preventing 
them from seeking treatment in a timely way and placing pressures on the NHS 
elsewhere.  The meeting noted that primary care in the Dearne had been the subject 
of a recent HealthWatch Survey.  This, and the most recent CCG survey of GP 
access, could provide the evidence base for further consideration of this issue by the 
Board.  However, there was a complex range of factors affecting the position that 
needed to be taken into account to best inform effective remedies if necessary and 
due to the absence of key members at the meeting this needed further consideration. 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the report be received and the proposed approach to tracking 
performance and progress against the Health and Wellbeing Board’s priorities 
be agreed;

(ii) that a further report be provided to the Board setting out the new operating 
model for mental health services in the Borough and identifying the key 
issues/actions arising from the stakeholder workshop to be held in November 
2017;

(iii) that Barnsley CCG submit a report to a future meeting of the Board on the 
position in relation to GP access in the Borough, including the range of factors 
affecting the position and proposed plans and actions seeking to address the 
situation; and

(iv) that a further report be submitted identifying the key features of activity, 
particularly at the community level, that had been successful in achieving 
behavioural change in relation to health issues.

29 Annual Report of the Barnsley Local Safeguarding Adults Board 
(HWB.03.10.2017/6) 

Page 4



3

The Independent Chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board, Bob Dyson, 
attended the meeting to present the annual report on its activities during 2016/17.  
The report highlighted achievements during the year and lessons learned, together 
with priorities and plans for the year to March 2018.

The meeting welcomed the independent review of the Board on the progress being 
made with adults safeguarding in Barnsley and welcomed the commitment of all 
partner agencies to work together to embed safeguarding in all their activities, 
particularly to support the work on early help.  The development of the adult 
safeguarding website was welcomed, particularly its simplicity and ease of navigation 
and the way that it linked to additional resources and support for those in need.

The meeting discussed the challenge of “making safeguarding personal”, which put 
the adult at the centre of all activity.  The need for effective tracking of provision, but 
with more measurement of outcomes rather than processes, was acknowledged.  
Bob Dyson commented that the service had undertaken a self-assessment on 
progress against the requirements for making safeguarding personal and he 
considered that the progress being made in Barnsley was as good as that being 
made elsewhere, with the service aware of the issues and making good progress.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the annual report of the Safeguarding Adults Board for 2016/17 be 
received;

(ii) that the progress being made on adult safeguarding in Barnsley as identified in 
the report be welcomed, particularly in respect of “making safeguarding 
personal”; and

(iii) that the contribution and commitment of all partners in Barnsley to adults 
safeguarding be welcomed.

30 Annual Report of the Barnsley Local Safeguarding Children Board 
(HWB.03.10.2017/7) 

The Independent Chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board, Bob Dyson, 
attended the meeting to present the annual report on its activities during 2016/17.  
The report highlighted achievements during the year and lessons learned, together 
with priorities and plans for the year to March 2018.

The meeting noted the more complex structure of the Children’s Safeguarding Board, 
compared to that for Adults, which was necessary given the complexity of children’s 
safeguarding issues.  The meeting noted the particular achievement in developing 
the new neglect strategy, given this was the first early warning of safeguarding 
concerns, and the development of operational guidance and tools in this area. 

The meeting noted the proposals for a stocktake in November to consider the 
requirements of the new Ofsted framework that would come into force from January 
2018.  The more supportive focus of the new framework was welcomed, with work in 
hand to prepare for any possible inspection during 2018.

Page 5



4

The meeting noted how the report demonstrated the Board’s approach to continual 
learning and achieving a cultural shift among partners, particularly to support service 
audits.  The meeting noted the success of Safeguarding Awareness Week during 
July, with young people relating their experience of safeguarding and a conference to 
consider the links between mental health, substance misuse and domestic abuse in 
relation to children’s safeguarding.  The meeting noted that the South Yorkshire 
Police and Crime Commissioner had attended the conference and was keen to 
support proposals for a safeguarding week coordinated across South Yorkshire in 
2018.

The meeting noted the importance of developing the stronger resilient communities 
aspect of children’s safeguarding, focusing beyond processes and workforce 
development within agencies.  The importance of helping communities to identify the 
signs of neglect and how to report it was acknowledged.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the annual report of the Safeguarding Children’s Board for 2016/17 be 
received;

(ii) that the success of Safeguarding Awareness Week during 2017 be noted and 
the plans to coordinate this across South Yorkshire in 2018 be welcomed; and

(iii) that the importance of developing community approaches to children’s 
safeguarding be acknowledged.

31 Better Care Fund (BCF) (HWB.03.10.2017/8) 

The meeting received a report giving an update on the contents of the Integration 
and Better Care Fund Plan for 2017/18 to 2018/19, which had been submitted on the 
11th September, 2017 following consideration at an earlier draft by the Board in 
August 2017.  The Plan was now subject to review as part of a regional assurance 
process and further refinements to the Plan may be required as a result, with the 
revised Plan to be re-submitted by 31st October, 2017.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the current Integration and Better Care Fund Plan for 2017/18 to 2018/19, 
as set out in the report, be received and endorsed; and

(ii) that the arrangements for review and revision of the Plan be noted and the 
Chair of the Board and the Accountable Officer of Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group be authorised to sign off the Plan for submission on 
behalf of the Board.

32 Local Digital Road Map (HWB.03.10.2017/9) 

The meeting received a report on the development of the Barnsley Local Digital Road 
Map Plan, the progress in moving forward the digital agenda for health and social 
care in Barnsley and seeking approval to take forward an integrated shared care 
record solution.

Page 6



5

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the progress on developing Barnsley’s Local Digital Road Map Plan as set 
out in the report be noted; and

(ii) that the early plan for an integrated shared record system be progressed as 
described in the report and further reports be submitted for Board 
consideration as required in due course.

33 CLeaR Peer Assessment (HWB.03.10.2017/10) 

The meeting received a report on the conclusions of the CLeaR Peer Assessment of 
Tobacco Control following the visit to Barnsley in July 2017, noting significant 
progress compared to the previous assessment in 2013.  The main area for 
improvement was in relation to the commissioning of smoking cessation activity, 
which was being addressed, with the assessment team particularly impressed with 
Barnsley’s approach to the enforcement of the ban on smoking in cars with children, 
where Barnsley was the only authority to undertake this activity.

RESOLVED that the outcome of the CLeaR Peer Assessment into Tobacco Control 
be welcomed.

34 CQC Local System Reviews (HWB.03.10.2017/11) 

The meeting received a report on the introduction of targeted Care Quality 
Commission Local System Reviews, focused particularly on the interface between 
health and social care.  It was not anticipated that such a review would be 
undertaken in Barnsley, but the conclusions/recommendations of any reviews in 
other areas would be analysed in order that appropriate lessons could be learnt.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Present 
 
Core Members: 
Rachel Dickinson,  BMBC Executive Director: People (Chair) 
Cllr Margaret Bruff Cabinet Member: People (Safeguarding) 
Margaret Libreri  BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start & Prevention 
Alicia Marcroft BMBC Head of Public Health, Children and Young People 
Margaret Gostelow Barnsley Governors Association Chair 
Bob Dyson Independent Chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
Phil Briscoe Barnsley College Vice Principal Quality and Student Experience 
Gerry Foster-Wilson Executive Headteacher representing Primary Schools 
Scott Green South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent 
Phil Hollingsworth Stronger Barnsley Locality Manager  
Lisa Phelan  Voluntary Action Barnsley (replacing Christine Drabble) 
 
 
Deputy Members: 
Jill Murphy BHNFT Matron Women’s Services (for Kevin Bowman) 
Kathryn Campbell South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) (for 

Sean Rayner/Dave Ramsay)  
Angela Fawcett Deputy for Brigid Reid 
Cllr Roya Pourali Deputy to Cllr Tim Cheetham 
  
Advisor: 
Richard Lynch BMBC Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships 
 
In Attendance: 
Dawn Fitzpatrick Partnerships & Project Officer  
Julie Dickinson Project Officer, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding 
Amy Booth  Health & Wellbeing Officer, Education & Early Start Prevention 
Nick Ward  Barnsley Chronicle 
 

  Action 

1. Apologies 
The following apologies were noted: 
Brigid Reid    Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse 
Cllr Tim Cheetham   Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential) 
Dave Whitaker Executive Headteacher representing Secondary Schools 
Kevin Bowman  BHNFT, Head of Nursing and Midwifery 
Dave Ramsay South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust 

(SWYPFT) Deputy Director of Operations 
Sean Rayner South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust 

(SWYPFT) District Director 
Mel John-Ross BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care & 

Safeguarding 
Monica Green  BMBC, Head of Safeguarding & Quality Assurance, 
   Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding 

 

Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group Meeting 
28 September, from 2pm to 5pm 

Westgate Plaza Boardroom, Level 3, Room 3 

Page 9

HWB.30.01.2018/3



2 

 

  Action 

 
Amanda Glew  BMBC Organisation Development Manager 
Anna Turner  BMBC School Models and Governor Development 

Manager 
Jamie McInnes Barnsley Local Medical Committee 
Lorna Lewis  Healthwatch 
Emma Baines Barnsley MBC Youth Council, Youth Voice and 

Participation Operations Manager 
Jayne Hellowell BMBC Head of Commissioning & Healthier Communities 
Jess Leech Assistant Principal Students Barnsley College  
 
Nick Bowen to replace Dave Whittaker.  
 
Rachel thanked everyone for attending due to the change in the date and time.  
 

2. Feedback from the front line  
At this point in the meeting colleagues were given an opportunity to share 
examples of good practice or challenges on the front line. 
 
Scott shared a current issue, around a particular case that had been escalated 
and which resulted in challenging the decision which had been reached. This 
has helped create a reflective circle, with Mel and Scott subsequently agreeing 
to carry out a further audit of cases. Rachel affirmed that it is really 
encouraging to see the culture of partners respectfully challenging each other 
and their decisions and the reflective practice emerging.  
 

 

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflict of interest  
It was noted that there is a restriction on items 6, 10 and 13 of the minutes and 
these are to be treated as confidential. All confidential items were deferred to 
the end of the meeting. Press and members of the public were excluded prior 
to discussion of confidential items. 

There were no conflicts of interest declared.   

 
 

4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 21 July 2017  
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record with 
the following amendment. Jill Murray should read Jill Murphy.  

 

4.1 Action log / matters arising 
The following updates were noted:  
Actions from 28 April 2017  

 Items 5 & 6 completed. 
 
Actions from 9 June 2017  

 All completed. 
  
Actions from 21 July 2017  

 Items 5i, ii, iii.  Still outstanding to be followed up with Amanda Glew.  

 Item 6i.  Completed. Jill has been in touch with Katherine Green. 
 Town Centre based is pivotal. Meeting is in place.   

 Item 6ii.  Completed. 

 Item 7.  Completed. Annual report has been to Scrutiny and SSDG 
 and was well received; it will go to HWB next week.  

 Item 8  Ongoing. Issues have been discussed and will notify TEG 
 when completed.  

 
 

 
 

Dawn 

Page 10



3 

 

  Action 

 Item 10i.  To be followed up. 

 Item 10ii.  Completed. 

 Item 11.  Completed  
 

For discussion 

5. Work of the Alliance Board (Margaret Libreri) 
 
Margaret updated the member’s on the action plan for the Barnsley Schools’ 
Alliance and briefly outlined the objectives around attainment and 
achievement, leadership capacity and narrowing the gap informing the 
members of ongoing visits to schools by LLE/SEO to provide rigorous 
monitoring of school performance and improvement.  
 
Margaret was thanked for the report.  
 

 

6. Barnsley Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (BMASH) Information Sharing 
Agreement.   CONFIDENTIAL  
(Monica Green/Julie Dickinson). 
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

7. Tackling Child Poverty and Improving Family Life (Key area for Improvement: 
Early Help) (Andrea Hoyland / Jayne Hellowell).  
 
Andrea was welcomed to provide a brief update on the activity of the Anti-
Poverty Delivery Group (APDG).  
The new plan is arranged into four themes: Performance and Workforce 
Development, Food Access, Financial Inclusion and Welfare Reform. There 
are 3 groups; Tackling Child Poverty, Early Help Children and Early Help 
Adults, targeting areas identified with the most poverty in the borough. The 
action plan is not fully populated; key works are currently taking place.  
 
Food Access  
Holiday Hunger funding was successfully sourced via Feeding Britain; this is 
being distributed via Area Councils to support activities targeting communities 
most in need. Feeding Barnsley Pilot agreed.  
Concerns were raised around sustainability. More awareness is required so 
that the purpose can be understood. It was noted that work is taking place 
along with Public Health. 
Impact of universal credit programme was discussed. A further discussion took 
place around how primary schools can refer identified families to access 
support, particularly through food banks.  
It was agreed that information would be distributed to Schools 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Andrea 

8. Supporting Children, Young People and Families to make healthy lifestyles.  
(Alicia Marcroft/Amy Booth).  
 
The report was presented and welcomed by members. A brief overview and 
update of the public health work that has taken place over the last year 
particularly around four key areas: oral health, healthy weight, smoking in 
young people and 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service – delivery of the Healthy 
Child Programme. The next steps include refreshing the action plan.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



4 

 

  Action 

Updates were given on tackling obesity and the evidence around breastfeeding 
which may play a role including protection against overweight and obesity in 
children which is being promoted to new mums through the Infant Feeding 
Team. Barnsley Primary Schools are signed up the School Fruit and Vegetable 
Scheme. 27 Primary Schools are delivering the Daily Mile and 12 more 
schools are preparing to start delivering the programme. Various funding bids 
have been applied for to help increase the number of opportunities for families 
and children to undertake sporting activities.   
 
Smoking in young people update was presented and the vision of the 
Smokefree Barnsley Tobacco Alliance. Indications show some success around 
changing culture and attitudes towards smoking.  
 
0-19 Public Health Nursing Service.  
Following successful transition to the Council, service re-modelling is 
continuing. The Healthy Child Programme is to be used as a framework to 
develop pathways.  
 
It was acknowledged and welcomed that there is good work being carried out 
in the Borough.  
 
Members were asked to support & promote the recommendations listed in the 
report.  
 
Amy and Alicia were thanked for the report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TEG 
members 

Standard agenda items 

9. Teenage Pregnancy (Amy Booth)  

The presentation was welcomed by members. The presentation outlined where 
Barnsley is in terms of benchmarking against regional and national under 18 
conception rate, where it needs to be and what needs to be achieved to reduce 
the teenage pregnancy rate.  A discussion took place around the various 
reasons for teenage pregnancy and the data available. It was noted that whilst 
comparative data is still high a lot of progress has been made. Targeted work 
and various work initiatives that have been undertaken were discussed, as well 
as the need to focus on changing culture to raise aspirations and choices 
available to young people. Evidence implies that implementation of the 10 
factors highlighted using a multi-agency approach would help to narrow the 
gap in teenage pregnancy rates.  

TEG approved the recommendation to establish a working group to progress 
the work, to escalate issues as necessary and to report progress to future 
meetings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amy 
Booth 

10. Sufficiency Strategy for Special Educational Need Provision (SEND) 
CONFIDENTIAL (Richard Lynch/Margaret Libreri) 
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
  

 

11. Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board Meeting held on 15th September 2017 
– Highlights. (Bob Dyson) 
  
Bob Dyson updated members, noting that 10 cases were chosen at random on 
neglect for the audit. 4 of the cases will be audited again via the Neglect Sub 
Committee.  

 

Page 12



5 

 

  Action 

 
The impact report on LAC placed from other services in Barnsley was briefly 
discussed.  
 
It was noted that there had been a 100% police attendance at the sub groups.  
 
It was observed that the Neglect audit had been really helpful in widening 
learning. This could be added to a future TEG agenda.  
 

12. Children and Young People’s Plan Monitoring.   (Richard Lynch) 
 
Richard informed members that a review of the CYP Plan is planned. Progress 
has been made and this needs to be reflected and updated. It will focus on 6 
key strategic priorities, aligned against 3 critical areas:   

 Improving Behaviour and Attendance.  

 Access to Therapy Services  

 Improving Early Help.  
 
The strategic theme leads will be providing updates towards action plan in next 
few weeks.  
 
It was noted that partners were supportive of the review.  
 
Rachel informed members with regards to the Joint TEG/BSCB annual event.  
Bob and Rachel will be meeting to draw up the agenda for the day. Members 
were reminded that young people will be there and asked members for 
contributions to the agenda. None were provided at the meeting, if any 
member has any items they would like to add to contact Rachel or Bob.  
 
A brief discussion took place with regards to the last event and how the 
shadowing aspect had been positive and worked well.    
It was suggested to have others involved not just LAC to see a different 
perspective.  
 
It was emphasised that there is a commitment to do this and to ensure right 
levels of engagement are attained.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TEG 
members 

13 Continuous Service Improvement Plan Monitoring CONFIDENTIAL  
(Mel John-Ross/Julie Govan)  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

14 TEG Programme of Work Review 
(Richard Lynch) 
All items scheduled for today are on the agenda, no other comments were 
received. 
 

 

15 Stronger Communities Partnership Update  
(Phil Hollingsworth)  
 
The progress update report was welcomed and shared with members.   
The report has been produced with recommendations to ensure they remain fit 
for purpose and can deliver against the joint strategic priorities set out in the All 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



6 

 

  Action 

Age Early Help Strategy (2017-2020).  
 
A task and finish group has been established, the first of which will be held in 
September 2017 and will meet bi-weekly to progress all the recommendations 
outlined in the Development Session Key Findings Report. Full governance 
review to be undertaken, split into 3 groups: anti-poverty, Adult, Children. 
 
It was highlighted that the performance framework is important to ensure 
delivery plans are in place as well as supporting partnership. Workforce 
development will help stripping out duplication.  
 
A further report will be submitted to the Stronger Communities Partnership in 
November 2017 to outline proposals from the findings and recommendations 
from the Development session.   
 
Members thanked Phil for the good work and would look forward to the report 
in November.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phil 

16 Kendray Art Work. (Katherine Campbell) 
 
Katherine briefed members with regard to a recent event whereby a non-
punitive approach was taken to young people engaged in nuisance behaviour 
around Kendray Hospital - the resulting art work created is being displayed in 
the canteen facility.  
 
Katherine updated members on the broader work of Creative Minds, which is 
the voluntary section of the Trust. This includes working with the public and 
engaging local community around the Kendray Hospital.  
 
This was very well received and members noted that it is good to see different 
approaches available for young people.  
 

 

Proposed agenda items for the next meeting on 13 November 2017 
Agenda items agreed. 
 

Dates of future 2018 meetings agreed.  
 

 
Dates of  future meetings in 2017      Time Venue 

   

13 November 13.30 – 16.30 Westgate Plaza Level 3, Room 3 

   

 

Page 14



1

  

Present

Core Members:
Brigid Reid    (Chair) Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse
Cllr Margaret Bruff Cabinet Member: People (Safeguarding)
Margaret Gostelow Barnsley Governors Association
Alicia Marcroft BMBC Head of Public Health, Children and Young People
Margaret Libreri BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start and Prevention
Gill Doy Healthwatch Barnsley, Signposting, Intelligence and 

Communications Officer
Phil Briscoe Barnsley College Vice-Principal Quality and Student Experience
Phil Hollingsworth BMBC Service Director, Stronger Safer and Healthier Communities
Gerry Foster-Wilson Executive Headteacher representing Primary Schools
Dr Jamie McInnes Barnsley Local Medical Committee

Deputy Members:
Cllr Roya Pourali for Cllr Tim Cheetham, Cabinet Member – People (Achieving 

Potential)
Kathryn Campbell SWYPFT, for Dave Ramsey, Director of Operations
Sandra Newman BHNFT, for Kevin Bowman, Head of Nursing and Midwifery
Sarah Poolman South Yorkshire Police, for Scott Green, Chief Superintendent

Advisor:
Richard Lynch BMBC Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships
Anna Turner BMBC Schools Models and Governor Development Manager

In Attendance:
Lisa Loach (observer) BMBC Improvement Programme Manager
Lisa Phelan Voluntary Action Barnsley
Tom Smith BMBC Head of Employment and Skills, Economic Generation 

(for item 6)
David Benbow BMBC Young People’s Skills Enterprise Strategy and Service 

Manager, Economic Generation (for item 6)
Angela Lomax BMBC Raising Participation Service Manager (for item 6)
Mark Anderson BMBC Transportation Officer (for item 5)
Denise Brown BMBC Governor Services Advisor (Minutes)

Action
1. Apologies

The following apologies were received:
Rachel Dickinson BMBC Executive Director, People
Cllr Tim Cheetham Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential)
Bob Dyson Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board
Amanda Glew BMBC Organisation Development Manager
Mel John-Ross BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care and 

Safeguarding
Jayne Hellowell BMBC, Head of Locality Commissioning and Healthier 

Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group Meeting
13 November 2017, from 13.30 – 16.30

Westgate Plaza Boardroom, Level 3, Room 3

Page 15



2

Action
Communities

Dave Ramsay South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust 
(SWYPFT) Deputy Director of Operations

Dave Whitaker Executive Headteacher representing BACCUS and 
Secondary Schools

Wendy Lowder BMBC Executive Director Communities
Kevin Bowman BHNFT, Head of Nursing and Midwifery
Scott Green South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent
Dawn Fitzpatrick Partnerships and Project Officer

2. Feedback from the front line 
Colleagues shared the following feedback from the front line:

Thrive approach in schools
Alicia highlighted the good practice and participation taking place in relation to 
Thrive in Primary schools. Presentations from two Primary Headteachers had 
demonstrated the real impact that the Thrive approach is making, not only on 
the young people but on the staff as well.  Brigid added that discussions are 
taking place regarding how the principles of Thrive could be utilised in 
Secondary schools, particularly in the transition year, and that this will be an 
area of focus for the next six months.  

Dreamflight/ End of life care
Sandra stated that an article will appear in the Barnsley Chronicle regarding 
children from the community, who are undergoing palliative or end of life care, 
going to Florida through the UK Charity, Dreamflight. 

Brigid added that there had been a freedom of information request about what 
specialist care was available to children and young people at end of life, and 
reassured partners that Children and Young People and their families in 
Barnsley are well supported by Bluebell Wood, Children’s Hospice. 

Greenacre School Parents Council
Sandra added that successful links had been made between Greenacre 
School Parents Council and the Children’s Outreach Team.  Parent surveys 
regarding care services and pathways, and meeting the needs of young people 
at Greenacre School, can be put onto the website.  Sandra agreed to let 
Margaret Libreri know if anything was being made available to parents of 
young people at Greenacre School. 

Future Directions Team 
Margaret Bruff shared that it had been good to see the Future Directions Team 
in action, including the resultant progress and improved confidence of an 
asylum seeker who had returned to Barnsley after having been in London.  
The young person was scheduled to represent Barnsley at a regional event, 
together with a social worker. 

Sandra

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflicts of interest 
It was noted that items 4, 7, 8 and 10 should be treated as confidential.  There 
were no conflicts of interest declared.  

4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 28 September 2017 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record.

Page 16



3

Action
4.1 Action log / matters arising - CONFIDENTIAL

The following updates to the action log were noted: 

Actions from 21 July 2017: It was explained that Amanda had needed to take 
emergency leave, and any outstanding actions would be followed up by 
Richard. 

Item 10(i) – CSI Plan. This action had been completed.

Actions from 28 September 2017:
Item 10(iii) – Case studies. This action had not yet been progressed but would 
be dealt with by Margaret Libreri as part of the SEND Building Capacity work. 

Richard

Margaret 
Libreri

For discussion
5. Transport 

Mark Anderson attended for this item.

The report provided a progress update in relation to transport issues and the 
following points were highlighted:
 The Steering Group, providing strategic direction for the Barnsley Bus 

Partnership, was scheduled to hold their first meeting on 16-11-2017.
 A public consultation on The Sheffield City Region Transport Strategy will 

start in November, running for 12 weeks.
 The Youth Users Group is well attended.  
 A new 16-18 Travel Pass was introduced on 1 July 2017, replacing the 

previous student pass and providing all 16-18 year olds in South Yorkshire 
with cheaper travel anytime, anywhere in South Yorkshire on bus or tram. 
The cost of the ticket is 80p, and is valid throughout the summer.  The 
ticket also includes half fare on Northern trains.  

 A new marketing campaign started in November to ensure that young 
people are aware of what travel passes are available to them, using a 
mixture of digital and printed media, and including advertising links via 
websites.  It was noted that the future of advertising is on-line, making it 
cheaper and more environmentally friendly. 

 There are continuing concerns regarding anti-social behaviour on busses 
and in the Barnsley Interchange.  South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 
Executive (SYPTE) is working with South Yorkshire Police and the Council 
to try to reduce these incidents. 

 Barnsley Interchange had received a national award for initiatives taken to 
improve the safety of public using the Interchange.  Initiatives include 
employees wearing body cameras, and busses being equipped with audio 
and CCTV. No updates on the impact of these initiatives are available at 
this stage. Meetings had been held with schools to explain what action 
would be taken against any pupils found to be committing acts of anti-
social behaviour.  

 It is hoped that the plans for Barnsley town centre ‘Better Barnsley’ will 
provide more places for young people to go, and improve the situation.  
However, this will need to be closely monitored and a zero tolerance for 
anti-social behaviour enforced. 

Mark agreed to send Richard any updates/ information that could be provided 
to the young people attending the joint TEG and BSCB meeting to be held on 
24 November 2017. 

Mark

Page 17



4

Action
Mark left the meeting at this point. 

6. Careers, Advice and Guidance  
Tom Smith, David Benbow and Angela Lomax joined the meeting for this item. 

During the attached presentation on Careers Education, Information, Advice 
and Guidance (CEIAG), the following points were highlighted:
 Statutory Requirements: 

 Schools to provide IAG for all students from the age of 14;
 Post 16 providers to promote good attendance and provide IAG for all 

learners;
 LA’s to promote the Raising of the Participation Age and provide IAG 

for all vulnerable learners;
 All young people to continue in accredited education or training until 

they reach 18 years of age. 

 The LA’s Raising Participation Strategy supports schools and providers to 
fulfil their statutory duties through ‘I Know I Can’; ‘Pathways to Success’ 
and ‘More and Better Jobs’. 

 Young people are being encouraged to become self-employed and 
business start-up opportunities are being offered to them. 

 Work readiness is being promoted by working with local businesses to 
identify what skills young people need to gain employment.

 Employers have identified the top 10 competencies required by young 
people to secure, and remain in, employment. Work is taking place with 25 
employers who are committed to the employers promise.  It was hoped 
that in future this promise could be built into the Procurement Strategy.

 Enterprise Advisors volunteer to work directly with a school’s leadership 
team to develop effective employer engagement plans, working with local 
businesses to equip young people with the skills they need.  Phil 
Hollingsworth is an Enterprise Advisor for Greenacre School, a role which 
he has found to be very rewarding, and encouraged other members to 
become involved in this programme. 

 David stated that ‘take over’ day has grown each year with 50 places now 
confirmed. Some of the young people taking part will be attending the joint 
TEG/ BSCB meeting on 24 November 2017. The young people who had 
attended this event last year had made a powerful impact and a valuable 
contribution. There has been a slightly different approach this time, and 
young people have been matched up to real life aspirational opportunities, 
linked to potential career pathways. 

Brigid thanked Tom, David and Angela for the comprehensive overview of this 
work, which also highlights the Council’s corporate role towards care leavers.

The following questions were asked:

Q: What can TEG partners do to improve take-up from employers?  
Tom responded that it would be helpful if employers in Barnsley could be 
encouraged to consider agreeing to the employer’s promise. 

Over 90% of employers in Barnsley are micro or small and medium sized 
businesses, and the employers promise has been designed with that in mind. 

Page 18



5

Action
Q: Cllr Bruff asked how effective the arrangements are for vulnerable 
groups, including children in care, those with SEND and young 
offenders, and what TEG partners could do in relation to improving 
outcomes for those groups of young people?  
Tom responded that a lot had been done over the last 12 months in terms of 
SEND young people, to support internships and using the apprenticeship 
programme.  Supported internships is a key outcome for SEND learners, 
providing work placements to develop their job skills, however, there is more 
that can be done to sustain employment. An independent Group has been 
created to support internships across the Borough, and the more places that 
can be offered the better.   

Young people at risk of entering the criminal justice system are provided with 
opportunities to raise their aspirations through work experience and 
employment, however, more could be done to create suitable opportunities. 
David added that an integrated approach is important and a willingness to work 
together.  More needs to be done to bring services together. 

Angela explained that there is a Participation Panel for those young people 
who are struggling to get into Education, Employment or Training (EET).  

Q: Cllr Pourali asked how the data is monitored?  
Angela replied that monthly reports are provided to the Department for 
Education, including information on young offenders. Angela stated that home 
visits are conducted to young people who are identified as NEET, as well as 
operating out of the Better Barnsley Shop. Cllr Pourali stated that she would 
welcome evidence of what is being done and the impact being made.  Angela 
stated that this information will be offered to Area Councils. Anna also 
suggested that case studies be shared. 

Q: Cllr Bruff asked whether enough was being done to ensure that young 
carers are not being disadvantaged or held back due to their caring 
responsibilities? 
Angela responded that young carers are contacted at least once a month.  It 
was acknowledged that sometimes being a young carer is a choice, but it is 
also important that they are encouraged to have future aspirations.

Standard agenda items
7. Continuous Service Improvement Plan – CONFIDENTIAL 

This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes.

8. Sufficiency Strategy for SEND – CONFIDENTIAL

 This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes.

10. Terms of Reference/ Partnership Agreement – CONFIDENTIAL 

This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes.

Page 19



6

Action
11. Review of Children and Young People’s Plan

Richard pointed out that the key actions relating to the six strategic priorities for 
2016-19, how they will be achieved and what difference is being made, needs 
to be updated, together with confirming or identifying TEG champions. 

It was noted that:
 TEG Champions do not have sole responsibility for the area that they are 

assigned to, and it was suggested that the role of TEG Champions be 
clarified. 

 Key priorities have not changed, but the detail of the work needs to be 
updated and summarised. 

 There are a number of cross cutting themes, including SEND. Other cross 
cutting themes need to be identified in the work programme. 

 The action plan needs to include the high level strategic areas of work to 
be focused upon, with the detail appearing in the work programme. 

The following comments / amendments to the action plan were noted:
 The TEG champion for ‘Supporting all children, young people and families 

to make healthy lifestyle choices’ is now Alicia Marcroft.
 Key ambitions to include Teenage Pregnancy.

Brigid suggested that there be focused discussions on a certain aspect of the 
work, looking at both the TEG work programme and the CSI Plan. 

Following the discussion it was agreed that:
 Richard would amend the action plan for presentation at the next meeting, 

including matching key ambitions with the work programme and clarifying 
the role of the TEG Champion.

 Colleagues to let Richard know what strategies they are responsible for. 

Richard

All

9. TEG Work Programme
To be amended and considered at the next meeting. Richard

Proposed agenda items for the next meeting on 19 January 2018
 Continuous Service Improvement Plan – Confidential
 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance highlights/ risks
 TEG work programme review (Richard Lynch)
 Access to therapeutic support and waiting times (Brigid Reid/ Claire Strachan)
 CIC CAMHS Pathway (Claire Strachan/Brigid Reid)
 Vulnerable children with SEN (Margaret Libreri)
 0-19 Public Health - HCP progress against new 0 – 19 model (Alicia Marcroft?) 
 Looked After Children Sufficiency Strategy/ Foster Carer Placements (Richard Lynch/Jon 

Banwell) 
 Information sharing (Sara Hydon/Wendy Lowder)

Page 20



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

1

 

SAFER BARNSLEY PARTNERSHIP 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Thursday, 14 September 2017
13:30 – 15:30

Silver Suite, Barnsley Police Station, Churchfields

Present:

Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities :  BMBC (Chair)
Scott Green, Chief Superintendent : South Yorks Police 
Phil Hollingsworth, Acting Service Director, Safer, Stronger & Healthier Communities : 
BMBC                                                                            
Carrie Abbott, Service Director, Public Health :  BMBC
Cheryl Wynn, Partnerships & Projects Officer :  OPCC
Cath Erine, Adult Safeguarding Board Manager :  BMBC
Ben Finley, Youth Justice Service Manager :  BMBC
Janette Hawkins, Alliance Co-ordinator/Deputy Service Manager :  SWPFT
Lennie Sahota, Service Director, Adult Social Care :  BMBC
Stephen Carroll, Deputy Director :  SYCRC
Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Member Communities :  BMBC
Sarah Poolman, Superintendent :  South Yorks Police
John Hallows, Chair :  Barnsley Neighbourhood Watch Liaison Group
Delphine Waring, Detective Chief Inspector :  South Yorks Police
Steve Fletcher, District Manager :  South Yorks Fire & Rescue
David Fullen, Director of Customer & Estate Services :  Berneslai Homes
Cllr Linda Burgess, Chair :  South Yorks Fire & Rescue Authority
Sarah Drafz, Business Intelligence Adviser :  BMBC
Harriet Hirst, Barnsley Partnership Intelligence Analyst :  South Yorks Police

In attendance :  
Sharon Pitt, Business Support Officer, BMBC (Minutes)
Mel Fitzpatrick, Strategic Governance & Partnership Manager, BMBC
Adrian Hunt, Risk & Governance Manager :  BMBC

1.  Apologies & Introductions

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  

Apologies were received from :

Ann Powell & Pam Andersson – National Probation Service

Page 21

HWB.30.01.2018/4



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

2

Sean Rayner – SWYPT (Andrea Wilson to attend)
Mel John-Ross – Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding : BMBC     
Jayne Hellowell – Head of Commissioning, Healthier Communities :  BMBC
Lesley Smith & Jade Rose – Barnsley CCG

2.  Minutes of Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 28/06/17 were agreed as a true record.

Action Schedule

           Action 1.1 – Accommodation Providers & Looked After Children
Ben Finley advised that further clarification was required in relation to the action 
as in-authority placement protocols are outside the scope of his service and that 
Children’s Social Care would be better placed to provide a report in relation to this 
item. It was highlighted that some of the challenges with accommodation 
providers relate to young adults and are therefore outside the remit of the Youth 
Offending Team. It was confirmed that a representative from Children’s Social 
Care will be required to attend future Safer Barnsley Partnership Board meetings 
and Scott Green confirmed this would be discussed at his meeting with Bob 
Dyson (Chair of the Safeguarding Children’s Board) and Mel John Ross. 
Action:  Scott Green to confirm a representative from Children’s Social Care 
who will attend the Board.

 
Action 1.2 – Partnership Information Sharing Protocol
Mel Fitzpatrick confirmed that the Information Sharing Protocol has been signed-
off by all partner agencies and circulated –item discharged.

           Action 1.3 – New Fire Station - Shared and Co-located proposals 
           Jayne Hellowell is co-ordinating responses regarding proposals in relation to 

providing shared and co-located services at the new fire station - discussions are 
ongoing to take forward these proposals.  The target completion date is January 
2020 and will include an 8 months building schedule plus 10 months planning and 
design.  
Action:  Further updates of shared and co-located service proposals in 
relation to the new fire station to be provided at the next Board.  

Action 1.4 – Night Time Self-Assessment
Update from the Night Time Self-Assessment is now scheduled on the forward 
plan.

Action 1.5 – CSE/Safeguarding Update
CSE/Safeguarding update for next Board meeting is scheduled on the forward 
plan.

Action 1.6 – CRC progress Update
CRC progress update for next Board meeting is scheduled on the forward plan.

Action 1.7 – Charlie Taylor Review of Youth Justice

Page 22



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

3

Charlie Taylor Review of Youth Justice update for next Board meeting is on the 
agenda – item discharged.

Action 1.8 - Paul Brannan to meet with CRC re aligning CRC resources with 
the Safer Neighbourhood Services - Discussions have taken place with CRC 
regarding the role around integration pathways and CRC will be a focus area - 
Item discharged.
     
Action 1.9 – Jayne Hellowell to circulate briefing note in relation to the new 
service commissions
Jayne Hellowell to circulate briefing note – Outstanding.
Action:  Jayne Hellowell to circulate briefing note in relation to the new 
service commissions.

Action 1.10 – Steve Fletcher to circulate information sharing process 
between SYF&R and Health
Steve Fletcher confirmed that he had emailed documents regarding the 
information sharing process between South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue and Health 
and these would be circulated with the draft minutes.
Action:  Sharon Pitt to circulate the South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
information sharing process with the draft minutes.

Action 1.11 – Mel Fitzpatrick to contact Sean Rayner to confirm the 
representative from SWYPFT 
Mel Fitzpatrick confirmed that Sean Rayner will be the SWYPFT representative 
on the Safer Barnsley Partnership Board – Item discharged.
     

            Actions 2.1 to 5.2
 It was confirmed that items 2.1 – 5.2 are on the Agenda – Items discharged.  

Action 6.1 – Mel Fitzpatrick to clarify the Safer Barnsley Board 
representative with the CCG
Mel confirmed that the Terms of Reference have been forwarded to Brigid Reid 
and confirmation of a representative was still awaited.

           Action:  Mel Fitzpatrick to chase up a response from Brigid Reid.

 3.  Safer Barnsley Strategic Risk Register

Adrian Hunt confirmed he had worked with Mel Fitzpatrick in drawing up the risk register.  
He gave a brief outline of how the strategic risks, control measures and mitigations for 
the Safer Barnsley Partnership.  Adrian Hunt briefly outlined the risk assessment 
process and matrices and confirmed that following detailed assessment, none of the 
identified risks were deemed to be a high (red) risks.

Scott Green suggested that the Risk Owners should be the Safer Barnsley Partnership 
Board rather than the Co-chairs.  This was agreed by the Board.  Action:  Adrian to 
revise the risk register to detail the Safer Barnsley Partnership Board as the risk 
owners.

Sarah Poolman considered that Risk No 2 should be broader to incorporate prevention 

Page 23



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

4

of crime and sharing of short term daily business.
Action:  Adrian to broaden strategic risk no 2 and re-circulate to Safer Barnsley 
Partnership Board. 

4.  Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment

Sarah Drafz gave an overview of the key points of the findings of the Joint Strategic 
Intelligence Assessment.  Sarah advised that the potential emerging issues and priorities 
had been identified using MORILE (Management of Risk in Law Enforcement), a 
national intelligence based model used by 44 local authorities.

The potential priority areas for consideration for 2018-19 are: child abuse and child 
sexual exploitation, domestic abuse, rape offences, anti-social behaviour and criminal 
damage and hate crime and community cohesion.

Sarah advised that the Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment summary document 
would be circulated to Board Members along with results of the risk matrix for review.  
Post this, a three week public survey will be undertaken to gauge the views of our 
communities in relation to the potential priority areas.  Collectively, this intelligence and 
feedback will inform the review of the Safer Barnsley Partnership Plan and the priorities 
for 2018-19 which will be subject to a further report.

A discussion followed in relation to national changes to crime recording practices.  
Harriet Hirst confirmed that where possible, any recorded increases in crime locally have 
been compared to other most similar groups in order to help identify trends potentially 
attributable to changes in the national crime recording practices.

Wendy Lowder confirmed a meeting of the Chairs of the Safeguarding Boards, Safer 
Barnsley Partnership and the Stronger Communities Partnership had been arranged to 
develop a joint working protocol and that this would be drafted and considered by each 
respective partnership in November 2017. 

Action:  Sarah Poolman, Phil Hollingsworth and Mel Fitzpatrick to coordinate the 
public survey and feed results back into the November Board meeting. 

Action:  Mel Fitzpatrick to draft the Inter-Partnership joint working protocol and to 
schedule for November Board meeting.

5. Performance & Delivery Group Highlight Report

Phil Hollingsworth presented the Performance and Delivery Group highlight report and 
confirmed that the Terms of Reference for the group had been refreshed to include a 
change in frequency of meetings to bi-monthly and proposed changes to membership.  
In order to maintain momentum and drive forward delivery against the priorities set out in 
the Partnership Plan, the group proposed that the frequency of meetings across the 
governance structure be amended from quarterly to bi-monthly.  It was agreed that Dave 
Fullen (Berneslai Homes) also be added to the membership of the Performance and 
Delivery Group.

Phil outlined that the group recommended that the Crime and ASB Board be dis-

Page 24



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

5

established and two separate Delivery Groups (one focussing on crime and the other on 
ASB) be established in order to maintain focus and drive forward all priority areas. It was 
emphasised that connectivity between the ASB and Crime Deliver Groups and the Youth 
Offending Management Board would be vital to ensure joined up collaborative 
approaches. 
 
The revised terms of reference, membership, changes to frequency of all meetings to bi-
monthly and the proposed changes to the governance structure was agreed by the 
Board.

Phil Hollingsworth advised that Delivery Plans were currently being refreshed to align 
with the new governance arrangements.  The Board agreed that to delegate the sign-off 
of the refreshed delivery plans to the Performance and Delivery Group.

Phil Hollingsworth and Sarah Poolman gave an overview of the proposed performance 
management approach going forward.  The Performance and Delivery Group will 
actively manage performance against Safer Barnsley Partnership priorities holding 
Priority Lead Officers to account for the performance and delivery of agreed actions.  
The Board agreed to receive bi-monthly highlight and exception reports (both qualitative 
and quantitative) from the Performance and Delivery Group Co-Chairs focussing on key 
strategic indicators aligned to the priorities detailed in the Safer Barnsley Partnership 
Plan.  It was also agreed that the Youth Offending Management Board would also 
provide twice yearly updates into the Safer Barnsley Partnership.

6.  Safe Places Scheme

Cath Erine gave an overview of the Safe Places Scheme which was launched in 2014. 
The scheme consists of a series of premises where staff agree to provide a safe place 
for vulnerable adults who are lost or might feel worried for some other reason.  Cath 
advised that over 200 people are registered with the scheme.

The governance of the scheme was discussed and it was agreed by both the 
Safeguarding Adults Board and the Safer Barnsley Partnership that the Safe Places 
Scheme should report into the Safer Barnsley Partnership via the Protecting Vulnerable 
People Sub-Group.  It was also suggested the links should be established between the 
Safe Places and the Ask Angela scheme.  Cath also raised that the administrative 
support for the scheme (Approximately 2 hours per week) would also need to be 
considered by the Protecting Vulnerable People Sub-Group.

Action:  Jayne Hellowell to liaise with Cath Erine to integrate the governance of 
the Safe Places Scheme to the Protecting Vulnerable People Sub-Group, review 
the administrative requirements and establish links to the Ask Angela Scheme.

7.  Charlie Taylor Review of Youth Justice  

Page 25



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

6

 
The report prepared by Ben Finley, Youth Justice Service Manager was circulated prior 
to the meeting and outlined the three areas addressed in the government response:

 Devise the ‘right framework for improvement’ 
 Work to ‘tackle offending’
 Address difficulties being experienced in Youth Custody

Ben highlighted that Charlie Taylor was commissioned to produce a fundamental 
national review of the Youth Justice system by the Secretary of State.   Ben advised that 
the review clearly sees an ongoing role for the Youth Justice services and will continue 
to ring fence the Youth Justice grant.  Some of the reforms announced, particularly 
enhancing staffing levels in prisons and improved training for staff working in prisons are 
encouraging.  Wendy Lowder thanked Ben for his succinct briefing of the review 
findings.

8.  Stronger Barnsley Partnership Governance Review    

Phil Hollingsworth outlined that the purpose of the report was to provide the Safer 
Barnsley Partnership with a progress update in relation to the recommendations outlined 
in an output report from a development session held by the Stronger Communities 
Development Session in May 2017.

Five recommendations were outlined:

1. A full governance review is undertaken on the Stronger Communities Partnership 
and its associated delivery infrastructure

2. A clear brand is developed for the Stronger Communities Partnership
3. A system-wide performance framework based around impact and outcomes and 

aligned to the strategic priorities is developed
4. Delivery Groups to review Delivery Plans to support the delivery of the priorities 

set out in the All Age Early Help Strategy (2017-2020)
5. Develop a Whole System Early Help Workforce Development Programme

A Review Task and Finish Group have been established to progress the five 
recommendations. The Stronger Communities Partnership will receive a further report 
with proposals to take forward the recommendations in November 2017. 

Action:  Phil Hollingsworth to provide a further update report to the Safer Barnsley 
Partnership once the review is complete.

9.  Forward Plan   

Phil Hollingsworth gave an overview of the outline forward plan for the Safer Barnsley 
Partnership Board.  Partners were asked to consider the outline forward plan and 
feedback any further items to Mel Fitzpatrick particularly in relation to any forthcoming 
legislative, policy or service transformation changes.  

Phil Hollingsworth also outlined a proposed amendment to the Terms of Reference of 
the Safer Barnsley Partnership Board to incorporate one public meeting per annum. 
It was noted that other local Community Safety Partnerships hold public meetings.  

Page 26



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

7

Wendy Lowder suggested that the Council Governance Unit be contacted for further 
advice in relation to this proposal.

Action:  All partners to feedback any further forward plan items in relation to any 
forthcoming legislative, policy or service transformation changes to Mel 
Fitzpatrick. 

Action:  Phil Hollingsworth to contact the Council Governance Unit to seek advice 
in relation to proposals to include a public meeting in the revised Terms of 
Reference for the Safer Barnsley Partnership and feedback to the next Board 
meeting.

10.  Any Other Business 
 
No further business was raised.

11.  Date, Time and Venue of Next Meeting

Monday, 27 November 2017:  14.00 – 16.00 (as per revised bi-monthly schedule), Silver 
Suite, Barnsley Police Station, Churchfields
 

Page 27



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

8

Action schedule from minutes (14 September 2017)

1)

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Action schedule (27 March 2017)

Scott Green to confirm a representative from Children’s Social Care 
who will attend the Board

Further updates of shared and co-located service proposals in relation 
to the new fire station to be provided at the next Board.  

Jayne Hellowell to circulate briefing note in relation to the new service 
commissions

Sharon Pitt to circulate the South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
information sharing process with the draft minutes.

Mel Fitzpatrick to chase up a response from Brigid Read regarding the 
Safer Barnsley Board representative with CCG.

2)

2.1

2.2

Safer Barnsley Strategic Risk Register

Adrian Hunt to revise the risk register to detail the Safer Barnsley 
Partnership Board as the risk owners.

Adrian Hunt to broaden strategic risk no 2 and re-circulate to Safer 
Barnsley Partnership Board. 

3)

3.1

3.2

Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment

Sarah Poolman, Phil Hollingsworth and Mel Fitzpatrick to coordinate 
the public survey and feed results back into the November Board 
meeting. 

Mel Fitzpatrick to draft the Inter-Partnership joint working protocol and 
to schedule for November Board meeting.

4)

4.1

Safe Places Scheme

Jayne Hellowell to liaise with Cath Erine to integrate the governance 
of the Safe Places Scheme to the Protecting Vulnerable People Sub-
Group, review the administrative requirements and establish links to 
the Ask Angela Scheme.

5)

5.1

Stronger Barnsley Partnership Governance Review 

Phil Hollingsworth to provide a further update report to the Safer 
Barnsley Partnership once the review is complete.

6) Forward Plan

Page 28



Safer Barnsley Partnership
Executive Group meeting 

9

6.1

6.2

All partners to feedback any further forward plan items in relation to 
any forthcoming legislative, policy or service transformation changes 
to Mel Fitzpatrick. 

Phil Hollingsworth to contact the Council Governance Unit to seek 
advice in relation to proposals to include a public meeting in the 
revised Terms of Reference for the Safer Barnsley Partnership and 
feedback to the next Board meeting.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

Safer Barnsley Partnership Board
Monday, 27 November 2017 :  14:00 – 16:00

Town Hall, MR2

Minutes
Attendees:
Scott Green, Chief Superintendent : South Yorkshire Police (Chair)
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities :  BMBC
Phil Hollingsworth, Service Director, Safer, Strong & Healthier : BMBC
Jayne Hellowell, Head of Commissioning & Healthier Communities : BMBC
Lennie Sahota, Service Director, Adult Social Care :  BMBC
Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Member Communities :  BMBC
Dave Fullen, Director : Berneslai Homes
Cllr Linda Burgess, Chair SY Fire & Rescue Authority :  BMBC
Cheryl Wynn, Partnerships & Projects Officer :  OPCC
Sarah Poolman, Superintendent :  South Yorkshire Police
Joanne Bates, Det Chief Insp :  South Yorkshire Police
Carrie Abbott, Service Director, Public Health :  BMBC
Diane Lee, Head of Public Health :  BMBC
Maryke Turvey, Deputy Director :  SYCRC
Nigel Leeder, LSCB Board Manager : BMBC

Apologies:
Sean Rayner – SWYPT
Mel John-Ross – BMBC Social Care & Safeguarding (Children) 
                            (Nigel Leeder to attend)
Brigid Reid – Barnsley CCG
Steve Fletcher, Kelly Jenkins & Trevor Bernard – SY Fire
Det Chief Insp Delphine Waring – SY Police
Linda Mayhew – South Yorks Criminal Justice Board

Brigid Reid has confirmed she will attend future meetings to represent Health 
and all dates have been forwarded to her.

1. Apologies and Introductions
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  
Apologies were received and noted from the above members.

The Chair expressed his concern that SY Fire & Rescue were not represented 
due to the high proportion of arson incidents which take place.

In addition it was noted that CRC was Item 6 on the Agenda but Amanda Cullen 
had not attended. However Maryke Turvey was in attendance on behalf of 
CRC.

Page 31



2 | P a g e

The Chair also confirmed that meetings would now be held at either the Town 
Hall or Westgate/Gateway as he was concerned that the Board would be 
considered as police led due to meetings always being held at Churchfields. 

2. Minutes and Matters Arising from meeting held 14 September 2017
The Chair confirmed the previous minutes had been signed off pre-meeting and 
were accepted as a true record. 

Matters arising from 14 September 2017

Action 1.1 – Accommodation Providers & Looked After Children
ACTION :  Scott Green to confirm a representative from Children’s Social 
Care who will attend the Board – Item carried over

Action 1.3 – New Fire Station – Shared and Co-loocated proposals
ACTION:  Further updates of shared and co-located service proposals in 
relation to the new fire station to be provided at the next Board – Item 
carried over

Action 1.9 – Jayne Hellowell to circulate briefing note in relation to the 
new service commissions
ACTION: Briefing note has been circulated – Item discharged

Action 1.10 – Steve Fletcher to circulate information sharing process 
between SYF&R and Health
ACTION:  Sharon Pitt to circulate to Board with the draft minutes – 
circulated following meeting on 27/11 – Item discharged

Action 6.1 – Mel Fitzpatrick to clarify the Safer Barnsley Board 
representative from SWYPFT
ACTION:  Sharon Pitt confirmed that Brigid Reid had confirmed she would 
attend as SWYPFT representative – Item discharged 

Following on from previous discussions Board members to email Chair with 
their view either way on whether to hold a public meeting.  The Chair confirmed 
that the Board has a statutory duty to consult with the public and some CSB 
meetings are held in public.

Points to bear in mind :  
 public meetings can work well but do involve a considerable amount of 

work beforehand
 additional time would need to be allowed for questions etc
 would be interesting to know how successful public meetings have been 

elsewhere
 Strategic discussion time may be lost

Nigel Leeder reported that a public meeting was being held on 10 July for the 
public to come and meet the Safeguarding Boards (Adults and Children) as part 

Page 32



3 | P a g e

of Safeguarding Awareness Week.

ACTION:  Public Meeting to be an Agenda item for discussion at the next 
meeting

3. Safer Barnsley Plan Refresh 2018-19
Jayne Hellowell confirmed that the Safer Barnsley Plan had been compiled 
using MoRILE data and agreed through the Performance & Delivery Group
Agreed priorities were outlined with themes falling into delivery groups that 
report into this Board.  As a result of the annual JSIA it is necessary to refresh 
the plan.

Slight changes have been made to governance arrangements with the ASB and 
Crime Sub Groups now operating separately. These two groups plus the 
Protecting Vulnerable People and Promoting Community Tolerance & Respect 
feed into the Performance & Delivery Group and into this Board.

The Barnsley Plan is written for 2016 -2020 but JSIA is annual.  An annual 
Barnsley Plan is now proposed and the JSIA intelligence will be planned from 
February 2018.

MoRILE data is only one source so need to get information from other 
databases and adopt a more comprehensive approach to intelligence 
gathering.  

Timescale :
 First draft by 22 December 2017
 Consultation between 2 – 22 January 2018
 Present to SBPB on 29 January 2018

and finalisation before the end of the financial year.

Recommendation:
 Members endorse the findings of the JSIA and the refresh of the Plan
 Members agree to an annual plan to be re-dated and scheduled 

alongside the JSIA.

Both recommendations were agreed and accepted by members.

4. Inter-Partnership Joint Working Protocol
The inter-partnership joint working protocol is necessary to confirm principles 
and ways of working around SBP, SCB, SAB and SCB.  Chairs met and a draft 
protocol was drawn up, circulated and considered at the Trust Executive Board 
and Safeguarding Boards.   Bob Dyson (Chair of Safeguarding Boards) was 
concerned that TEB was not included.  This document will travel through the 
Boards in the first part of 2018.

5. CSE/Safeguarding Update
Joanne Bates, Detective Chief Inspector attended the meeting to provide the 
Board with an overview of the current issues associated with CSE in Barnsley.  

Page 33



4 | P a g e

This was an operational update to cover the key themes of victims, offenders 
and locations in Barnsley.  The Strategic Profile presented covered all child 
abuse, including CSE, over last 3 years.  

Key points highlighted from the Strategic Profile were as follows:
 there is confidence in reporting and awareness and pathways are in 

place.  It was noted that cases tend to be current rather than historic 
which is a positive reflection of pathways for reporting working.  

 there was concern expressed for some of the hot spot areas identified 
and it was agreed that there needed to be a more in-depth 
understanding of the issues being reported in these localities.  

 the large number of 'paedophile hunter' incidents was also noted and it 
was explained that one of the most active groups is based locally to 
Barnsley which explains the high number of incidents.  

 issues associated with 'Missing from Home' were also noted and it was 
explained that Barnsley has the highest number of children’s homes in 
the county and takes children out of area.  

 opportunities for continued staff training to ensure an integrated front 
door were also acknowledged as an area for further exploration.
- relationships are good regarding  stakeholder engagement in respect of 
child abuse with all partners keen to engage. 

 the CSE Action Plan is complete and constantly being refreshed.  

The Chair confirmed that recommendations from the report will sit with the CSA 
Sub Group, and thanked Jo for her presentation.

ACTION:  Further updates to be scheduled into the forward plan.

6. CRC Demand Overview
Maryke Turvey gave a presentation re Reducing Re-offending on behalf of 
Amanda Cullen, Director of SYCRC who was unable to attend.

Ministry of Justice published reducing re-offending data in October 2017 which 
is the first publication since 2014.  Rates are compared to 2011 data for the 
benchmark.

Worried at high rates of re-offending in SYCRC and looking at a joint plan with 
the police to target specific groups. 

Data will come out every 3 months and includes all cases that go to court.

 Focus group work is being done with YOT for young people under 25 
yrs.  

 More detailed understanding is needed about individuals in respect of re-
offending. Need to work together and understand the local picture and 
learn from IOM arrangements.  

 More detailed data will become available from work with live cohorts and 
the police.

 National Probation Data – Can only get data for Region not specifically 
for Barnsley.

Page 34



5 | P a g e

 The data will be useful to the JSIA data 
 CRC resources are going into the Hub. Out to recruit at the moment to 

start in the spring.  Acknowledged the good work done by the Hub.

ACTION:  Maryke to send the presentation through for circulation. To note 
re future JSIA.

7. Night-Time Self-Assessment Update 
Diane Lee gave a verbal update.

Significant progress has been made in the introduction of nightlife marshals as 
early preventative people in the town centre, every Saturday night between 
8pm and 4am.  This is proving to be a valuable asset for the town.  Following 
the debrief on Monday information will be circulated.

‘Best Bar None’ has been launched across the town centre with assessments 
and prizes.  Scott Green and Wendy Lowder will sit on the panel at the awards 
night in June.

Positive changes :
 Mandela Gardens are spotless 
 Door staff are smart and age checking is taking place
 Taxi queues are regularly managed  
 Regular police patrols take place
 NightLife work with Street Pastors.

Issues :
 Begging
 Litter - part cigarette ends
 Glass – empty bottles in doorway entrances and on top of bins
 Wellington St – look at ‘Proud of my Street’ 
 Urinating in the street and fire-lighting

‘High strength low cost’ – trying to get alcohol shops to sign up to this.

The Chair asked whether they had received any briefing from the police and 
Diane confirmed they had been told they could attend the police evening 
briefing and they are keen to work with them.  The Chair suggested street 
briefings to be visible.  There are police van patrols but no police seen on foot.

‘Best bar awards’ – should try to get Barnsley Chronicle and media involved to 
maximise impact on trade and generate further interest.

 There is a lot of litter from Greggs who have their own door staff.  
 Cigarettes and glasses – some venues 
 Funky Buddha were not collecting glasses and tables were overturned.  

About pride in keeping the town centre tidy.  Look at naming and shaming.  If 
tables outside are not cleared then perhaps bars should not be allowed to have 
tables outside.

Page 35



6 | P a g e

Suggested awareness raising around begging.  Display posters in pubs and 
raise awareness that beggars come into town on a weekend to earn money and 
are not genuinely homeless.  Alliance Review Group could establish a town 
centre approach to make resources work better and bring resources together 
before Christmas.

8. Performance & Delivery Exception Report
 Progress has been made and will be finalised by next meeting.
 Working with 4 delivery leads to identify top 10 measures for each 

delivery group.
 Governance arrangements will be re-drafted by next meeting.
 Brief overview and escalation risks sent to each Board.

Any feedback welcomed before finalisation.

The Chair pointed out that the Burglary residential figures will be high due to the 
high number of sheds broken into which are included in these figures.

ASB has reduced significantly with a 30% reduction in low level violence 
recorded.

It was noted that more DVPNs are authorised in Barnsley than in other towns in 
South Yorks.  It was agreed these should be monitored and cases will be 
pushed back to officers to confirm these cases should be prosecutions.

9. Forward Plan
ACTION :  All members to feedback re future Agenda items.

10. Any Other Business
No further business was identified.

11. Date of Next Meeting

Monday, 29 January 2018
14:00 – 16:00
Town Hall MR2

Page 36



7 | P a g e

Action Schedule from meeting held 10/10/17

Action 1.1 – Accommodation Providers & Looked After Children
ACTION :  Scott Green to confirm a representative from Children’s Social Care who 
will attend the Board - Ongoing

Action 1.2 – New Fire Station – Shared and Co-located proposals
ACTION:  Further updates of shared and co-located service proposals in relation to 
the new fire station to be provided at the next Board - Ongoing

Action Schedule from meeting held 27/11/17

Action 1.1 – Discussions around holding a SBP Public meeting 
ACTION : Agenda item for next meeting

Action 1.2 – CSE/ Safeguarding update
ACTION:  Further CSE updates to be scheduled into the forward plan

Action 1.3 - CRC Demand Overview
ACTION :  Presentation to be circulated with draft minutes

Action 1.4 – Forward Plan
ACTION : All members to forward future Agenda items

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Health and Well Being Provider Forum

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 13 September 2017

Present

Helen Jaggar Berneslai Homes (Chair)
Jo Clark CAB
Anne Simmons Alzheimers Society
Kevan Riggett-Barrett  BPL
Sam Goulding  IDAS
Jamie Wike  NHS Barnsley CCG
Rachel Neale  VAB
Stephen Gallagher  Barnsley Futures
Gill Day  Healthwatch 
C Denton  Centrepoint

ACTION
Item 1 – Apologies
Apologies were received from Sean Rayner, SWYPFT, Tim Wilson, 
BPL; Tyler Moore, Phil Parkes, SYHA, Julie Ferry, Barnsley Hospice, 
Emily Todd, DISC, Andrew Peace, Caremark.
Item 2 – Minutes of meeting held on 14 June 2017
These were agreed as an accurate record.

Item 2.1- Matters arising
Dementia – HJ reported that the Executive Group which supports the 
Health and Wellbeing Board is specifically looking at dementia at its 
October meeting.  AS is pulling together some data on dementia as this 
issue impacts across service providers. The forum agreed it would be 
useful to discuss the work that providers are doing on dementia.  Agreed 
to table for March meeting. 

Adult Social Care Funding – the forum had previously raised a number 
of queries in respect of the additional one off sum of £11 m. that 
Barnsley had received.  A detailed response (enclosed below) had been 
provided by L. Sahota, BMBC who oversees allocation of the fund, 
which is particularly relevant for care providers.

Early Help Steering Group – the forum requested that PP share the 
promotional video on early help when available.

Social Prescribing – My Best Life – Update – PP had requested ‘my best 
life’ officers to make contact with members of the group.  
Reported that 400 referrals have been made in the first 4 months of the 
scheme being launched with the target date for the first year being 600.   
Indications were that there may be capacity to deal with more than the 
target number.  Referrals are through GP’s only therefore the forum 
were requested to advise clients who may benefit from the scheme to 

PP

Page 39

HWB.30.01.2018/5



2

seek referral through this route.  The forum had previously raised they 
would like to see the referral route widened particularly if the number of 
referrals increased.  JW said that as the scheme had been 
commissioned for 3 years the funding level would not be increased to 
give capacity to do this unless there was clear evidence there had been 
a decrease in attendance at hospital/GP’s that demonstrated a reduction 
in costs elsewhere.  The forum said it would be interested to see data 
from the first quarter of the scheme being operational in December.  
   
KRB reported that BPL are to continue the old GP referral system with 
staff being trained up to Level 4.  Previously the scheme had dealt with 
79 referrals a week from GPs. Within the next 8 – 12 months a 
programme will be in place that can link in with My Best Life therefore 
contact has been made with them.  

Age Friendly Barnsley Conference – details of this event organised 
jointly by Age UK & BMBC to be held on 6th October 2017 at Priory 
Campus, Lundwood were circulated for information.  HJ requested that 
providers circulate details within their networks as the Conference was 
aimed at people who have experience of what it is like to grow older in 
Barnsley and people who work in organisations that can make 
systems/facilities more age friendly.  

Live Well Barnsley – details had been provided on how providers can 
get established on Live Well Barnsley.  Centrepoint and Barnsley 
Futures attention was drawn to this as newly commissioned providers.

All

Item 3 – Health and Wellbeing Board – 8/8/17

HJ tabled minutes of the meeting for information.  Attention was drawn 
to the following key points:

 Carer’s Strategy 2017 – 2020 – a report and presentation on the 
development and progress of the Strategy had been received.  
HJ said the forum may wish to consider whether they would like 
to receive further detail on this at a future meeting. 

 Annual report from Healthwatch had been well received and the 
important contribution made by them to health and wellbeing in 
Barnsley had been acknowledged.  Providers can access the 
report via the Healthwatch website. 

 It was pleasing to note that the Forum’s work plan and 
engagement of forum members in taking this forward had been 
recognised.

Item 4 – Stronger Communities Partnership 

HJ on behalf of PP provided an update from the meeting held on the 
15th August 2017.  Updates were provided by officers responsible for  
early help adults, early help children and anti poverty with a summary of 
the previous 12 months activity. Highlights included discussions on  
community shop development; early help hubs and co-ordinated 
assessments for young people and families; development of the social 

Page 40



3

prescribing service.

PP felt the meeting was currently taking stock, looking forward and 
developing a number of task and finish groups to take new actions 
forward.  There was a discussion about making every contact count. 
PP’s view is that the partnership has a fairly narrow view of this and 
tends to focus on BMBC/ NHS to deliver.  However initiatives like 
Berneslai Homes “Something doesn’t look right” where any concerns 
identified by staff are passported through to the relevant agency, feel 
much more effective in finding/identifying people who need early help.  
He had highlighted (on behalf of the forum) that  providers from the third 
and private sector needed to be involved.  

PP felt the group were still dealing with outcome measures and its role 
on oversight.  He requested therefore that providers ensure we are well 
represented on the 3 working groups in order to influence discussions; 
share our understanding as providers (non statutory services) and help 
frame the outcome measures for these services. PP has requested that 
forum members are provided with details of lead officers for each of the 
groups.  

L. Sohota, lead officer from BMBC provided an overview of the changes 
within adult social care, the main changes being to the community 
access team.  PP to circulate slides from this when available and asked 
the forum to consider whether they would like to invite LS to a future 
meeting to have further understanding of the changes. 

PP
All

Item 5 – Oral Health – Presentation by Kaye Mann, Public Health

The meeting received a presentation (enclosed) which outlined the 
issues facing the borough as Public Health have identified that oral 
health in Barnsley is significantly worse than other areas of the 
Yorkshire and Humber Region and nationally.  An Oral Health Needs 
Assessment is currently taking place and the Action Plan will be updated 
to reflect any recommendations arising from this.

Information on the resources being used to promote oral health were 
highlighted and discussed.  Particular focus was in relation to where 
providers could provide support by way of publicising the oral health 
campaign; participation/promoting within networks  DPH ‘a day in the 
life’ on 7/11/17.  Discussion was held on the approaches by different 
partners on the provision and content of vending machines and the 
resources available from Public Health to promote sugar free 
alternatives. BPL and BMBC highlighted that vending machines had 
been removed at some of their locations.   KM to liaise with KRB in 
respect of displaying available information at BPL’s venues. 

KRB  said that links to oral health information for Barnsley residents 
could also be placed on BPL’s website’s health and wellbeing page.   If 
providers wish to obtain any resources KM said she could be contacted 

KM/KRB

Page 41



4

direct via email kayemann@barnsley.gov.uk.

One of the key messages in the campaign is to regularly visit the dentist 
and the forum raised whether the campaign or social media should 
highlight that access to an NHS dentist is not an issue in Barnsley.  As 
this is being highlighted as a national issue in the media it was felt this 
deter Barnsley residents from trying to register at a dental practice. 

The meeting also noted the contribution that water fluoridation could 
make towards improving oral health and that the Health and Wellbeing 
Board had requested a feasibility study into this.  Results from this are 
being awaited although if agreed to progress will be a lengthy process 
requiring extensive consultation.

 Item 6 – Smoke Free Generation – Presentation by Kaye Mann

The meeting received a presentation (enclosed) which gave an overview 
of the work taking place with the aim to inspire a smoke free generation 
across the borough.  The key objectives of the Smoke Free Barnsley 
Action Plan together with the Smoke Free Programme which aims to 
have smoke free zones in play parks, town centre zones, grounds of 
Barnsley hospital and school entrances were noted.  

The areas where providers could help in creating a smoke free 
generation were outlined and discussed.  KM said that BMBC’s Smoking 
at Work Policy which now prevents staff smoking in front of the public 
could be shared with providers should they wish to consider 
implementing in their workplace.  It was noted that BMBC also allow 
staff time off work to visit the Stop Smoking Service as evidence shows 
people are more likely to quit if they use this service. HJ said that in 
relation to smoke free social housing this would be extremely difficult to 
be enforced by housing providers.  However promotion of the 
educational information available and asking new tenants to consider 
smoke free was an option that could be explored. 

Providers raised that they would like to be aware of any other Public 
Health Strategies that were in place as KM said that work is taking place 
on alcohol and healthy eating.  HJ agreed to contact Public Health to 
request this for consideration by the forum at the December meeting.   
JW also agreed to report on the key priorities of the CCG so the forum 
could consider if there any areas they would like to receive further 
information on.  A programme for 2018 could then be produced.  

HJ

JW
Item 6 – Future Agenda Items
13 December 2017 – Suicide prevention (BMBC), CCG priorities (JW), 
Public Health Strategies – forum then to consider future programme, 
Social Prescribing Update (PP), Adult Social Care
7th March 2018 – providers work on dementia.

Page 42

mailto:kayemann@barnsley.gov.uk


5

Item 7 – Any Other Business
As this was the first meeting representatives from Centrepoint and 
Barnsley Futures had attended as newly commissioned providers, SG 
and CD gave a brief overview of their work and client group. 
Item 8 – Date of next meeting – 13 December 2017.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Health and Well Being Provider Forum

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 13 December 2017

Present

Helen Jaggar Berneslai Homes (Chair)
Andrew Peace Caremark
Mark Goodhead BPL
Joe Hall SYHA

ACTION
Item 1 – Apologies
Apologies were received from Sean Rayner, SWYPFT, Tim Wilson, 
BPL; Kevan Riggett-Barrett, BPL, Tyler Moore, Centrepoint, Phil Parkes, 
SYHA, Julie Ferry, Barnsley Hospice, Emily Todd, DISC, Jo Clark, VAB, 
Carolyn Ellis, VAB, Jamie Wike, NHS, Stephen Gallagher, Barnsley 
Futures,  Anne Simmons, Alzheimers Society, Ben Brewis, NHS
Item 2 – Minutes of meeting held on 13 September 2017
These were agreed as an accurate record.

Item 2.1- Matters arising
Early Help Steering Group – PP to confirm if the promotional video has 
been shared.

HJ was pleased to report that following successful lobbying and 
continued discussions by the provider forum that flu jabs are now being 
provided to front line workers employed in care homes and domiciliary 
care.

Stronger Communities Partnership – JH reported that teams had been 
restructured within the community access team however work was still 
ongoing in relation to how these will operate.  A further update will be 
given at the meeting to be held week commencing 18/12/17. 

Oral Health – noted that BPL is pro-active in respect of sugar free 
options being made available in vending machines on their sites.

Public Health Priorities – the forum had raised previously whether there 
were any other priorities that they needed to consider in addition to 
those already received on a Smoke Free Generation, Oral Health and 
Suicide Prevention.   HJ reported that these were the main areas of 
focus for Public Health at the present time.

PP

Item 3 – Health and Wellbeing Board – 3 October 2017
HJ reported on the key points from the meeting.  The main focus was 
the sign off of annual reports from the Barnsley Local Safeguarding 
Childrens and Adults Board.  Discussion was held in respect of the RAG 
rated Performance Dashboard and a report was received on the 
proposed approach to tracking performance and progress against the 

Page 45



2

priorities of the 2016-2020 Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  HJ said the 
Strategy which can be viewed on BMBC’s website may be of particular 
interest to providers as it includes data on the health and wellbeing 
position in the borough.
Item 4 – Stronger Communities Partnership 
JH reported that the Partnership meeting had discussed the impact of 
Universal Credit (UC).  Assurance had been given from DWP that UC is 
in place and that the process is working.  Whilst support services are 
available to assist individuals making claims it was felt this was not 
always taken up by members of the community and this raised how 
feedback could be given to Job Centres where it was felt additional 
support was required. 

The forum received highlight reports from the meetings of the Adult 
Early Help Group 21/11/17, the Early Help (Children and Families) 
Group 2/11/17 and the Anti Poverty Delivery Group 8/11/17. 

Item 5 – Social Prescribing Update
The forum received a presentation by JH which gave an update on the 
first 7 months of the scheme being operational and the outcomes to 
date.  It was noted that 640 referrals had been made which had 
exceeded the target of 600 for the first year.  Particular attention was 
drawn to the reduction in GP appointments since the scheme had been 
operational.  Customer Case studies were circulated which showed how 
use of the service evidenced this reduction.   As this data highlighted the 
benefits of the service in respect of people dealing with social isolation, 
AP felt it would be beneficial for a My Best Life representative to attend 
a future Care Home Providers meeting to raise awareness of the 
scheme.  JH to arrange for AP to be contacted to progress this.  

JH reported that Natalie is currently working with VAB to compile a 
directory of organisations that provide support once a referral has been 
made.  The forum felt it would be beneficial to have sight of this when 
available.  

HJ said the forum had previously raised whether the referral route, 
currently by GPs could be widened and asked whether there had been 
any flexibility on this.  JH said that some flexibility had been introduced 
in that My Best Life Champions based at GP practices can make a 
referral.  

It was agreed to receive a further update in 6 months. 

JH

Item 6 – Suicide Prevention – Phil Ainsworth, Health & Wellbeing 
Officer, BMBC
The forum received a presentation (enclosed below) which gave an 
overview of the Government’s Suicide Prevention Strategy and an 
update on work taking place in Barnsley together with copies of 
literature that is available to support someone who may have been 
affected by suicide.  

Page 46



3

Data in respect of the numbers of suicide in the borough were 
highlighted together with the Suicide Prevention Action Plan established 
by Public Health in Barnsley which aims to achieve a 10% reduction in 
suicide by 2021. 

The presentation also drew attention to the training that is available to 
provide people with the knowledge to deal with a potential suicide 
situation that is available to anyone wishing to undertake.

As data highlighted the potential links with some providers in terms of 
isolation being a key factor in suicide and bereavement support that is 
available it was agreed it would be beneficial for PA to attend a future 
My Best Life meeting.  JH to request My Best Life representative to 
contact PA to progress.

PA said providers were also welcome to attend meetings of the multi 
agency Suicide Prevention Group that has been established where 
further understanding on the work taking place could be gained. The 
Group have developed a strategy with an agreement for agencies to 
work together to provide support and has also established links with 
Crisis Care.

JH/PA

Item 7 – Public Health Strategies & Key Priorities of CCG
HJ on behalf of J. Wike, NHS gave an update as previously requested 
by the forum.  Significant areas of work will be working as part of the 
emerging from the Accountable Care System across South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw to deliver:

 the priorities of the STP contributing to the development of the 
ACS including governance etc. and;

 working with partners locally to develop our local model of 
Accountable Care for services to be delivered for Barnsley 
People

 JW suggested, that at the appropriate time, Jeremy Budd, 
Director of Accountable Care in Barnsley could attend a meeting 
of the forum to talk about this further and how local providers 
could feed in.   Forum to consider.

In terms of more specific CCG priorities for the coming year work is still 
ongoing to finalise priorities for 2018/19 however there are some clear 
areas that they will be looking to develop plans for.  These include:

 Primary Care – Continuing to develop primary care in the widest 
sense, locality/neighbourhood working, access, workforce etc.

 Mental Health – taking forward the developments of the MH Five 
Year Forward View and delivering the Local Transformation Plan, 
including improvements to services for Children and Young 
People

 Urgent and Emergency Care – Developing Integrated Urgent and 
Emergency Care Services, working with SYB partners to bring 
together 111 with OOH and local services to provide improved 

All

Page 47



4

access and ensure people receive the best clinical advise and 
treatment by the most appropriate clinician for their condition

Cancer – Improving Cancer pathways across South Yorkshire & 
Bassetlaw to ensure timely diagnosis and treatment – particularly 
focused upon pathways which include patients being treated between 
more than one hospital.

Other areas being taken forward through the Accountable Care 
Partnership include:

 Frailty – Reviewing services for the frail elderly (whole system) to 
provide improved support in the community and avoid 
unnecessary hospital attendance and admission.  JW felt this 
may be an item of interest for a future meeting of the forum.  
Forum to consider.

 Cardiovascular Disease – prevention, management and 
treatment.

All

Item 8 – Future Agenda Items
7th March 2018 – Adult Social Care – providers work on dementia.  
Providers to give a snapshot of any specific work they are undertaking/ 
highlight any gaps for Barnsley in order to consider a more co-ordinated 
approach.   HJ to request AS, Alzheimers Society to lead discussion and 
provide any available facts/figures for Barnsley. 
CCG Priorities – potential topics as outlined in Item 7

HJ

Item 8 – Date of next meeting – 7 March 2018
Future meetings in 2018 all at 10.00 at Gateway Plaza
13th June
12th September
12th December

Page 48



BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

STRONGER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP 

TUESDAY, 14 AUGUST 2017:  13:30 – 16:30

Attendees:

Cllr Chris Lamb (Chair) BMBC – Councillor
Cllr Jenny Platts BMBC - Councillor
Phil Hollingsworth BMBC – Service Director
Marie Hoyle Barnsley CCG – Kakoty Practice Manager
Lennie Sahota BMBC – Interim Service Director
Margaret Libreri BMBC – Service Director
Dave Fullen Berneslai Homes - Director
Cath Bedford Barnsley CCG – Public Health Principal
Carrie Abbott BMBC – Service Director
Adrian England Healthwatch
Phil Parkes SYHA
Mel Fitzpatrick BMBC – Strategic Governance  & Partnership Manager
Sharon Pitt BMBC (Minutes)

Apologies:-   

Wendy Lowder BMBC – Executive Director
Paul Clifford BMBC – Head of Economic Development
Jade Rose Barnsley CCG 
Sarah Drafz BMBC – Business Improvement &Intelligence
Pete Sheldon BMBC – Business Improvement & Intelligence
Tom Smith BMBC – Head of Employment & Skills
Lisa Phelan VAB

MINUTES 
1. Welcome, Introductions & Apologies

Cllr Lamb welcomed everyone to the meeting, introductions were made and apologies 
noted as above.

2. Minutes and matters arising from last meeting held 14/02/2017

Item 1(c) Action Log - Dave Fullen confirmed he had suggested that the roll-out of 
Universal Credit should be discussed at a future meeting and not that he would provide 
an update. 
Action:   Sharon Pitt to amend minutes 

It was confirmed that universal credit cases had been discussed at the Anti-Poverty 
Group meeting the previous day and that Michelle Kaye will pick up this work.
Action:  Universal Credit to be scheduled for a future meeting.

Page 49

HWB.30.01.2018/6



Actions Update:
Item 2 (b) Anti Poverty Group
Action - Andrea/Michelle – to revamp programme of workforce development – 
Delivery Plan taken to Group 14/08 (details confirmed under Item 4 (b)) Workforce 
development programme to be developed across the Stronger Communities 
Partnership under the proposed review Task and Finish Group - Action for Anti-Poverty 
Group discharged.

Action:  Andrea/Michelle to discuss approaches to staff poverty with Trade 
Unions – No work done with Trade Unions as yet.  Phil H will raise this with Unison at 
a meeting he is attending with Trade Unions on 16/08.

Children and Families Group
Action:  Margaret Libreri to provide data on early help referral – Item to be 
scheduled for a future meeting.

Delivery Framework
Action:  Partnership Co-ordinator to plan a future meeting to consider the 
approach to measuring impact – Action to be progressed through Partnership 
Review Task and Finish Group – action discharged.

3. Output Report and Update from Development Session on 23/05/2017

Phil Hollingsworth provided members with a progress update in relation to the 
recommendations outlined in the report produced following the Stronger Communities 
Partnership Development Session in May 2017.  The recommendations were:

 Undertake a governance review of the Stronger Communities Partnership 
 Develop a clear branding
 Develop a system wide performance framework
 Delivery Groups to review Delivery Plans and align to All Age Early Strategy
 Develop a Whole System Early Help Workforce Development Programme

Task & Finish Groups will be established in September 2017 and held bi-weekly to 
progress the recommendations and a further report will be submitted to the Stronger 
Communities Partnership in November 2017 to outline proposals in response to the 
findings and recommendations from the Development Session.

Cath Bedford confirmed that Barnsley CCG had done some work with Julia Burrows on 
the operational model for 0-19 which will be relevant.

Cllr Lamb questioned whether there was a risk that workforce development expertise 
would not be maximised unless the relevant resources were engaged in the review.  
Phil Hollingsworth advised that partner organisations would be approached to nominate 
workforce representatives to support the review and development of the All Age Early 
Help Workforce Development Programme.

Marie Hoyle confirmed that GP practices are now all using the same workforce 
development tool (HEE) which will feed through CCG where the data is collated with 
health partners and SWYPT.  The data captured by this system will be relevant to the 
development of the Stronger Communities Partnership Workforce Development 
Programme. 

Page 50



Marie Hoyle highlighted that in terms of early help approaches, IHART has been 
promoted but needs to be advertised more IHART365 has now been set up for out of 
hours and weekends to try and prevent people from going to A&E.

Dave Fullen confirmed that Berneslai has joint arrangements in place with BMBC 
regarding safeguarding training and ICT and advised that joint procurement is in place 
for implementation of a new on-line training system as a shared resource.

Phil Parkes suggested that going forward, it would be helpful to include private sector 
representation in the development of the All Age Early Help Workforce Programme to 
ensure staff based in areas with high public footfall were able to access appropriate 
Early Hep training and development.  Phil suggested that the Barnsley & Rotherham 
Chamber of Commerce may be able to provide support with identifying appropriate 
organisations.

Cllr Lamb asked whether Delivery Groups had nominated representatives for the 
Partnership Review Task and Finish Group.   Mel Fitzpatrick confirmed that that the 
Anti-Poverty Board had provided two representatives and that nominations had been 
requested from the Early Help Adults and Early Help Children and Families Delivery 
Groups.  Adrian England requested that he be invited to take part in the Partnership 
Review Task and Finish Group.

Action:  Mel Fitzpatrick to chase up representation from Delivery Groups and 
invite Adrian England to the Partnership Review Task and Finish Group 
meetings.

4. Delivery Group Highlight Reports

Early Help (Adults) Delivery Group  

Phil Hollingsworth apologised for the lateness of the report following the meeting on 
03/08 but he had been on leave.  He confirmed that the Delivery Plan action dates had 
passed with the majority being delivered.  Phil highlighted that:  

 All actions have been reviewed and 8 outcomes identified beneath the 3 
priorities of the All Age Early Help Strategy.

 Actions have been firmed up with timescales in terms of a clear forward plan
 Carers Strategy has been finalised
 Social prescribing service has commenced
 Alignment of the Local Integration Board into the delivery group is underway
 Terms of Reference have been reviewed

The 8 outcomes will go into the new Delivery Plan and meetings will be held more 
frequently.

Phil Hollingsworth advised that attendance at the Early Help Adults Delivery Group 
needs to be strengthened but that the group had experienced a number of personnel 
changes in recent times.  This issue will be picked up as part of the governance review.

Adrian England confirmed that Healthwatch had a particular interest in the Carers 
Strategy and suggestions were made that it might be helpful to develop a branding for 
the Carers Strategy:  ‘Barnsley Cares’ was suggested.

Page 51



It was noted that 53 pharmacies and GP practices now have dementia friends and an 
Operation Carer communication model is in place.  Healthwatch’s annual report 
encouraged all carers to register with their GPs.  

Anti-Poverty Delivery Group

Cllr Platts confirmed that the Delivery Plan was taken to the Group meeting on 14/08 
where 4 themes were agreed and leads identified : 

 Food access (Andrea Hoyland until the Feeding Britain Steering Group is in 
place) - 20 providers provide food across the borough and 2 meetings have 
been held.  The next is on 04/10 when representatives will be identified to form a 
Steering Group which will meet every 6 weeks.

 Welfare Reform and Financial Inclusion (Michelle Kaye)
 Workforce Development (Alex Longley)
 Performance (Elizabeth Pitt)

Food Access Network has been established and ‘Holiday Hunger’ funding has been 
secured, with Alexandrea Rose Voucher scheme extended to a 3 year scheme in the 
Central Area with plans to expand.

Cllr Platts outlined that links need to be further strengthened with education in relation 
to addressing the anti-poverty needs of children. Education representative from 
Schools Alliance needs to be identified to attend meetings and feedback.  
Action:  Margaret Libreri to identify representative from Schools Alliance.

Cath Bedford confirmed that CCG had never been represented and this may be due to 
capacity issues but suggested a connection be made through Public Health.  In 
addition a link is needed between the Partnership and the Health & Wellbeing Board.  
Mel Fitzpatrick advised that Stronger Communities Partnership in governance terms 
reports to the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Children & Families Delivery Group

Margaret Libreri confirmed that satisfactory progress has been made through co-
ordination with Family Centres and the Action Plan for 2017/18 has been refreshed 
with more emphasis on partnership engagement and spreading responsibility for early 
help.  Margaret Libreri highlighted that:

 The number of families accessing support through Family Centres is good, 
especially those families having children in the 5 to 11 years old age range. 

 Early help is still an issue with secondary schools but some headway has been 
made with schools now initiating referrals.

 Step down arrangements have been strengthened to support families
 A Peer Challenge was held on children missing out on education and linked with 

access to services.
 Multi agency links have been re-emphasised in relation early help.
 All cases open for more than 2 years are being reviewed
 Staff are accessing early help training with the emphasis on developing the 

partnership role.
 Stronger links are being developed with  programme in relation to early mental 

health intervention

Page 52



Adrian England reported that a survey had been carried out with 6 primary schools in 
different areas of the borough from which it was ascertained that 50% of the children 
had not visited the dentist in the last 6 months.  The intention is that this survey will be 
extended to all primary schools in the next 12 months.  Carrie Abbott confirmed that 
they had carried out research with primary schools regarding oral health which was 
written up in their annual report.  She asked Adrian to let her have a copy of the 
Healthwatch report.  Margaret Libreri confirmed that work was being undertaken with 
early years providers to push the importance of oral health.
Action:  Adrian England to email Carrie Abbott a copy of the Healthwatch report 
regarding oral health (carrieabbott@barnsley.gov.uk)

Marie Hoyle asked whether the Public Health Team are notified when a child moves 
into the area as GPs have recently been requested by the SWYT Child Team, through 
the Practising Managers’ meeting, to let them have details of any children who have 
moved into the area.  They have not been asked for this information before.  No official 
notification is made and there are issues with families who move into the area who do 
not register with a GP. This is a particular issue with travelling families.  

 5. Future Model – Adult Social Care (Presentation)

Lennie Sahota gave a presentation on the ASC Delivery Model. A report was taken to 
the Council’s Senior Management Team regarding changes made to Adult Social Care 
and Wendy Lowder suggested that it would be helpful to update the Partnership 
regarding the changes.

Lennie Sahota outlined that the key changes are to:
 Retain a single point of access through CAT1 but move CAT 2 function into 

teams
 Strengthen the hospital social work team
 Move responsibility for Autism to Learning Disabilities to Locality Teams and 

Asperger’s to Mental Health
 Create 3 locality teams (based on area council boundaries), 2 Learning 

Disabilities/Autism/Vulnerable Adult teams, and 1 review team for Op 
Residential & Nursing Care

 Retain DoLs team with management through Mental Health Team Manager and 
team to be supported by BIA’s in other teams undertaking DoLs assessments.

 Retain Brokerage but only for cases that require brokerage input

It is proposed the amended Target Operating Model will go live in September 2017. 

Adrian England welcomed the changes but stressed the importance of data being 
accurate and in the correct place on the ERICA system. Tracking is vitally important.  
Lennie Sahota confirmed that the data quality of cases is being examined to ensure 
this is accurate and regularly reviewed.  A question was asked regarding vulnerable 
adults and the 3 categories of mental health, learning disabilities and DoLs and the fact 
that older people could go into any category.  Lennie Sahota confirmed that people will 
be categorised according to ongoing need. 

Lennie Sahota confirmed that the system will go live on 11/09/17 rather than 04/09/17 
due to other ongoing changes with the ERICA system.  He also confirmed there are 
changes for staff but there have been no job losses.  Staff have been involved and 
agreed the changes and an advert has gone out for the additional Team Manager post 
created.

Page 53

mailto:carrieabbott@barnsley.gov.uk


It was suggested that the presentation could be shared with other staff to appraise 
them of the changes being made, however it was pointed out that the existing single 
point of access will remain.
Action:  Future Model – Adult Social Care presentation to be circulated to the 
Partnership for dissemination to staff as required.

6. Forward Plan
Phil Hollingsworth confirmed that a Forward Plan had been drawn together detailing a 
work programme and actions for future meetings, a copy of which had been circulated 
prior to the meeting.  Phil Hollingsworth requested that any future agenda items be 
forwarded to Mel Fitzpatrick for inclusion on the Forward Plan.

Suggestions were made in relation to further items to be included in the Partnership 
Plan:

21 November 2017 meeting 
 Social Prescribing presentation - Phil Parkes and CCG representative.  Item to 

provide a progress update of how the scheme is operating and issues being 
dealt with.  Cath Bedford suggested this should be a joint presentation from both 
the commissioner and provider and that the inclusion of an anonymous case 
from referral to outcome.

19 February 2018 meeting 
 Supported accommodation and housing item – Phil Parkes to lead and link with 

the work undertaken by Jayne Hellowell/Ann Asquith.

Action: Board members to forward any proposed agenda items to Mel Fitzpatrick 
for inclusion on the forward plan.

7. Any Other Business

Partnership Terms of Reference and membership to be reviewed by the Partnership 
Review Task and Finish Group and recommendations presented back to the November 
2017 meeting.  Group to ensure both membership lists and circulation lists align.
Action:  Refreshed TOR to be circulated to Partnership for feedback re remit of 
the Board, governance and amended membership/circulation following 
consideration by the Partnership Review Task and finish Group.

8. Date & Time of Next Meeting:

Tuesday, 21 November 2017
13:30 – 16:30
Shaw Lane Sports Club, Griffin Suite

Page 54



Action Schedule from Minutes 14/08/17

1. (c)
Action Notes – Brought Forward from 14 Feb 2017

Dave Fullen confirmed he had suggested that the roll-out of Universal 
Credit should be discussed at a future meeting and not that he would 
provide an update – Sharon Pitt to amend minutes

Universal Credit to be Agenda item for future meeting – Agenda item for 
21/11/17

 2.  (b) Andrea/Michelle to discuss approaches to staff re poverty with Trade 
Unions – Phil Hollingsworth to raise this with Unison at a meeting 
with Trade Unions on 16/08

      (c) Margaret Libreri to provide data on early help referral sources for the next 
meeting – carried forward to 21/11/17

3.  Partnership Co-ordinator to plan a future meeting to consider the approach 
to measuring impact – action discharged 

3.

Actions Notes – 15 August 2017

Mel Fitzpatrick to chase up representation from Delivery Groups and invite 
Adrian England to the Partnership Review Task and Finish Group 
meetings.

4.  (a) Margaret Libreri to identify representative from Schools Alliance

     (b) Adrian England to email Carrie Abbott a copy of the Healthwatch report re 
oral health

5. Future Model – Adult Social Care presentation to be circulated to the 
Partnership for dissemination to staff as required

6. Board Members to forward any proposed agenda items to Mel Fitzpatrick 
for inclusion on the forward plan.

7. Refreshed TOR to be circulated to Partnership for feedback re remit of the 
Board, governance and amended membership/circulation following 
consideration by the Partnership Review Task and finish Group.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Stronger Communities Partnership Board
Tuesday, 21 November 2017 :  13:30 – 16:30

Shaw Lane Sports Club – Griffin Suite

Minutes
Attendees:
Cllr Chris Lamb :  BMBC - Councillor (Chair)
Phil Hollingsworth :  BMBC – Communities Service Director, 
Tom Smith :  BMBC – Head of Service, Place
Margaret Libreri :  BMBC – Service Director (Children) Educ & Early Start Prev
Carrie Abbott :  BMBC – Service Director, Public Health
Lennie Sahota :  BMBC – Service Director (Adults) Social Care & Health
Cllr Jenny Platts :  BMBC - Cabinet Member Communities
Adrian England :  Healthwatch
Lisa Phelan :  Voluntary Action Barnsley
Phil Parkes :  SYHA
Dave Fullen :  Berneslai Homes
Wendy Lowder :  BMBC - Executive Director, Communities
Michelle Kaye :  BMBC – Housing & Welfare Service Manager
Joanne Dearnley :  Department of Work & Pensions
Nina Sleight :  BMBC – Head of Early Start, Prevention & Sufficiency

Apologies:  Cath Bedford : Barnsley CCG

1. Welcome, Introductions & Apologies
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  
Apologies were received and noted from the above member.

Minutes of last meeting / Action Log
Minutes of the meeting held on 14/08/17 were agreed as a true copy.

Actions update from 14/02/2017
Item 2 (b) : Andrea/Michelle to discuss approaches to staff re poverty with Trade 
Unions – Phil Hollingsworth to raise this with Unison - Ongoing

Item 2 :  Margaret Libreri to provide data on early help referral sources for the 
next meeting – Action discharged

Actions update from 15/08/2017
Item 3 :   Mel Fitzpatrick to chase up representation from Delivery Groups & invite 
Adrian England to the Partnership Review Task & Finish Group – Action 
discharged.

Page 57



Item 4 a) :  Action - Anti-Poverty Group – Margaret Libreri to identify 
representative from Schools Alliance  - Carried forward to next meeting on 
19/02/18.

Item 4 b) :  Adrian England to email Carrie Abbott a copy of the Healthwatch 
Report re oral health – Action discharged

Item 5 :  Future Model – Adult Social Care presentation to be circulated to the 
Partnership for dissemination to staff as required – Action discharged

Item 6 :  Board Members to forward any proposed agenda items to Mel Fitzpatrick 
for inclusion on the forward plan – Action discharged

Item 7 :  Refreshed TOR to be circulated to Partnership for feedback re remit of 
the Board, governance and amended membership/circulation following 
consideration by the Partnership Review Task & Finish Group – Action 
discharged

Actions update from 21/11/2017
Item 3 :  Performance Framework to be developed aligned to the strategic 
priorities – Each delivery group has been asked to identify 10 key measures and 
a report will come to the next meeting for discussion around ongoing work in 
respect of performance measures. 

Item 7 :  Members to think about items for the Forward Plan 

2. Universal Credit and impact of Welfare Reform
A video was presented to the meeting to show Universal Credit in action and the 
process to access this online.  The process is simple and takes approximately 20 
minutes for a single person and an hour for a couple.  A homepage will be 
created which details all the information in respect of any claim submitted.

This fully digital service replaces 6 other benefits and only people in supported 
housing are not covered.  In addition if people have more than 2 dependent 
children they must continue to claim legacy benefits but this will change in the 
future.  

The system is digital by default and some people do struggle with this if they 
cannot access the internet at home.  The system is available over the phone but 
this is more difficult.  There is a Digital Champion who is in Barnsley Job Centre 
every working day who can help with the process and assist people improve their 
IT skills.  There is also an appointment based service at Wombwell and 
Goldthorpe.  The whole borough went live on 14 November. 

Main issue is that there is a 6 weeks delay before people receive their money.  
Discussions are taking place about reducing this to 4 weeks but advances are 
available for up to 50% and work coaches should tell people this.  An agreement 
is then entered into for this to be paid back over an agreed period of up to 6 
months.  If a person has been on previous benefit then this will be spaced over 12 
months and is interest free.  There are issues with people not spending the 

Page 58



money on rent and arrears building up with the result that private landlords are 
reluctant to take tenants who are claiming Universal Credit. There is an option to 
have the money paid direct to Landlords if there are personal budgeting issues.    

If any further information is required then members should contact 
joannedearnley@dwp.gsi.gov.uk  or michellekaye@barnsley.gov.uk

Cllr Lamb thanked Michelle for the very informative presentation.
 

3. Review Task & Finish
Phil Hollingsworth reported that following the Stronger Communities Development 
Session in May 2017 a Task & Finish Group was set up consisting of the Delivery 
Group Lead Officers to discuss and formulate the next steps and priority actions 
to take forward the recommendations outlined in the Development Session 
Output Report.  This report provides Board members with key actions against the 
agreed recommendations.

 Full governance review is undertaken on the partnership  and its 
delivery infrastructure – The Group felt it was important to keep the 
existing delivery groups and a diagram has been produced outlining 
strategic, tactical and operational levels. 
Action:  Members to approve the governance structure – Agreed.

 Stronger Communities Partnership to have a clear brand – A logo has 
been developed and brought to the meeting for approval.  This will appear 
on all templates.  
Action:  Members to agree to adopt the logo – Agreed

 Performance Framework to be developed aligned to the strategic 
priorities – Each delivery group has been asked to identify 10 key 
measures and a report will come to the next meeting for discussion around 
ongoing work in respect of performance measures. 
Action:  Agenda item for next meeting 19/02/18

 Delivery Groups to review Delivery Plans – The Stronger Community 
Partnership how has a tighter focus and each delivery group clear leads.  A 
consistent format for plans is now in place to ensure there is no overlap 
between the delivery groups.

 Develop a Whole System Early Help Workforce Development 
Programme - Each delivery group plan contains aspects of workforce 
development but the proposed workshop had to be cancelled.

 Financial Implications – More detail in the future

 Alignment to the Early Help Strategy – More detail in the future

Nine Sleight agreed with elements of workforce development being included in 
each delivery group and pointed out that the reporting mechanism and highlight 
reports should also be streamlined.  

Page 59

mailto:joannedearnley@dwp.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:michellekaye@barnsley.gov.uk


Cllr Platts confirmed that the Anti Poverty Group have looked at workforce 
delivery and any overlaps in respect of the other delivery groups with the result 
that priorities have been reduced.  She also welcomed the work done by Joanne 
Dearnley and Michelle Kaye which is important to their group.

Wendy Lowder stated she needed more clarity re the relationship between 
Stronger Communities and TEG.  Further discussions were needed around 
accountability and the relationship with the Health & Wellbeing Board re 
duplication.

Cllr Lamb asked whether the workshop was going to be reconvened and it was 
confirmed that this will be re-arranged once the relevant member of staff returns 
to work.  

All members agreed that the governance structure and logo should be adopted.
Other recommendations are also agreed.

4, Early Help Referrals & Demand Overview

Nina Sleight presented a report re strategic performance, performance indicators 
plus distance travelled and the difference made to families.  The report details the 
range of activity and which agencies are working on what plus any areas of 
concern.  There has been a continued increase in early help activity over the last 
12 months which prevents problems from escalating and helps families to be 
resilient.

 Key agencies are family centres and primary schools in respect of early 
help initiators. 

 One concern raised is a tendency for initiation to decrease in school 
holiday periods.   However families still meet and are supported. 

 Looking at re-referrals into the early help system within a 12 month period. 
Will look at each case and why these are coming back in. 

 The least deprived area is Penistone and most deprived Dearne North.  
Concern raised around Darfield and Dearne South re low number of 
initiations.

 Early help networks have been launched for all Area Councils so that 
stakeholders can look at data in their area and decide how they can work 
together to improve things. People are being encouraged to participate.  
The networks have been promoted online and with the partnership and 
Bob Dyson, Chair of Safeguarding Board, has attended.

 Early help training is the key to ensuring all agencies are aware of their 
responsibilities and access additional support.  Partners are encouraged to 
ensure that key staff are undertaking early help training.

 Data around initiation by source - partners have agreed to do deep dive 
into their area.  Secondary schools have been identified as not having 
enough involvement and this has formed part of the action plan moving 
forward.  Detailed actions are in the Barnsley Alliance Plan.  Public Health 
Nursing Service is also doing a deep dive and the intention is to now work 

Page 60



closely with them.  Maternity Services are also being considered.  

Cllr Platts recognised that St Helens is high on the scale which means the level of 
deprivation is high but this also indicates that universal services are operating to 
support families which is positive.  There is a good, strong local partnership.

Wendy Lowder thanked Nina for her report which was easy to read and she 
would explore doing the same for Early Help Adults.  Could partner up with 
private sector landlords around vulnerable families.  Nina confirmed that 
Neighbourhood Teams have been briefed and are meeting to look at how this 
integrates around the Hub and neighbourhood services.  

5. Social prescribing
Phil Parkes delivered a presentation on Social Prescribing in relation to people 
with -

 Low level mental health
 A long term managed health condition(s)
 Social isolation
 Frequent attendance at GP practice or other Health & Social Care services

In respect of –
 Connecting & empowering people in their community
 Building people’s resilience and improving their health and wellbeing
 Reducing pressure in the Health & Social Care system, including High 

Intensity Users (HIU)

Wendy thanked Phil for a good presentation. There is exploration around carer 
support and there is more to do re early help for adults plus reflections on 
investing in community capacity building.

Phil confirmed that the challenge is in respect of the over use of the voluntary 
sector and identifying gaps in the service.  ‘Early Doors’ is working well with area 
teams re gathering insights into what people are looking for and bringing 

neighbours together.  Initial success has a lot to do with discussion and whole 
partnership working.

Cllr Lamb thanked Phil for the presentation and the good work being done.  Area 
Teams are the hub of community activity and the Area Manager sits on the 
Steering Group and Social Prescribing.  CAB and Age UK could also be involved.

The pilot will run for another 3 years.

6. Delivery Group Highlight Reports
Anti Poverty – The Action Plan will be refreshed in respect of Actions.  The focus 
of the new plan is on the joint and combined activities of the membership to make 
the most effective use of member time and commitment.  The Group will continue 
to support the oversight of poverty-related activities in the areas of highest need.

Cllr Platts confirmed that the main issue with UC is the 6 week delay and there 

Page 61



are concerns as we approach Christmas.  Families will think about buying 
christmas presents rather than paying rent.  If people make a mistake in the 
process then they are knocked off the system which is a concern.  

Dave Fullen (Berneslai Homes) confirmed that the amount of rent arrears incurred 
by UC tenants was very high and approx £300,000 in arrears will be accrued by 
the end of 12 months. They are therefore using alternative methods of payment.  
They are also concerned about the Christmas period.  424 tenants are on UC at 
the moment and numbers are increasing by approx. 20 per week.  Private 
landlords will increasingly close their doors and it is very difficult for people to get 
out of debt when they are on a low income.

Early Help Adults  - Significant progress has been made to refresh the approach 
of the delivery group, aligned to the work that the Task and Finish Group have 
been leading in response to the recommendations.  The Group met on 4 October 
to undertake a fundamental review of the delivery plan and re-aligned this to the 
All Age Early Help strategy priorities.
  
Live Well Barnsley – info is now locally based.  Limited resources available so 
making community contacts as well as professional contacts.  Social Prescribing 
can also access this.  Launch delayed to allow for staff training.  Data can be 
manipulated to suit the individual.

Key achievements identified this period and detailed in the report –  SYFR Safe 
and Well, CCG Acute Frailty Network, Lottery Place Based Social Action 
programme, Age Friendly Barnsley conference, Stay Well This Winter, Social 
Prescribing, SYFAB Funding Advice, launch of Crowdfund Barnsley, Independent 
Living at Home, Carers’ Strategy, programmes to target barriers to employment, 
More and Better Jobs Employer Pledge, Live Well Barnsley. 

Early Help Children – The action plan has been agreed and aligns with the All 
Age Early Help Strategy and Continuous Service Improvement Plan for Children’s 
Services.  Achievements this period, and which are detailed in the report, are – 
launch of Early Help Helps video, training for CAMHS new staff, strengthening of 
CAMHS referral process, targeted briefings with SY PCSO’s and Police Officers 
in SNS, development of workshop re creating a good early help assessment and 
action plan, strengthening of performance reporting, closure programme for long 
running cases, Fair Access procedure update.

 There is an emphasis on training and support re partner engagement and 
specific work with CAMHS and SY Police.   

 Maximise use of the Family Star to track progress and impact for families.  
Performance info can confirm where things are working and where they 
are not.  

 Drawing up improvement plans re involvement of secondary schools to 
engage with early help and this will continue looking at how we work with 
health partners re mandatory checks.  CAMHS are doing training re early 
help as mandatory.  

 Good engagement in the group from all partner agencies.  

Page 62



7. Forward Plan

Action:  Members to think about items for the Forward Plan 

8. Any Other Business 

No further business identified.

9. Date of Next Meeting

Monday, 19 February 2018
13:30 – 16:30
Venue to be confirmed

Page 63



Action Schedule 

Actions update from 14/02/2017
Item 2 (b) : Andrea/Michelle to discuss approaches to staff re poverty with Trade 
Unions – Phil Hollingsworth to raise this with Unison - Ongoing

Actions update from 15/08/2017
Item 4 a) :  Action - Anti-Poverty Group – Margaret Libreri to identify 
representative from Schools Alliance  - Carried forward to next meeting on 
19/02/18.

Actions update from 21/11/2017
Item 3 :  Performance Framework to be developed aligned to the strategic 
priorities – Each delivery group has been asked to identify 10 key measures and 
a report will come to the next meeting for discussion around ongoing work in 
respect of performance measures. 

Item 7 :  Members to think about items for the Forward Plan 

Page 64



1 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

8 September 2017 

 

The Boardroom, 722 Prince of Wales Road 

 

 

Decision Summary 
 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

88/17 National update  (a) that a mechanism would be put in place to provide 
updates on the national workstreams for the ACS 
(WCG)  

89/17 Hospital Services 
Review  

(a) that a discussion would take place outside of the 
session on the Hospital Services Review (HSR) public 
engagement event that took place in August 2017 
(MR/HS/AN) 
 

(b) that a clear definition of the five specialties for CPB 
would be developed as part of the paper for  the HSR 
Steering Board (AN) 

 

(c) that the work must be put in context of all other 
services, linking to the fourth objective of the HSR 
(AN) 

 

(d) that the section 1a report would record all governance 
clearly (AN) 

 

91/17 Communications and 
engagement strategy 

(a) that a meeting would be established of all 
communications directors across the patch, attended 
and supported by CEOs to work through resources to 
deliver the strategy (HS) 
 

92/17 Workstream Charters (a) that all provide comments on charters and the 
workforce strategy presented to Marianna Hargeaves 
in the ACS team (ALL) 

 

93/17 Finance update  (a) that the Directors of Finance develop 3-5 key areas to 
accelerate the transformation programme for 18/19 
finances across the system to bring about the largest 
savings, to be produced on three tiers: by 
organsation, place and system level (JC) 

Page 65

HWB.30.01.2018/7



2 

 

 

 

  (b) that business rules, with a clear and defined set of 
criteria around transformation funding would be 
developed for the next available CPB (JC) 

94/17 Cancer 62 day 
recovering and 
assurance 
 

(a) that all confirmed each place would work to the 
agreed inter-provider transfer policy to ensure the 
ACS would meet the 62 day recovery target (ALL) 
 

(b) that each organisation was asked to consider 
representation at the Cancer Alliance Board and 
confirm amendments to LS (ALL)   

 

96/17 Primary Care 
workforce 
 

(a) that a business case would be presented in 
conjunction with the Primary Care Steering board 
around resources required to support the findings of 
the SYB Primary Care Workforce Group  

 
 
 

  

Page 66



3 

 

 

 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

8 September 2017 

 

The Boardroom, 722 Prince of Wales Road 

 

 
 

Name Organisation Designation Present Apologies Deputy for 

Sir Andrew Cash 
CHAIR  

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

ACS Lead/Chair and 
CEO, Sheffield 
Teaching Hospitals NHS 
FT  

  


  

Adrian England Healthwatch Barnsley Chair 


  
  
 

Ainsley Macdonnell  
Nottinghamshire County 
Council  

Service Director 
 


Anthony 
May CEO 

Alison Knowles 
Locality Director North 
of England, 

NHS England  


    

Alan Davis  
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Deputy Chief Executive    

Alexandra Norrish  
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Programme Director – 
Hospital Services 
Review  

   

Andrew Hilton  Sheffield GP Federation GP     

Anthony May 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council 

Chief Executive 


 
 

Ben Jackson 
Academic Unit of 
Primary Medical Care, 
Sheffield University 

Senior Clinical Teacher 
 

  

Chris Edwards 
NHS Rotherham Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Des Breen 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Medical Director      

Diana Terris 
Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive 


 
 

Greg Fell Sheffield City Council  Director of Public Health 


 
John 
Mothersole 
CEO 

Fiona Goudie 
Sheffield Health & 
Social Care NHS FT 
 

Clinical Director for 
Strategic Partnerships 
Consultant Clinical 
Psychologist 

   

Frances Cunning 
Yorkshire & the Humber 
PHE Centre 
 

Deputy Director – Health 
& Wellbeing 
 

     

Hayley Tingle  
NHS Doncaster Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Chief Finance Officer    
Jackie 
Pederson 

Helen Stevens 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS  

Assc. Director of 
Comms & Engagement 

     

Page 67



4 

 

 

Idris Griffiths 
NHS Bassetlaw Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer      

Jackie Pederson 
NHS Doncaster Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Accountable Officer 


   

Janette Watkins 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Director      

Janet Wheatley  
Voluntary Action 
Rotherham 

Chief Executive     

Jeremy Cook 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Interim Director of 
Finance 


 

  

John Mothersole 
 

Sheffield City Council 
 

 

Chief Executive 
 

  
 

John Somers  
Sheffield Children’s 
Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Executive 
 

  

Jo Miller 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive     

Julia Burrows Barnsley Council Director of Public Health      

Kate Woods SYB ACS 
Project Management 
Office, Project Manager 

   

Kathryn Singh 
Rotherham, Doncaster 
and South Humber NHS 
FT 

Chief Executive 


   

Kevan Taylor 
Sheffield Health and 
Social Care NHS FT 

Chief Executive 


   

Lesley Smith 
NHS Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

SYB ACS System 
Reform Lead, Chief 
Officer, NHS Barnsley 
CCG 

     

Louise Barnett 
The Rotherham NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive   


  

Mark Janvier  NHS England 
Head of Operations and 
Delivery  

 
Alison 
Knowles  

Maddy Ruff 
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer   


  

Matthew Groom 
NHS England 
Specialised 
Commissioning 

Assistant Director       

Matthew Robinson  
 

Health Education 
England 

NHS Graduate 
Management Training 
Scheme Trainee 

   

Matthew Sandford 
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust 

Associate Director of 
Planning & Dev  

   
Rod 
Barnes 

Mike Curtis 
Health Education 
England 

Local Director      

Neil Taylor 
Bassetlaw District 
Council  

Chief Executive 


    

Paul Moffat 
Doncaster Children’s 
Services Trust 

Director of Performance, 
Quality and Innovation 

 
 

Paul Smeeton 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Operating 
Executive 

     

Richard Henderson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Chief Executive 


 
 

Richard Jenkins 
Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive 
  

Richard Parker 
Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT 

Chief Executive      

Richard Stubbs 
The Yorkshire and 
Humber Academic 

Acting Chief Executive 


   

Page 68



5 

 

 

Health Science Network  

Rob Webster 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Chief Executive 


    

Rod Barnes  
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust  

Chief Executive     

Roger Watson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Consultant Paramedic 
Operations 


 

Richard 
Henderson 

Rupert Suckling 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Director of Public Health      

Ruth Hawkins  
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Chief Executive     

Sharon Kemp 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive       

Simon Morritt 
Chesterfield Royal 
Hospital 

Chief Executive  
  

Steve Shore Healthwatch Doncaster  Chair   


  
 

Tim Moorhead  
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Clinical Chair   
 
 

Will Cleary-Gray 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Sustainability & 
Transformation Director 

     

 
 
 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

84/17 Welcome and introductions  
 
The Chair welcomed members to the meeting. It was noted that a 
strong structure was now in place for collaborative working for the 
population of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SYB).  The vision of the 
Accountable Care System (ACS) was reiterated as: 
 

- To deliver the best health and care system in the country 
- To deliver the social determinants of health for the population 

that the ACS serves 
 
The ACS would now move into phase 2. A dashboard would be 
presented to the ACS Executive Steering Group and implemented by 
the October CPB meeting, developing an understanding of how this 
translated in terms of delivery within each ACP. Cancer would be a 
priority (62 day delivery), as would finances and the key 
transformation projects (an opening draft of key 3 priorities would be 
presented at coming CPBs).  AJC raised the need for clear leadership 
arrangements and set of behaviours to enable the system to help with 
potential issues through collaboration. Finally, the ACS must sign off 
the national MOU by 18th September.  
 

 

85/17 Apologies for absence 
 
AJC noted apologies for absence. 
 

 

86/17 Minutes of the previous meeting held 14th July 2017 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true record. 
 

 
 

Page 69



6 

 

 

87/17 Matters arising  
 
ACS Memorandum understanding (MOU) 75/17 
It was reported that two meetings had taken place with the SYB 
Health and Wellbeing Board Chairs. A joint statement would be 
produced to be used for responses around the MOU, supporting the 
direction of travel. A further meeting would take place with AJC on 
place plans. A meeting was also held with Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) Chief Officers, identifying a number of areas they are 
working on at place level that they wish to collaborate on and share 
learning.  
 
All other items would be picked up as part of the agenda.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

88/17 National Update  
 
ACS Development Day 
A national event took place on 19th July formally launching 44 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships.  AJC updated all on 
the session which was set out in three parts: 
 

 An STP launch, attended by leaders and the media – 
introducing the scoring system and the 8 advanced ACSs 

 A session of the 8 leading ACSs private session with Jeremy 
Hunt and other leaders. This included a question and answer 
session 

 A discussion around national workstreams 
 
WCG would ensure a mechanism was put in place to provide updates 
on the national workstreams.  
 
Development days would take place each quarter.  
 
National MOU  
All had signed up to the direction of travel. Finances and delivery 
would be crucial for the ACS. SK advised that correspondence would 
be received around this from the Local Authorities. WCG asked the 
group to note the link with the regulators. This was clear in the 
national MOU in terms of how the ACS lead would engage with NHS 
England and NHS Improvement (NHSE/NHSI) and the detail of this 
work would be addressed over the next six months. The scorecard for 
the system that would be implemented from quarter 3 onwards. Some 
improvement was required on this for the ACS. This would be worked 
on as a system.  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WILL CLEARY-
GRAY 

89/17 Hospital Services Review  
 
A presentation was delivered on progress of the review.  
 
The group was reminded of the objectives of the review, noting the 
work would: 
 

• Define and agree a set of criteria for what constitutes 
‘Sustainable Hospital Services’ for each Place and for South 
and Mid Yorkshire, North Derbyshire and Bassetlaw. 

• Identify any services (or parts of services) that are 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



7 

 

 

unsustainable, short, medium and long-term including tertiary 
services delivered within and beyond the ACS 

• Put forward future service delivery model or models which will 
deliver sustainable hospital services 

• Consider how local services can continue to be provided for 
the whole population of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw in the 
context of the aspirations outlined in the South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) and 
emergent models of sustainable service provision 

 
A request was made for a steer from the CPB on: 

 

 Whether the Partnership Board was content to agree the 
proposed approach to reviewing services. 

 Whether the Partnership Board was content with the approach 
that the review will take over the next 2 months. 

  
The group was invited to comment.   
 
For clarity, the group was advised that the ACS Oversight and 
Assurance Group would oversee the process.  
 
Regarding maternity, CE advised that the Better Births guidance had 
stipulated that maternity services needed transforming. The current 
offer in SYB was focused on consultant led services. This was 
happening in parallel to the HSR. Regarding the acute paediatrics 
work, maternity must be addressed at the same time.  
 
A comment was noted around the process and how decisions were 
made around the 20 services. It is crucial that the messages for the 
public need to be clear and transparent. Regarding the message for 
the services not included, it was confirmed that this needed to be clear 
and transparent also.  This was agreed.  
 
A comment was made around the emphasis of this work. It had been 
understood that the work was to address what was currently not 
sustainable and felt that the review had moved towards implementing 
new guidance.  
 
A request was made that checks be done to ensure the CQC 
guidance was correct.  
 
Regarding process and transparency, AN confirmed that the 
interdependencies between maternity and acute paediatrics in 
conjunction meant they would need to be addressed together. The 
workstream must be fully open and transparent as to why this was the 
case.  
 
The CPB was updated on the next steps.   
 
Regarding stroke and the review of the Hyper Acute Stroke Units, a 
comment was made that the decision process around this should not 
be delayed while the HSR work was taking place.  
 
Some concerns raised at the NHS Sheffield governing body meeting 
around the public engagement session held in August 2017 would be 
picked up outside of the session. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
A NORRISH, 
M RUFF, 
H STEVENS 
 

Page 71



8 

 

 

Regarding Urgent and Emergency Care, a comment was made that 
the review needed to clearly describe how a member of the public 
would access the service they require.  
 
A comment was made around the importance of a consistent 
assessment across the patch.  
 
A comment was made that there were workforce challenges around 
maternity and acute however there were also gaps in other services.  
 
A discussion took place around the fourth objective of the HSR, and a 
comment made that this required further consideration setting in 
context of local place system and the wider ACS. Need to consider 
strategically and then the challenge of configuring a system that meets 
the needs across the patch.  
 
AJC summarised the discussion: 
 

 A clear definition of the five specialties for CPB would be 
developed as part of the paper for  the HSR Steering Board 

 Maternity was included due to Better Births report, CQC issues 
and links to the acutely ill child work, and the governance trails 
around this and the stroke work needed to be coherent and 
clear 

 This work referred to planned, specialised and lifetime 
condition services which were urgent services and therefore 
must be put in context of all other services, linking to the fourth 
objective of the HSR 

 The section 1a report would record all governance clearly  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALEXANDRA 
NORRISH  
 

90/17 Oversight and Integrated Operational Report 
 
The CPB noted that work was underway to develop metrics and a 
dashboard to align with a national oversight streamlining piece of 
work. At the ACS Executive Steering Group this would be presented in 
detail. In response to a query, work was happening to break this down 
to place level. The ACS and CPB would receive a single operational 
report.  
 
A comment was made in relation to real time metrics and some 
refinement would be required on the report.   
 
Discussions would take outside the meeting around UEC and 
workforce metrics.  
 
A query was made around collaboration of staff across the system in 
response to an urgent workforce issue, AJC confirmed that the 
business rules needed further clarification.   
 
 

 

91/17 Communications and Engagement Strategy 
 
HS highlighted that the majority of comments and feedback received 
regarding the HSR engagement event held at the source indicated 
that this had been a robust and informative event. All comments and 
feedback would be considered.  
 
Regarding the ACS Strategy, the plan for the forthcoming 6-9 months 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



9 

 

 

and the HSR plan was presented to the group. All were asked to note 
the resource implication put forward due to the work involved to 
engage staff, clinicians and the public.  All were asked to consider 
how much of the current resource in the system could be put forward 
to assist. The importance of this was emphasised by AJC and by LS.  
 
A comment was made that discussion could take place at place level 
to integrate core communications services.  
 
After discussion, it was agreed that a meeting would be established of 
all communications directors across the patch, attending and 
supported by CEOs to work through this.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HELEN 
STEVENS 

92/17 Workstream Charters 
 
Charters were circulated to all on the key areas highlighted, building 
on the original cases for change. The documents presented detail of 
the delivery plans focused on activity, capturing aims, objectives, 
benefits and outcomes. The key three priorities of each workstream 
were being developed. Comments were welcomed over the coming 
weeks. A second tranche of Charters would be circulated for the next 
CPB.  
 
On 19th September, the top three priorities for Urgent and Emergency 
Care, Mental Health and Learning Disabilities and Elective and 
Diagnostics workstreams would be presented. Some focused time 
would be given to these at the October CPB.  
 
The group was asked to note the links to local and national MOUs. It 
was important to connect good work locally with improvement delivery 
and metrics.  
 
The reports were available on the ACS extranet for viewing. 
Comments on the documents should be directed to Marianna 
Hargreaves in the ACS team.  
 
The group was asked to note a different approach to workforce; with a 
strategy developed in place of a charter. Comments and feedback on 
this were welcomed also.  
 
It was noted that the ACS would be as transparent as possible and 
therefore a plain English versions of the charters would be drawn up in 
due course.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALL TO NOTE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93/17 Finance update  
 
JC updated all on key finance developments and the group was 
invited to comment.  
 
Regarding the 18/19 position it was requested that the Directors of 
Finance develop 3-5 key areas to accelerate the transformation 
programme for finances across the system to bring about the largest 
savings. This was agreed would be produced on three tiers, by 
organsation, place and system level.  
 
A comment was made around the benefits of modelling and 
addressing CIP and QIPP plans in collaboration.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
JEREMY COOK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



10 

 

 

A comment was made around ensuring the ACS had a clear and 
defined set of criteria around transformation funding and how this 
would be weighted.  It was agreed that business rules would be 
developed for this and discussed at the next available CPB meeting.  
 
A comment as made on how local place plans were being reviewed 
within the criteria for funding. Clarity on this was welcomed. LAs 
should be collaborated with in partnership to this.  
 
The CPB noted that a pot of money would be available for digital IT 
and this was being worked on.  
 
 

JEREMY COOK 
 
 

94/17 SCR/STP health led IPS employment service 
 
Fiona Goudie updated the CPB members, noting that a bid had been 
successful for £5-6m funding into the Sheffield City Region for a 
health led employment service to support people with mild mental 
health and musculo-skeletal problems to get into work. The trial 
procurement process was out to market. It was noted that this would 
not be the  IAPT workforce.  
 
A joint board between the ACS and the combined authority to oversee 
this work would be established.  
 
There would be an opportunity to bid for national transformation 
money to deliver support and information for people with complex and 
serious mental illness. It was noted that leading ACSs would bid from 
quarter 4 for this on ACS footprint, collaborating with LAs.   
 
RS highlighted a Doncaster bid for funding to support the drug and 
alcohol service.  
 
Members noted the update.  
 
 

 

95/17 Cancer 62 day recovering and assurance 
 
The group, noting the ACS vision to be the best delivery system in 
country, confirmed that all places would work to the agreed inter-
provider transfer policy.  This would help to ensure the ACS would 
meet the 62 day recovery target.  
 
Each organisation was asked to consider representation at the Cancer 
Alliance Board and confirm to LS if wish to amend.  
 
 

 
 
ALL 
 
 
 
ALL  

96/17 Primary Care workforce 
 
A presentation was delivered on the work of the primary care 
workforce group.  
 
The CPB noted the next steps for success: 
 

 Primary Care Programme Board to adopt and operationalize 
the proposal, monitor and report on progress, support co-
ordinated activity across the region 

 Other ACP workstreams to describe impact on primary care 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



11 

 

 

workforce of planned changes 

 Greater understanding of how ‘new models of primary care 
workforce will impact on services  

 
In response to a query around the GP transformation recommendation 
from the primary care workforce to the system it was advised that 
change was required at practice level. Discussions were happening 
around this.  
 
A comment was made that this was core to ensuring the success of 
the ACS agenda. A five year programme would be required. A 
business case would be presented in conjunction with the PC Steering 
board around resources required to support this work.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BEN 
JACKSON 

97/17 Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting will take place on 13th October 2017 at 9.30am to 
11.30am in Birch/Elm Room at Oak House, Rotherham. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 
 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

13 October 2017 

 
Birch and Elm Room, NHS Rotherham CCG, 

Oak House, Moorwhead Way, Rotherham, S66 1YY 

 

Decision Summary 
 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

101/17  Matters Arising (Finance 
Update )   

(a) That 3-5 key areas to accelerate the transformation 
programme and a clear and defined set of criteria 
around transformation funding and how this would be 
weighted would be discussed at Executive Steering 
Group (ESG) and brought back to Collaborative 
Partnership Board (CPB) (JC) 
 

Matters Arising (Cancer 
62 day recovering and 
assurance)  

(a) That each place confirm to Lesley Smith that they 
have implemented and are using the Inter Trust 
Transfer Policy (ITP) (CEs of NHS FTs)  

(b) That each place should revisit members of their 
Cancer Alliance Board and confirm amendments by 
20 October 2017 (CEs of NHS FTs)   
 

102/17 National update  (a) That information following a national meeting of the 
ACS Leads and James Kent would be circulated 
following the meeting (WCG)  
 

103/17  Hospital Services 
Review  

(a) That comments on the Hospital Services Review 
criteria be sent to Alexandra Norrish as soon as 
possible (ALL)  
 

104/17 Communications and 
engagement  

(a) That slides on the ACS awareness campaign would 
be circulated post meeting (HS)  
 

105/17 Workstream priorities  (a) That a comparison of the priorities with the new 
financial modelling would be made to examine 
benefits (JC)  

 
 
 

  

Page 77



2 

 

 

 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

13 October 2017 

 
Birch and Elm Room, NHS Rotherham CCG, 

Oak House, Moorwhead Way, Rotherham, S66 1YY 

 

 
 

Name Organisation Designation Present Apologies Deputy for 

Sir Andrew Cash 
CHAIR 

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

ACS Lead/Chair and 
CEO, Sheffield 
Teaching Hospitals NHS 
FT  

  


  

Adrian Berry 
 

South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Deputy Chief Executive 
 

   

Adrian England Healthwatch Barnsley Chair     
  
 

Ainsley Macdonnell 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council  

Service Director 
 


Anthony 
May CEO 

Alison Knowles 
Locality Director North 
of England, 

NHS England  


    

Alan Davis  
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Director of Human 
Resources 

  
Adrian 
Berry 

Alexandra Norrish  
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Programme Director – 
Hospital Services 
Review  

   

Andrew Hilton  Sheffield GP Federation GP     

Anthony May 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council 

Chief Executive 


 
 

Ben Jackson 
Academic Unit of 
Primary Medical Care, 
Sheffield University 

Senior Clinical Teacher 


    

Caitlin Richens Attain 
NHS Management 
Trainee 

    

Chris Edwards 
NHS Rotherham Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Chris Welsh 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Independent Chair 
Hospital Services 
Review 

    

Des Breen 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Medical Director      

Diana Terris 
Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive 


 
 

Greg Fell Sheffield City Council  Director of Public Health 


 
John 
Mothersole 
CEO 

Frances Cunning 
Yorkshire & the Humber 
PHE Centre 
 

Deputy Director – Health 
& Wellbeing 
 


     

Page 78



3 

 

 

Helen Stevens 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Associate Director of 
Communications & 
Engagement 

     

Idris Griffiths 
NHS Bassetlaw Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer      

Jackie Pederson 
NHS Doncaster Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Jane Anthony 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Corporate Committee 
Administrator, Executive 
PA & Business Manager 

   

Janette Watkins 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Director      

Janet Wheatley  
Voluntary Action 
Rotherham 

Chief Executive     

Jeremy Cook 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Interim Director of 
Finance 


 

  

John Mothersole 
 

Sheffield City Council 
 

 

Chief Executive 
 

   
 

John Somers  
Sheffield Children’s 
Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Executive 


   

Jo Miller 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive     

Julia Burrows Barnsley Council Director of Public Health      

Karen Curran 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

    

Kathryn Singh 
Rotherham, Doncaster 
and South Humber NHS 
FT 

Chief Executive 
 

  

Kevan Taylor 
Sheffield Health and 
Social Care NHS FT 

Chief Executive 


   

Lesley Smith 
NHS Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

SYB ACS System 
Reform Lead, Chief 
Officer, NHS Barnsley 
CCG 

     

Lisa Kell 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Director of 
Commissioning Reform 

   

Louise Barnett 
The Rotherham NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive   


  

Mark Janvier NHS England 
Head of Operations and 
Delivery  

 
Alison 
Knowles  

Maddy Ruff 
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer   


  

Matthew Groom 
NHS England 
Specialised 
Commissioning 

Assistant Director    


  

Matthew Sandford 
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust 

Associate Director of 
Planning & Dev  

   
Rod 
Barnes 

Mike Curtis 
Health Education 
England 

Local Director      

Neil Taylor 
Bassetlaw District 
Council  

Chief Executive      

Paul Moffat 
Doncaster Children’s 
Services Trust 

Director of Performance, 
Quality and Innovation 

 
 

Paul Smeeton 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Operating 
Executive 

    

Richard Henderson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Chief Executive 


 
 

Richard Jenkins 
Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive 


 
 

Page 79



4 

 

 

Richard Parker 
Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT 

Chief Executive      

Richard Stubbs 
The Yorkshire and 
Humber Academic 
Health Science Network  

Acting Chief Executive 
 

  

Rob Webster 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Chief Executive 


    

Rod Barnes  
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust  

Chief Executive     

Roger Watson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Consultant Paramedic 
Operations 

 
Richard 
Henderson 

Rupert Suckling 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Director of Public Health      

Ruth Hawkins  
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Chief Executive     

Sandra Crawford 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Associate Director of 
Transformation 
Local Partnerships 
Division 

  
Paul 
Smeeton 

Sharon Kemp 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive       

Simon Morritt 
Chesterfield Royal 
Hospital 

Chief Executive  
  

Steve Shore Healthwatch Doncaster  Chair   
  
 

Tim Moorhead  
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Clinical Chair   
 
 

Will Cleary-Gray 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Sustainability & 
Transformation Director 

     

 
 
 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

98/17 Welcome and introductions  
 
The Chair welcomed members to the meeting 
 

 

99/17 Apologies for absence 
 
The Chair noted apologies for absence. 
 

 

100/17 Minutes of the previous meeting held 8th September 2017 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true 
record. 
 

 
 

101/17 Matters arising  
 
91/17 – Communications and Engagement Strategy 
A meeting has been arranged for 17th October 2017 and is 
taking place in Sheffield. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



5 

 

 

92/17 – Workstream Charters 
Information is being fed back to Marianna Hargreaves. 
 
93/17(a) – Finance Update 
This is work in progress, a report will be brought back to the 
next Collaborative Partnership Board meeting. 
 
93/17(b) – Finance Update 
This item will be discussed by the Executive Steering Group on 
17th October 2017 and will be brought back to the next 
Collaborative Partnership Board meeting. 
 
94/17(a) – Cancer 62 day recovering and assurance 
By 20th October 2017 each Place should confirm to Lesley 
Smith that they have implemented and are using the Inter Trust 
Transfer Policy (ITP) as they should be using the system. 
 
94/17(b) – Cancer 62 day recovering and assurance 
Each Place should take the opportunity to revisit the 
membership of their Cancer Alliance Board and confirm this and 
any amendments to Lesley Smith by 20th October 2017. 
 
All other items were either completed or would be picked up as 
part of the agenda.  
 
The Chair commented that it would be useful to have the 
quarter two dashboard of the ACS for information only. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Jeremy Cook 
 
 
 
Jeremy Cook 
 
 
 
CEs of NHS 
FTs 
 
 
 

CEs of NHS 
FTs 
 
 

102/17 National Update  
 
CEO ACS Report 
 
The Chair gave his Chief Executive Officer’s report to the 
meeting. 
 
This monthly report provides members with an update on: 
 

 The work on the ACS CEO over the last month. 

 A number of key priorities not covered elsewhere on the 
agenda. 

 
The Chair added that the meeting of 44 ACS and STP leads 
discussed 6 big national items that were also to be applied 
locally: 

1. 111 service - A higher proportion of patients are going to 
A&E and not accessing the 111 service, therefore this 
service is going to be promoted nationally and in future 
there will be more clinical advice available within the 
service. 

2. Ambulance services – the 999 service is going to be 
categorised and graded into tiers. 

3. The standardisation of urgent treatment regarding the 
minor injuries unit walk-ins. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



6 

 

 

4. GP availability and accessing the service out of hours. 
5. GP ‘streaming’ at the front door. 
6. Flu the importance of getting staff vaccinated. 

 
The Chair informed members that at all the meetings he has 
attended recently are dominated by two themes, preparing for 
winter and finance. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board noted the update. 
 
National MOU  
 
Will Cleary-Gray presented the report distilling the key 
deliverables within the National MoU.  The focus will help to 
inform discussions with national bodies as the ACS develops. 
 
The National MoU has been circulated, together with a report 
that summarises the key actions and deliverables expected 
within the National MoU.- 
---------------------- 
The National MoU connects well with our local South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw MoU which focuses on those priorities which are 
important, locally as well as setting out what we need to do to 
address them. 
 
Members noted the update and would use the information to 
facilitate discussions locally.  
 
 
12th October 2017 
Will Cleary-Gray updated members on a visit to meet James 
Kent (the new Advisor of Health to the Prime Minister) at No. 10 
Downing Street and on behalf of the SYP Lead.  The visit was 
with other ACS leads.   
 
James Kent reported that the discussion he had with the ACS 
leads had proved very helpful.  It covered: 

 Political support for the ACSs 

 ACSs are essential to the 5 Year Forward View plan 

 Future of capital funding 

 Funding 

 The Prime Ministers priorities which are (i) getting out of 
the winter cycle, (ii) getting a grip on finances, (iii) 
support to ACS and ACP, (iv) primary care at scale. 

 
Further discussion was balanced between health and care and 
ACS leads shared what they viewed as helpful to support ACS 
development: 
1. Delegation devolved – engage with regulators when 
necessary. 
2. Sustainability and transformation funding and how this flows 
at system level 
3. Specialised commissioning and primary care delegation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



7 

 

 

4. Long term view of capital planning with funding settlement. 
5. All transformational funding into one pot for ACSs. 
 
The programme for the afternoon covered finance, IT strategy, 
resourcing ACSs and next Steps. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray will circulate information from the event to 
members of this group. 
 
The Chair added that there are 4 stakeholder sessions being 
progressed: 

1.  27th October 2017 an event for Governors at Rotherham 
United FC Ground. 

2. Councillors and MPs (date tbc) 
3. Non-executive and lay members (date tbc)  
4. Guiding Coalition (date tbc) 

 
The Chair added that at a local level he had attended Sheffield 
System timeout with all the executives of Trusts, CCGs and 
Councils present.  John Mothersole added that there is an 
acceptance to engage in SYB ACS at a local government level. 
 
National ACS Development Programme – Workstream 
Plans on a Page 
 
This item was a discussion document (not national policy) that 
identified six areas for priority action from a meeting of ACS 
leaders held by Malcolm Macdonnell on 3rd May 2017.  
 

1. Accelerating service improvement 
2. Finance and efficiency 
3. Leadership and governance 
4. System design 
5. Population health management 
6. Communications and engagement 

 
The Chair requested members to take this item as read 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Will Cleary-
Gray 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

103/17 Finance Update 
 
Jeremy Cook, Interim Director of Finance SYB ACS, presented 
his finance report to the meeting.  The report updated members 
on a number of items e.g. recent meetings of Directors of 
Finance, capital matters and transformational funding, financial 
plan refresh, risks, outstanding actions, next steps, hyper acute 
stroke business case and the financial position of the ACS. 
 
The Chair thanked Jeremy Cook for his report. 
 
The Chair added that the contents of the report will be 
discussed in detail at the Executive Steering Group meeting. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray added that each Place required its own Single 

 

Page 83



8 

 

 

Operating Policy to align activity and system and this is 
identified as a prerequisite of becoming an ACS. 
 

103/17 Hospital Services Review 
 
An update on the review was delivered by Professor Chris 
Welsh and Alexandra Norrish.  
 
Members were notified that Stage 1a Report will be published 
on the ACS website once the Oversight and Assurance Group 
has signed it off on 17th October.  The Stage 1a Report will be 
accompanied on the website by: 
 

 The Technical Annexes to the Stage 1a report 

 Terms of Reference for the Clinical Working Group 

 Terms of Reference for the Overarching Group 
 
Professor Welsh and Alexandra Norrish responded to 
comments from members as follows: 
 

 The interdependencies between maternity and acute 
paediatrics meant they would need to be addressed 
together.  The report will not look into individual 
elements. 

 Regarding communications and clarity, partners are 
aware of the challenges of the services.  It is important to 
make the public aware of the challenges well in advance 
of the final report. 

 If we do nothing it may result in the five services 
significantly challenged. 

 The Hospital Services Review has five services that 
cannot be identified formally until the Oversight and 
Assurance Group have formally approved them.   

 The final list will be published soon after the Oversight 
and Assurance Group meeting on Tuesday, 17th October 
2017. 

 A briefing plan has been arranged with Helen Stevens. 
 
A comment was made that maternity was driven by the Better 
Births guidance which was being driven by patients’ voices.   
 
A comment was made about stroke and it being identified as 
one of the five services on the shortlist.  In particular, the 
rationale involved for having an ASU pathway in the Hospital 
Services Review or HASU and ASU at system level. 
 
Professor Chris Welsh stated that there this is a strong rationale 
for including stroke in the Hospital Services Review.  The 
recommendations that come out of the Review will go to 
commissioners who have commissioned the review.   
 
Alexandra Norrish added that it is helpful to have a system wide 
overarching view of a service to support a system wide HASU 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



9 

 

 

and a coherence regarding rehabilitation etc.   
 
After discussion, members agreed to keep stroke in the final 
shortlist of 5 services with the Hospital Services Review and 
discussion relating to the HASU should remain with the Joint 
Committee of Clinical Chairs Group.  
 
The Chair noted that it was essential to convey the importance 
of ‘Place’ in the narrative. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board: 
 
Report 

1. Agreed the text of the report for publication, subject to 
Oversight and Assurance Group comments.  In 
particular: 

a) Agreed to change the definition of a sustainable service 
to include 

 The service is likely to be deliverable within the 
resource envelope that is likely to be available. 

 
b) Agreed the process that has been followed to identify a 

shortlist of services which have been identified as he 
focus of the Review. 

 
c) Agreed the choice of the services for the final shortlist: 

1. Urgent and Emergency Care 
2. Maternity 
3. Care of the Acutely Ill Child 
4. Gastroenterology and Endoscopy 
5. Stroke 

 
Public engagement 

2. Agreed the write-up of the public engagement session, 
for publication subject to Oversight and Assurance Group 
comments. 

 
Terms of Reference 

3. Agreed the revisions to the TOR, in response to 
feedback from lawyers / comms, for publication subject to 
OAG comments. 

 
Presentation 

4. Agreed the draft list of evaluation criteria included in the 
slide presentation. 

 
The Chair thanked Professor Welsh and Alexandra Norrish for 
their attendance at this meeting. 
 
Alexandra Norrish conveyed their thanks to the workstreams 
and staff for all the data they have provided.  She requested 
members to send any comments directly to her regarding the 
criteria. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALL 
 
 

Page 85



10 

 

 

 

104/17 Communications and Engagement 
 
Helen Stevens presented the following reports to members. 
 
Engagement approach and update (including citizens panel 
opportunity) 
 
This report considers the opportunities, challenges and risks 
around embedding public and patient involvement in the work of 
the ACS. 
 
The report highlights the work completed and ongoing to 
strengthen accountability and assurance with regards to public 
and patient involvement.  In particular, the paper: 
 

 Gives the Board strategic overview and assurance 

 Brings the Board up to date on what’s been developed/is 
happening 

 Highlights areas where there are gaps and work is 
continuing.  

 
The Collaborative Partnership Board discussed and approved 
the recommended approach to engagement at ACS level and 
the resource request, especially in relation to the legal 
responsibilities. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board: 

 Approved the development of an ACS wide remuneration 
policy for public and patient involvement. 

 Approved the engagement framework and SYB public 
and patient participation 14Z2 form. 

 Approved the Citizen’s Panel approach and 
recommended approach to public and patient 
involvement in workstreams. 

 Approved discussions on recurrent funding to take place 
in the Joint Committee of CCGs (for CCG local 
engagement activity) and the ACS Executive Steering 
Group (for the allocation of funding for region wide 
events across all partners).   

 
Process for publishing on the website 
 
Helen Stevens presented this report, a summary of the key 
issues from the report are: 

 The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Accountable Care 
System (SYB ACS) is committed to operating in an open, 
honest and transparent way. 

 SYB ACS wants the public, staff and stakeholders to be 
well informed and have access to documents and reports 
that are developed and written on behalf of the ACS to 
inform its conversations and those of its working groups 
and committees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



11 

 

 

 The paper outlined the process for publishing documents 
and reports on the website. 

 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the 
recommended approach to publishing documents and reports 
on the Health and Care Working Together on South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw website. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the following 
documents for publication on the ACS website: 

 The SYB ACS Memorandum of Understanding – 
abridged version (as attached in the report) 

 The SYB ACS Engagement Framework 

 The SYB ACS Retrospective Engagement and 
Consultation Mapping Exercise 

 The SYB ACS Communications and Engagement 
Strategy (agreed at September Collaborative Partnership 
Board meeting) 

 
Subject to the approval of the Oversight and Assurance Group 
on 17th October 2017 the Collaborative Partnership Board 
approved the following items relating to the Hospital Services 
Review for publication on the ACS website:  
 

 Stage 1a Report 

 The Technical Annexes to the Stage 1a report 

 Terms of Reference for the Clinical Working Group 

 Terms of Reference for the Overarching Group 
 
ACS Awareness Campaign 
 
Due to constraints upon time Helen Steven agreed to circulate 
her slides for the ACS Awareness Campaign to members after 
this meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Helen 
Stevens 
 

105/17 Workstream Priorities 
 
Elective and Diagnostic 
Idris Griffiths presented the Elective and Diagnostic 
workstreams top 3 priorities for the Collaborative Partnership 
Boards approval as: 

 Efficiencies through optimising demand 

 Outpatient efficiencies 

 Delivering key diagnostic wait and Referral to treatment 
(RTT) standards 

 
Idris Griffiths informed members that the priorities would return 
short to medium term benefits and are making good progress.  
The workstream is working with the Hospital Services Review 
regarding endoscopy. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 
priorities for this workstream as presented. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



12 

 

 

 
Rupert Suckling noted that the priorities came out of the old 
financial modeling and requested a comparison with the new 
financial modeling should be made to examine the benefits 
using the new financial model. 
 
Urgent and Emergency Care 
Louise Barnett presented the Urgent and Emergency Care 
workstreams top 3 priorities for the Collaborative Partnership 
Boards approval as: 

 Integrated urgent care 

 Improving system intelligence 

 Improving discharge processes 
 
Louise Barnett added the model is challenging.  The 
workstream requires £480k for the Electronic Management 
System (EMS) and has secured funding of £311k, and if the rest 
of the required funding is acquired then the system can be 
implemented and used this winter.  A mechanism is required 
that will give transparent oversight in all five places over winter 
so immediate action can be implemented when necessary. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 
priorities for this workstream as presented. 
 
Workstream Charters 
Will Cleary-Gray presented this report that introduced the 
following workstream charters (which were accessible via the 
ACS extranet): 

 Children’s and Maternity 

 Prevention 

 Digital and IT 

 Estates  
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board: 

 Noted and would provide comment over the next two 
weeks on the approach taken across the workstreams to 
develop more detailed plans. 

 Received programme Charters accessed via the web link 

 Would provide feedback to the workstreams. 

 Anticipated receiving the final charter on medicines 
optimization in November. 

 Would give support for future ‘in focus’ sessions to 
enable sharing, further engagement and input to the 
work. 

 

 
 

Jeremy Cook 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

106/17 To consider any other business 
 
There was no other business. 
 

 

107/17 Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 

 

Page 88



13 

 

 

The next meeting will take place on 13thNovember 2017 at 
9.30am to 11.30am in Birch/Elm Room at Oak House, 
Rotherham. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

10 November 2017 

 
Birch and Elm Room, NHS Rotherham CCG, 

Oak House, Moorhead Way, Rotherham, S66 1YY 

 

Decision Summary 
 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

114/17 Workstream 
Priorities: 
Primary Care 
 
 
 
Workforce 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Workstream Charters 
 
 

The Collaborative Partnership Board did not approve the 
top 3 priorities for this workstream as presented as they 
require an out of hospital care model at a place level 
and at a system level as a result of the clinical strategy 
from the Hospital Services Review. 
 
Mike Curtis acknowledged that the unregistered 
workforce is a significant element and amendment is 
required to ensure the focus of the strategy also reflects 
the unregistered workforce as well as the registered 
workforce. 
 
Mike Curtis added that a narrative will be drawn up that 
reflects progress in the workstream and then another 
narrative will be drawn up and used to help attract 
people into the service. 
 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board: 

 Would provide feedback to the workstreams. 

 Would give support for future ‘in focus’ sessions 
to enable sharing, further engagement and input 
to the work. 

 
116/17 Finance Update The Collaborative Partnership Board: 

 Delegates the decision on the proposed 
allocation of the £3.2m uncommitted funds to the 
Executive Steering Group at their meeting on 21st 
November and Jeremy Cook will report back on 
the allocations to the December 2017 

Page 91



2 

 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board meeting. 
 

117/17 Hospital Services 
Review Update 
 

Alexandra Norrish said that she would talk to the 
communications team about the survey being circulated 
to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees if 
it had not already been done. 
 

118/17 To consider any 
other business 
 

Will Cleary-Gray will implement a system to help 
Collaborative Partnership Board (CPB) members with 
the dissemination of public and private papers post CPB 
meetings.   
 

 
 
 

  

Page 92



3 

 

 

 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

10 November 2017 

 
Birch and Elm Room, NHS Rotherham CCG, 

Oak House, Moorhead Way, Rotherham, S66 1YY 

 

 
 

Name Organisation Designation Present Apologies Deputy for 

Sir Andrew Cash 
CHAIR 

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

ACS Lead/Chair,  
Sheffield Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT, CEO  

  
 

  

Adrian Berry 
 

South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Deputy Chief Executive 
 

   

Adrian England Healthwatch Barnsley Chair       

Ainsley Macdonnell 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council  

Service Director 
 


Anthony 
May CEO 

Alice Deasy 
Health Education 
England 

Leadership Fellow    

Alison Knowles 
Locality Director North 
of England, 

NHS England       

Alan Davis  
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Director of Human 
Resources 

  
Adrian 
Berry 

Alexandra Norrish  
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Programme Director – 
Hospital Services 
Review  

   

Andrew Hilton  Sheffield GP Federation GP     

Anthony May 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Ben Jackson 
Academic Unit of 
Primary Medical Care, 
Sheffield University 

Senior Clinical Teacher      

Catherine Burn 
Voluntary Action 
Representative 

Director    

Chris Edwards 
NHS Rotherham Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Chris Holt The Rotherham NHS FT 
Deputy Chief Executive 
& Director of Strategy 
and Transformation 

   

Des Breen 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Medical Director      

Diana Terris 
Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Greg Fell Sheffield City Council  Director of Public Health 
 

 
John 
Mothersole 
CEO 

Frances Cunning 
Yorkshire & the Humber 
PHE Centre 

Deputy Director – Health 
& Wellbeing 

     

Page 93



4 

 

 

Helen Stevens 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Associate Director of 
Communications & 
Engagement 

     

Idris Griffiths 
NHS Bassetlaw Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 


    

Jackie Pederson 
NHS Doncaster Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Accountable Officer 

 
  

Jane Anthony 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Corporate Committee 
Administrator, Executive 
PA & Business Manager 

   

Janette Watkins 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Director      

Janet Wheatley  
Voluntary Action 
Rotherham 

Chief Executive  


  

Jeremy Cook 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Interim Director of 
Finance 


 

  

John Mothersole 
 

Sheffield City Council 
 

Chief Executive 


  
 

John Somers  
Sheffield Children’s 
Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Executive  
 

  

Jo Miller 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive     

Julia Burrows Barnsley Council Director of Public Health 


    

Kathryn Singh 
Rotherham, Doncaster 
and South Humber NHS 
FT 

Chief Executive     

Kevan Taylor 
Sheffield Health and 
Social Care NHS FT 

Chief Executive 
 

   

Lesley Smith 
NHS Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

SYB ACS System 
Reform Lead, Chief 
Officer, NHS Barnsley 
CCG 

     

Lisa Kell 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Director of 
Commissioning Reform 

   

Louise Barnett 
The Rotherham NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive      

Maddy Ruff 
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer      

Matthew Groom 
NHS England 
Specialised 
Commissioning 

Assistant Director    
 

  

Matthew Sandford 
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust 

Associate Director of 
Planning & 
Development 


  

Rod 
Barnes 

Mike Curtis 
Health Education 
England 

Local Director      

Neil Taylor 
Bassetlaw District 
Council  

Chief Executive 


    

Paul Moffat 
Doncaster Children’s 
Services Trust 

Director of Performance, 
Quality and Innovation  

 
 

Paul Smeeton 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Operating 
Executive  

   

Richard Henderson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Richard Jenkins 
Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive  
  

Richard Parker 
Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT 

Chief Executive      

Page 94



5 

 

 

Richard Stubbs 
The Yorkshire and 
Humber Academic 
Health Science Network  

Acting Chief Executive 

 
  

Rob Webster 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Chief Executive 
 

   

Rod Barnes  
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust  

Chief Executive     

Roger Watson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Consultant Paramedic 
Operations 

 
 

Richard 
Henderson 

Rupert Suckling 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Director of Public Health      

Ruth Hawkins  
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Chief Executive     

Sandra Crawford 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Associate Director of 
Transformation 
Local Partnerships 
Division 

  
Paul 
Smeeton 

Sharon Kemp 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive  


    

Simon Morritt 
Chesterfield Royal 
Hospital 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Steve Shore Healthwatch Doncaster  Chair      

Tim Moorhead  
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Clinical Chair   
 
 

Victoria McGregor-
Riley 

NHS Bassetlaw CCG Director of Primary Care    

Will Cleary-Gray 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Sustainability & 
Transformation Director 

     

 
 
 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

108/17 Welcome and introductions  
 
The Chair welcomed members to the meeting 
 

 

109/17 Apologies for absence 
 
The Chair noted apologies for absence. 
 

 

110/17 Minutes of the previous meeting held 13th October 2017 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true 
record. 
 

 
 

111/17 Matters arising  
 
93/17(a) – Finance Update 
This is work in progress, a report will be brought back to the 
next Collaborative Partnership Board meeting. 
 
93/17(b) – Finance Update 
This item will be discussed by the Executive Steering Group on 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



6 

 

 

17th October 2017 and will then be brought back to the next 
Collaborative Partnership Board meeting. 
 
94/17(a) – Cancer 62 day assurance 
At the Executive Steering Group it was agreed to look more 
closely at the 62 days cancer performance target.  The 
approach taken will be the preparation of  a performance report 
that will be collated from data available and this will be 
combined with visits by a peer review service report (the team is 
currently being selected and will have input from NHSE and 
NHSI). 
 
94/17(b) – Cancer 62 day assurance 
Chesterfield Royal Hospital Foundation Trust and Doncaster 
and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust have 
responded regarding their Cancer Alliance Board membership. 
 
All other items were either completed or would be picked up as 
part of the agenda.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

112/17 National Update  
 
CEO ACS Report 
 
The Chair gave his Chief Executive Officer report to the 
meeting. 
 
This monthly report provides members with an update on: 
 

 The work on the ACS CEO over the last month. 

 A number of key priorities not covered elsewhere on the 
agenda. 

 
In addition to the report the Chair added: 

 The Autumn Budget on 22/11/17 will be important.  

 The UK Life Sciences Industrial Strategy has recently 
been launched and there is potentially funding in the 
region of £4billion that could be available.  The Chair 
asked members to consider how we as an ACS 
approach research and development and industry link-
ups in the future.  Richard Stubbs added that the health 
aspect of the UK Life Sciences Industrial Strategy is 
important in relation to research and development. 

 There will be a second wave of ACSs in April 2018; 
ACSs are a system with a large geographical footprint 
with responsibilities for provision, commissioning and 
regulation.   

 Lesley Smith has chaired the first of the Staff Partnership 
Forum meetings between SYB ACS and staff trade 
unions.  Future meetings will progress on a bi-monthly 
meeting basis between both parties. 

 Chris Ham of the King’s Fund will be working with SYB 
ACS regarding governance for phase one (01.04.18 – 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



7 

 

 

31.03.19.).  There are meetings arranged for discussion 
with the Local Authorities on 30th November 2017, the 
SYB ACS Governance Group and the Audit Chairs, 1st 
December 2017 and the Health and Wellbeing Chairs. 

 The SYB ACS workstreams are agreeing their top 3 
priorities which will result in 45 priorities.  These 45 will 
next be streamlined and a workshop will be arranged in 
January 2018 for Chief Executive Officers and 
Accountable Officers to undertake this task.  

 
The Chair requested a brief update from each place on their 
Accountable Care Partnerships(ACP): 
 
Barnsley 
Lesley Smith informed members that the ACP Partnership 
Board is in place and will be moving to shadow board in 2018.   
The ACP and Board will be meeting in public for the first time 
next month and will be the accountable organisation for 
Barnsley in 2019.  A Programme Director has been appointed.  
 
Doncaster 
Jackie Pederson informed members that the ACP has refreshed 
its governance.  The ACP consists of the town’s leadership 
team.  A memorandum of understanding has been drawn up 
and this will go to NHS Doncaster CCGs Governing Body.  
Delegated authority will be given to the provider alliance and a 
framework is being drawn up for this agreement.  Contracting 
will commence from 1st April 2018.  .  There is currently an 
interim Programme Manager in place.    
 
Rotherham 
Chris Edwards informed members that an ACP board will be the 
accountable organisation for Rotherham.  Place plans are 
currently being aligned.  The ACP has identified its 3 key 
priorities identified which are: 
 

 Locality development 

 Rotherham health record 

 Development of the Rotherham ACP agreement. 
 
There is no Programme Director in place however as an interim 
measure the executive team is managing matters. 
 
Sheffield 
John Somers informed members that the Sheffield ACP has a 
development board and programme board.  A Programme 
Director is in post.  The ACP had a workshop on 12th October 
which resulted in their 3 key areas being identified (children and 
maternity, long term conditions and urgent care).  The ACP may 
have to form a virtual team to ensure progress of 
transformational change. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



8 

 

 

Bassetlaw 
Victoria McGregor-Riley informed members that the Bassetlaw 
ACP has made good progress and is reviewing its priorities.  It 
has established a primary care approach model and is seeking 
a Programme Director.  
 
 
The Chair highlighted that information from NHSE and NHSI 
regarding contract disputes for 2018-2019 would be circulated 
today and advised colleagues to look out for this information. 
 
The Chair noted that finances across the system was a 
challenge this financial year. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board noted the update. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

113/17 Integrated Operational Report 
 
Alison Knowles requested members to note the current 
published performance against key national indicators for the 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Accountable Care System. 
 
She highlighted that SYB ACS had achieved the national 
standard targets across 7 of the 10 indicators. 
 
The Executive Steering Group has discussed the 62 day 
Cancer target earlier in this meeting and Lesley Smith has 
identified earlier in this meeting this is being dealt with.  
 
Richard Jenkins added that the Echocardiograph Diagnostic 
Target Performance will be discussed at the next Executive 
Steering Group meeting on 21st November 2017. 
 
Alison Knowles said that the granular reporting will be taken to 
December and January meetings, the architecture is in place 
but we need clarification regarding  next year and this 
information will help to finalise the scorecards. 
 
Alison Knowles would investigate the Chairs request of having 
the data available in ‘real time’. 
 
The Chair thanked Alison Knowles for her report. 
 

 

114/17 Workstream Priorities – slides will be circulated to members 
after this meeting 
 
Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
Jackie Pederson presented the Mental Health and Learning 
Disabilities workstreams top 3 priorities for the Collaborative 
Partnership Boards approval as: 
 

 Integrated IAPT and Liaison Mental Health 

 Perinatal Mental Health 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



9 

 

 

 Children and Young People’s Mental Health 
 
Chris Edwards added that the linkages should be noted 
between the Perinatal Mental Health priority and the Children 
and Maternity workstream.  There will be many areas where the 
Children and Maternity workstream could offer help and 
support. It should also be noted that Urgent and Emergency 
Care could offer support to the first priority and Children and 
Maternity workstream to the third priority.   
 
Matthew Groom stated that discussion should start now 
regarding Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMS) 
and new models of care as there will be a new wave of funding 
to bid into in the New Year.  The deadlines are tight so the ACS 
should be prepared and progress the work required now. 
 
Jackie Pederson informed members that she was keen to 
understand the new architecture across SYB and specifically 
from an Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 
perspective how we commission as CCGs to mental health 
providers.  She added that the workstreams need to get a co-
ordinated approach across the SYB ACS area in terms of 
consistent monitoring and progress.  
 
Members discussed the Transition Care Programme (TCP) and 
it being a financial risk to SYB ACS therefore a system 
approach was required to try and alleviate this risk.    Jackie 
Pederson replied that the TCP is a £100m issue nationally and 
a £4.5m issue in the SYB area.  A future discussion session on 
TCP is required. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 
priorities for this workstream as presented. 
 
 
Primary Care 
Will Cleary-Gray presented the Primary Care workstreams top 3 
priorities for the Collaborative Partnership Boards approval as: 
 

 Implementation of GP Forward View 

 Local Care Networks 

 Digital 
 
Will Cleary-Gray highlighted that this workstream has 
connections across all the other workstreams.  He added that 
there is a risk to the transformational programme of not giving 
the focus that the development of primary care required.  There 
is a national workstream for primary care which this workstream 
is connected with.  Karen Curran is supporting Maddy and Tim 
with the development of this workstream.  The workstream is 
having discussions regarding urgent and emergency care and 
the primary care agenda and how we approach the agendas at 
a national level and then at a local level.  There is an event on 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



10 

 

 

the 29th November that is focused on support for primary care 
and the GP workforce. 
 
Des Breen stated that the digital workforce goes across 
systems in 9 areas and has 4 core themes the first one being 
the interact-ability therefore we should avoid any duplication 
and effort with the 3rd workstream priority identified. 
 
Members were informed that Nicola Heywood-Alexander has 
been invited to attend and give a presentation at the event on 
the 29th November 2017 as it is noted digital interdependencies 
are huge and the ACS has an opportunity to combine digital 
across the workstreams in a coherent manner. 
 
Lesley Smith noted that we require a new model of care for 
patients when are being treated in the community instead of in 
the hospital. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board did not approve the top 3 
priorities for this workstream as presented as they require an 
out of hospital care model at a place level and at a system level 
as a result of the clinical strategy from the Hospital Services 
Review. 
 
 
Workforce 
Mike Curtis presented the Workforce workstreams top 3 
priorities for the Collaborative Partnership Boards approval as: 
 

 Developing the current SYB workforce 

 Increasing Future Supply 

 Enabling and Aligning Effective Workforce Planning 
across organisations, ACPs and ACS 

 
Mike Curtis informed members that SYB ACS has a 
comprehensive workforce strategy.  He highlighted that the 
Workforce workstream was keen not to duplicate priorities in 
other workstreams and streamlining to ensure no duplication 
occurs has already been completed by Working Together 
partnership Vanguard.  It is a principle of this workstream to 
build on what is already happening.  He acknowledged that the 
unregistered workforce is a significant element and amendment 
is required to ensure the focus of the strategy also reflects the 
unregistered workforce as well as the registered workforce. 
 
Mike Curtis added that a narrative will be drawn up that reflects 
progress in the workstream and then another narrative will be 
drawn up and used to help attract people into the service. 
 
Andrew Cash noted this is a very complex and important area 
as the workforce is prevalent across all the other workstreams.  
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Maddy Ruff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Kevan Taylor/ 
Mike Curtis 
 
 
 
 
Kevan Taylor/ 
Mike Curtis 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



11 

 

 

priorities for this workstream as presented. 
 
 
Workstream Charters 
 
Will Cleary-Gray presented the Workstream Charters report that 
introduced the Medicines Optimisation charter (which can be  
accessed via the ACS website): 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board: 

 Noted and would provide comment taken to develop 
more detailed plans. 

 Received programme Medicines Optimisation 
Programme Charter as a work in progress, accessed via 
the web link 

 Would provide feedback to the workstreams. 

 Would give support for future ‘in focus’ sessions to 
enable sharing, further engagement and input to the 
work. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALL 
 
ALL 

115/17 Communications and Engagement 
 
Helen Stevens introduced the ACS Awareness Campaign 
(“honest and clear”) presentation to the meeting (a copy has 
been circulated to members previously). 
 
Some members stated that being “honest” should be a given as 
it is an affirmation of one of the organisations core values.  
 
Helen Stevens added that: 

 This campaign has been built on feedback from patients 
and clinicians and revised based on further comments 
from staff and the public. 

 The “honest and clear” logo would sit within the NHS 
branding it is not intended to be used as a standalone 
brand. 

 Patients and the public recruited to the focus groups 
have given the ACS Awareness Campaign their 
approval. 

 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the ACS 
Awareness Campaign as presented.  
 
Adrian England stated that Healthwatch and its stakeholders 
have been involved in a lot of the work regarding this campaign 
and by the feedback received the stakeholders involved do 
comprehend that SYB ACS is being honest and clear in its 
approach. 
 

 

116/17 Finance Update 
 
Jeremy Cook, Interim Director of Finance SYB ACS, presented 
his finance report to the meeting.  The report updated members 

 
 
 
 

Page 101



12 

 

 

on a number of items e.g. recent meetings of Directors of 
Finance, system control total and payment reform, 
transformation funds and ACS budget – 2017/18, transformation 
funds and budget 2018/19 and financial reporting. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board: 

 Noted the contents of the report. 

 Delegates the decision on the proposed allocation of the 
£3.2m uncommitted funds to the Executive Steering 
Group at their meeting on 21st November.  This will be 
reported back to the December 2017 Collaborative 
Partnership Board meeting. 

 
The Chair thanked Jeremy Cook for his report and for 
presenting the information contained therein. 
 
The Chair informed members that the Collaborative Partnership 
Board will not receive the same level of detail in future finance 
reports as the detail will be reported and discussed by the 
Executive Steering Group. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jeremy Cook 
 
 
 

117/17 Hospital Services Review Update 
 

Alexandra Norrish updated the group on progress on the 
Hospital Services Review. She said that the first report of the 
Review had been published on the 27th October and the launch 
had some media interest. There had been a five day period for 
the hospitals to brief their own staff before the publication of the 
report. 
 
She also updated the group on the progress of the Clinical 
Working Groups. The first round of meetings for each of the five 
groups was now complete, and the second round was 
underway. The first round had focused on the problems with the 
services; the themes which had emerged had included 
workforce, and inconsistency in clinical standards and protocols, 
and variation in the services offered on different sites. The 
Review team felt that themes which needed further exploration 
included efficiency and consultant numbers.  
 
Alexandra Norrish said that the Overarching Group had also 
met. This was a small group of individuals who have a cross-
system role, e.g. NHSE, HEE and the ACS. The conversation 
had focused around testing the conclusions of the CWG 
conversations, and beginning to think through what the 
workstrand on the role of the DGH might look like, including how 
SYB works as a single footprint, and the implications of the ACS 
for the acute sector. 
 
Alexandra Norrish said that the evaluation criteria would be 
used to narrow down the longlist of options that the Review 
team were developing from the CWG input. She flagged to the 
group that their organisations had (via the Oversight and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 102



13 

 

 

Assurance Group) been asked to give their views on which 
were the most important evaluation criteria. The most 
important criteria would be applied in a first ‘gateway’ process 
that would begin in November and last into the New Year, as 
options were initially assessed. The options which were kept in 
would then be assessed more rigorously against all of the 
criteria. 
 
Alexandra Norrish said that the public had also been asked to 
give their views on a simplified version of the criteria, which 
summarised the 23 criteria into 10.  She said that these had 
been published in an online survey: there had been two 
changes to the survey since it was published, to add a free text 
box and to change the definition of one of the criteria around 
travel times to define it as a ‘safe’ travelling distance.  
 
The Chair stated the launch had gone well and invited 
comments. 
 
The following points were raised in discussion: 

 whether the survey had been circulated to the Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Alexandra 
Norrish said that she would talk to the 
communications team about doing this if it had not 
already been done. 

 Whether the evaluation criteria would be made public. 
Alexandra Norrish said that the summarised version 
was already on the public survey, and that the full list 
would be made public in the second interim report of 
the Review (to be published in the New Year). 

  
The Chair thanked Alexandra Norrish for her presentation and 
attendance at this meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alexandra 
Norrish 

118/17 To consider any other business 
 
Will Cleary-Gray informed members that there will shortly be a 
system in place to help Collaborative Partnership Board (CPB) 
members with the dissemination of public and private papers 
post CPB meetings.  This will ensure that there is consistency in 
the distribution of papers and information across the system. 
 
There was no other business brought before the meeting. 
 

 
 
Will Cleary-
Gray 

119/17 Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting will take place on 8th December 2017 at 
9.30am to 11.30am in The Boardroom at 722 Prince of Wales 
Road, NHS Sheffield CCG. 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

8 December 2017 

 
The Boardroom, NHS Sheffield CCG 

722 Prince of Wales Road, Sheffield, S9 4EU 

 

Decision Summary 
 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

124/17 CEO ACS Report 
The Chair informed members that there is an ACS 
Development Day in London on Wednesday, 13th December 
2017 and a report back will be given to members at the next 
Collaborative Partnership Board meeting or via e-mail. 
 
The priority focus areas together with a proposed 
management structure will be discussed at a workshop for 
CEO’s in January and the proposed structure will be 
populated and implemented by April 2018. 
 

 
The Chair 
 
 
 
 
W Cleary-Gray 

125/17 Integrated Operational Report 
 
Richard Jenkins will be circulating information and 
requesting advice from the team regarding two issues one 
being the ownership of any breaches and the second being 
tariffs and the flow of money.   
 

The Chair requested the Cancer Alliance to report back to 
the Executive Steering Group or Collaborative Partnership 
Board with three or four sustainable proposals resulting from 
the scoping project. 
 

 
 
R Jenkins 
 
 
 
 
L Smith 

126/17 Developing the ACS and Future Commissioning 
Arrangements 
Will Cleary-Gray asked members to note that before 
becoming operational the ACS needs to complete an 
overarching strategy for 2018/19 in the next quarter.  He 
added that the STP vision and strategy would also require 
refreshing. 

 
 
 

W Cleary-Gray 

Page 105



2 

 

 

 

127/17 Workstream Priorities: 
 
Estates 
Chris Edwards confirmed that the estates workstream needs 
to develop its strategy to enable it to deliver its priorities.  He 
confirmed that the workstream would develop a strategy and 
priorities by the end of January 2018. 
 
Digital/IT 
Nicola Haywood-Alexander confirmed the workstream could 
move the priorities into actions in the next three months and 
it will populate the priorities with specifics by the beginning 
of 2018. 
 
Medicines Optimisation 
Idris Griffiths confirmed that the workstream would populate 
the priorities in time for discussion at the meeting in January 
2018.  
 

 
 
 
 
C Edwards 
 
 
 
 
N Haywood-
Alexander 
 
 
 
 
I Griffiths 

128/17 Finance 
The Chair requested Jeremy Cook to link in with Richard 
Jenkins (and others) regarding the analytical review as this 
linkage will provide information to enable him to highlight the 
four largest common opportunities across the system for 
2018/19.   
 
The Chair highlighted that the top four large common 
opportunities identified from the analytical review will be 
discussed at the workshop in January 2018. 
 

 
J Cook 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W Cleary-Gray 

129/17 Hospital Services Review  
Alexandra Norrish informed members that there will be an 
interim report published on the website regarding the public 
engagement event held on the 6th December 2017.   
 

 
 
A Norrish 

 
 
 

  

Page 106



3 

 

 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

8 December 2017 

 
The Boardroom, NHS Sheffield CCG 

722 Prince of Wales Road, Sheffield, S9 4EU 
 
 

Name Organisation Designation Present Apologies Deputy for 

Sir Andrew Cash 
CHAIR 

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

ACS Lead/Chair,  
Sheffield Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT, CEO 

 
 

  

Adrian Berry 
 

South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Deputy Chief Executive 
 

   

Adrian England Healthwatch Barnsley Chair 
 

  

Ainsley Macdonnell 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council  

Service Director 
 


Anthony 
May CEO 

Alison Knowles 
Locality Director North 
of England, 

NHS England   
 

  

Alan Davis  
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Director of Human 
Resources 

  
Adrian 
Berry 

Alexandra Norrish  
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Programme Director – 
Hospital Services 
Review  

   

Andrew Hilton  Sheffield GP Federation GP     

Anthony May 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Ben Jackson 
Academic Unit of 
Primary Medical Care, 
Sheffield University 

Senior Clinical Teacher 
 

   

Catherine Burn 
Voluntary Action 
Representative 

Director    

Chris Edwards 
NHS Rotherham Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Chris Holt The Rotherham NHS FT 
Deputy Chief Executive 
& Director of Strategy 
and Transformation 

   

Des Breen 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Medical Director 
 

  

Diana Terris 
Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Greg Fell Sheffield City Council  Director of Public Health  
 

John 
Mothersole 
CEO 

Frances Cunning 
Yorkshire & the Humber 
PHE Centre 

Deputy Director – Health 
& Wellbeing 

 
 

  

Helen Stevens 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Associate Director of 
Communications & 
Engagement 


 

  

Page 107



4 

 

 

Idris Griffiths 
NHS Bassetlaw Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Jackie Pederson 
NHS Doncaster Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Jane Anthony 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Corporate Committee 
Administrator, Executive 
PA & Business Manager 

   

Janette Watkins 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Director 
 

  

Janet Wheatley  
Voluntary Action 
Rotherham 

Chief Executive     

Jeremy Cook 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Interim Director of 
Finance 



 
  

John Mothersole 
 

Sheffield City Council 
 

Chief Executive 


 
 

John Somers  
Sheffield Children’s 
Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Executive  
 

  

Jo Miller 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive     

Julia Burrows Barnsley Council Director of Public Health 
 

  

Julia Newton NHS Sheffield CCG Director of Finance    

Kathryn Singh 
Rotherham, Doncaster 
and South Humber NHS 
FT 

Chief Executive     

Kevan Taylor 
Sheffield Health and 
Social Care NHS FT 

Chief Executive 
 

   

Lesley Smith 
NHS Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

SYB ACS System 
Reform Lead, Chief 
Officer, NHS Barnsley 
CCG 


 

  

Lisa Kell 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Director of 
Commissioning Reform 

   

Louise Barnett 
The Rotherham NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive 
 

   

Maddy Ruff 
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

   

Matthew Groom 
NHS England 
Specialised 
Commissioning 

Assistant Director   
 

  

Matthew Sandford 
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust 

Associate Director of 
Planning & 
Development 


 

Rod 
Barnes 

Mike Curtis 
Health Education 
England 

Local Director 
 

  

Neil Taylor 
Bassetlaw District 
Council  

Chief Executive 


   

Nicola Haywood-
Alexander 

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Digital Programme 
Director 

   

Paul Moffat 
Doncaster Children’s 
Services Trust 

Director of Performance, 
Quality and Innovation  

 
 

Paul Smeeton 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Operating 
Executive 

 
 

  

Richard Henderson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Richard Jenkins 
Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive  
  

Richard Parker 
Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT 

Chief Executive 
 

  

Page 108



5 

 

 

Richard Stubbs 
The Yorkshire and 
Humber Academic 
Health Science Network  

Acting Chief Executive 


   

Rob Webster 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Chief Executive 
 

   

Rod Barnes  
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust  

Chief Executive     

Roger Watson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Consultant Paramedic 
Operations 

 
 

Richard 
Henderson 

Rupert Suckling 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Director of Public Health 
 

  

Ruth Hawkins  
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Chief Executive     

Sharon Kemp 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive  
 

  

Simon Morritt 
Chesterfield Royal 
Hospital 

Chief Executive  
  

Steve Shore Healthwatch Doncaster  Chair 
 

   

Tim Moorhead  
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Clinical Chair   
 
 

Victoria McGregor-
Riley 

NHS Bassetlaw CCG Director of Primary Care    

Will Cleary-Gray 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Sustainability & 
Transformation Director 


 

  

 
 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

120/17 Welcome and introductions  
 
The Chair welcomed members to the meeting 
 

 

121/17 Apologies for absence 
 
The Chair noted apologies for absence. 
 

 

122/17 Minutes of the previous meeting held 10th November 2017 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true 
record. 
 

 
 

123/17 Matters arising  
 
Workstream Priorities: 
Primary Care 
At their last meeting the Collaborative Partnership Board did not 
approve the top 3 priorities for this workstream as presented.  The 
workstream will be presenting their revised top 3 priorities to the 
Collaborative Partnership Board in January 2018. 
 
Workforce 
The top 3 priorities for this workstream were approved and Mike 
Curtis will be progressing the items identified i.e. the amendment 
of the strategy and drawing up the narrative required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



6 

 

 

 
Finance Update: 
Jeremy Cook advised members that the Executive Steering Group 
approved the proposed allocation of the £3.2m uncommitted 
funds at their meeting on 21st November 2017. 
 
Hospital Services Review 
Alexandra Norrish said that she would talk to the communications 
team about the survey being circulated to the Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee if it had not already been done. 
Post meeting update – The members of JHOSC had received 
communications on the review at its launch and been invited to 
share the survey link with their constituents. 
 
To consider any other business 
Dissemination of papers post CPB meetings. 
Will Cleary-Gray highlighted that the introduction of this system 
will help to ensure there is consistent communication across the 
ACS regarding the business going forward to Governing Bodies 
and Boards. 
 
 

124/17 National Update  
 
CEO ACS Report 
 
The Chair gave his Chief Executive Officer report to the meeting. 
 
This monthly report provides members with an update on: 
 

 The work on the ACS CEO over the last month. 

 A number of key priorities not covered elsewhere on the 
agenda. 

 
In addition to his report the Chair added the following updates: 
 
Developing governance and resourcing to support the ACS 
strategic priorities 
 
Ian Dalton, Chief Executive of NHS Improvement has said that 
NHSE/I need to give more clarity about governance and this is 
one of his key priorities to address.  He also said there are 
semantics and differences in terminology used when referring to 
ACSs and this something that he will be addressing as the second 
wave of ACSs come on board in April 2018. 
 
The Chair highlighted that SYB STP had initially progressed work 
to develop itself into an ACS and is now exploring the 
development of its future governance arrangements.  The 
Governance Group and Audit Chairs (one audit Chair from each 
place) had a workshop on 1st December 2017 to explore future 
governance arrangements, to ensure they are in place and that 
they will guarantee the ACS has consistent management, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



7 

 

 

cohesive policies, guidance, processes and decision-rights for a 
given area of responsibility, and proper oversight and 
accountability. The workshop was facilitated by Chris Ham, Chief 
Executive of the King’s Fund.  
 
The Chair informed members that there is an ACS Development 
Day in London on Wednesday, 13th December 2017 and a report 
back will be given to members at the next Collaborative 
Partnership Board meeting or via e-mail. 
 
The Chair highlighted the priority focus areas for the SYB system 
working together in Phase 1, 2018/19 i.e. integrated ACS strategy 
and new regulation, workforce planning, financial strategy, SYAB 
ACS priorities, system transformation priorities, research, 
education and innovation, patient and public involvement, 
population health management.  The priority focus areas together 
with a proposed management structure will be discussed at a 
workshop for CEO’s in January and the proposed structure will be 
populated and implemented by April 2018. 
 
The Chair highlighted that the shadow phase (phase 1, 1st April 
2018 to 31st March 2019) of the ACS could have two options 
regarding its management structure: 

 the creation of a senior structure of full time positions or, 

 the creation of a structure comprising of part time positions 
working at SYB ACS and the remainder of their week 
working in their substantive posts.  The Chair stated that 
the ACS requires high-quality senior people to fill the 
positions in the proposed new management structure and it 
should also ensure there is good geographical 
representation across the five ACS areas. 

 
The Chair highlighted the following focus areas for the SYB ACS 
working together in phase 1: 

 building an integrated ACS strategy and new regulation - 
ensuring the structure is not another tier of management 
and that links the systems organisations and places 
through the ACS. 

 Workforce planning - having a senior HR leadership 
presence  at a system level 

 Financial strategy - getting ready to deliver the control total 
from 1st April 2019 (not 2018).  

 System transformation priorities - the 45 priorities identified 
by our workstreams need to be focussed to 10-12 priorities 
for the ACS.  This will be completed at the workshop in 
January 2018. 

 Research, education and innovation - there is £3.5bn in the 
recently launched UK Life Sciences Industrial Strategy that 
could be available to benefit the population of South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw.  The ACS is keen to forge better 
links with industry to help in the creation of jobs in areas 
such as the advanced manufacturing, digital and in 
healthcare medical technology industry.  

 
 
 

 
 

The Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W Cleary-
Gray 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



8 

 

 

 Patient and public involvement - active public involvement 
to enable the ACS to evolve with public support and 
participation. 

 Population Health Management – understanding the SYB 
population needs and inequalities to inform commissioning 
decisions and best use of funds to improve outcomes in 
areas such as childhood obesity, tobacco and alcohol 
cessation. 

 
The Chair responded to a comment regarding the Autumn Budget 
and the requirement to reduce management costs by 15-20%.  He 
said that the SYB ACS needs to change the way it delivers 
services to achieve savings and we need to work with NHSE/I, 
CCGs and hospitals to achieve this. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray asked members to note that there are limits to 
the amount of transformational funding available for backfilling 
posts.  The ACS will not be developing another tier of 
management in its structure therefore it needs to develop new 
ways of working.  A management structure will be discussed and 
developed at the workshop in January.   
 
Lisa Kell added that it is beneficial that Alison Knowles and her 
team from NHSE are linked with SYB ACS and can offer the ACS 
support regarding governance issues.  The national team has also 
offered support to SYB ACS in creating a governance structure for 
the future ACS. 
 
The Chair asked members to note that in the future governance of 
the ACS it is likely that the meeting arrangements will change as 
from April 2018.  The Governance and the Audit Chairs groups 
are initially formulating the meeting structure required to proceed 
from 1st April 2018 and may engage with Ian Dalton in this work.  
 
Autumn Budget 2017 
 
The Chair highlighted that the Autumn Budget announced a 
further £2.8b of revenue funding for the NHS and added the 
maximum amount SYB would receive  from the additional funding 
would be the fair share element which stands at 2.9%), which the 
following is a break-down by year. 
 
2017/18 £9.7m 
 
2018/19 £46.4m 
 
2019/20 £25.1m  
 
The Chair reminded members that it was the 70th anniversary of 
the National Health Service on 5th July 2018.  The ACS should 
ensure that it is in a position to bid into any potential capital 
funding that may be made available in the 70th anniversary year. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112



9 

 

 

The Collaborative Partnership Board noted the update. 
 

125/17 Integrated Operational Report 
 
Alison Knowles referred to her paper (C) circulated with the 
agenda papers and highlighted that the report provides an interim 
view of performance across the ACS pending the development of 
the wider single assurance framework. 
 
She highlighted that South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ACSs overall 
performance has improved with achievement of eight out of the 
ten national indicators (compared to seven in August). 
 
In a ninth area, (waiting time in A&E), the ACS achieved the 
expected in-year performance of at least 90% but did not deliver 
the national standard.  
 
The access to diagnostic tests within six weeks of referral 
remained below national standards.  Richard Jenkins informed 
members that short term recommendations have been 
implemented for echocardiography and it is expected that these 
will result in positive traction towards the targets in 1-2 months.  
Extra capacity is being implemented to progress work required in 
echocardiography.  He added that he will be circulating 
information and requesting advice from the team regarding two 
issues one being the ownership of any breaches and the second 
being tariffs and the flow of money.   
 
Lesley Smith added that the Cancer 62 day target has been 
achieved in September but October and November may not 
achieve the target. However, it should be noted that there are 
other sides to improvement that should be highlighted other than 
targets i.e. sharing learning and ‘taking on’ cancer from 1st April 
2018.   
 
She added that the areas of traction are Upper GI, Head and 
Neck, Chemotherapy and Introducing a Faecal Immunochemistry 
Test in primary care for people with lower GI symptoms.  The 
Cancer Alliance will be undertaking a scoping project and will be 
bringing back information relating to the above four areas of 
traction and their commissioning, provision and transformation.  
The Cancer Alliance will address what change is required in 
provision and commissioning going forward from 1st April 2018.  
 
The Chair requested the Cancer Alliance to report back to the 
Executive Steering Group or Collaborative Partnership Board with 
three or four sustainable proposals resulting from the scoping 
project. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board noted the current published 
performance against key national indicators for the South 
Yorkshire & Bassetlaw ACS. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R Jenkins 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L Smith 

Page 113



10 

 

 

126/17 Developing the ACS and Future 
Commissioning Arrangements 
 
Will Cleary-Gray updated members regarding the development of 
the ACS and future commissioning arrangements. 
 
He asked members to note that before becoming operational the 
ACS needs to complete an overarching strategy for 2018/19 and 
then distill the information into the workstreams identified in the 
Memorandum of Understanding.  He added that the STP vision 
and strategy would also require refreshing. 
 
The Hospital Services Review will report on its recommendations 
and the ACS need to be mindful that it meets the principles of the 
Hospital Services Review when drawing up its overarching 
strategy. 
 
He informed members that setting out the operational plan for 
2018/19 and the development of an overarching strategy needs to 
be completed in the next quarter. 
 
The Chair highlighted that any financial implications of the 
Hospital Services Review recommendations should be affordable 
and sustainable.  
 
Sharon Kemp informed members that Local Authorities are keen 
to get involved in place based commissioning. She added that it is 
important for CEOs to be involved in place based commissioning 
as it feeds into local tariffs. 
 
The Chair thanked Will Cleary-Gray for his update. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W Cleary-
Gray 

127/17 Workstream Priorities – slides will be circulated to members 
after this meeting 
 
 
Children’s and Maternity 
 
John Somers and Chris Edwards presented the Children’s and 
Maternity workstream top 3 priorities for the Collaborative 
Partnership Boards approval as: 
 

 Improve quality and sustain access to surgery and 
anaesthesia care, network the provision. 

 Sustain children’s acute care, through a network approach 
and new models of care. 

 Deliver Better Births in maternity care. 
 
John Somers spoke to the Children’s element of the workstream 
priorities stating that the key drivers for the priorities were 
accessibility, shortage of paediatric nurses and a public 
consultation process. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



11 

 

 

He informed members that in relation to the first priority one to two 
children are involved in accessing the services on a monthly 
basis.  The hospital sites involved are Pinderfield’s General 
Hospital in Wakefield, Sheffield Children’s Hospital NHS FT and 
Doncaster Royal Infirmary.  As part of the project, peer reviews 
are currently being undertaken; these are challenging but are 
proving to be very useful.  Three peer reviews have taken place 
and there are another three to be undertaken in January 2018.  
The children’s surgery and anaesthesia services project has got 
traction for implementation to proceed in 2018/19.   
 
In relation to the second priority a managed clinical network has 
been established and this will be aligned with the Hospital 
Services Review (HSR) as their recommendations emerge (HSR 
recommendations will be published at the end of April 2018).  New 
sustainable models of paediatric care are being investigated along 
with upskilling of community services to reduce the impact on 
secondary and specialist care. 
 
Chris Edwards spoke to the maternity element of the workstream 
priorities i.e. Better Births in maternity care.  Maternity has been 
allocated £150k and there is a further £4m (of national monies) in 
the Memorandum of Understanding.  The maternity plan has 
received good feedback from the national team.  Maternity care 
consists of consultant led, midwife led and home birth services.   
 
Chris Edwards highlighted that there is a challenge to the 
workforce resulting from declining numbers of consultants and 
midwives in the maternity services. 
 
The Chair noted that a stock take is required at ‘place’.  This will 
enable the ACS to identify the areas that it should be involved in 
to make progress.  Chris Edwards added that we require solutions 
to establish how we recruit and keep our workforce. 
 
Rupert Suckling highlighted that the key priorities identified for this 
workstream risked a disconnection from the vision of the 
children’s and maternity workstream.  We should be mindful that 
the vision of the workstream does not get left behind. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 priorities 
for this workstream as presented. 
 
 
Estates 
 
Chris Edwards presented the Estates workstreams top 3 priorities 
for the Collaborative Partnership Boards approval as: 
 

 Develop an ACS estates strategy. 

 Detailed delivery plan for estates priorities. 

 Optimisation of high quality estate.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



12 

 

 

Chris Edwards informed members that the priorities have been 
developed with the Interim Director of Finance and the ACS 
Estates Workstream Lead using specific criteria. 
 
He said that the Sir Robert Naylor Review was published in April 
2017 and it sets out the new NHS estates strategy focused on 
delivering improved care.  However, the review was not very 
beneficial to the estates workstream as it is London centric and so 
the workstream is waiting for the Estates National Strategy to be 
published in December 2017 which could have an impact on the 
workstream. 
 
He highlighted that the workstream requires skills and resources 
to be put in place. 
 
He informed members that sites have been identified that address 
all the national priorities and in doing so will therefore attract 
funding. 
 
Alison Knowles highlighted that NHS estates and technology 
transformation funding (ETTF) is a multi-million pound investment 
(revenue and capital funding) in general practice facilities and 
technology across England and we should ensure that the capital 
links back to the ACS strategy so that estates attract ETTF 
funding.  The estates workstream should note the process to 
acquire ETTF funding and the ACS can utilise the funds on its 
projects. 
 

A discussion took place regarding the outcome of the Hospital 
Service Review (HSR) and the need for the workstream to be 
aware of any implications for them resulting from the HSR 
recommendations.   
 
Chris Edwards informed the meeting that he sits on the Sheffield 
City Region Joint Assets Board and in this capacity he is aware of 
current and future initiatives and opportunities in this sector. 
 
Chris Edwards confirmed that the estates workstream needs to 
develop its strategy to enable it to deliver its priorities.  He 
confirmed that the workstream would develop a strategy and 
priorities by the end of January 2018. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 priorities 
for this workstream as presented. 
 
 
Digital/IT 
 
Nicola Haywood-Alexander presented the Digital workstreams top 
3 priorities for the Collaborative Partnership Boards approval as: 
 

 The future ACS digital delivery framework. 

 Population health data and information requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C Edwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 116



13 

 

 

 Interoperability – technical architecture and integrated care 
records. 

 
Nicola Haywood-Alexander gave a brief overview of the progress 
of the Digital/IT workstream. 
 
She added that the Digital/IT workstream would like to move to a 
more facilitative role regarding the sharing of data between NHS 
organisations.  
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 priorities 
for this workstream as presented. 
 
Nicola Haywood-Alexander confirmed the workstream could move 
the priorities into actions in the next three months and it will 
populate the priorities with specifics by the beginning of 2018. 
 
 
Medicines Optimisation 
 
Idris Griffiths presented the Medicines Optimisation workstreams 
top 3 priorities for the Collaborative Partnership Boards approval 
as: 
 

 Efficient prescribing 

 Universally adopting initiatives and innovations 

 Implementing results of national consultation 
 
Richard Jenkins raised the point that there is significant 
duplication in the analysis of new drugs by individual hospitals 
and this requires addressing, we need a system that will analyse 
all new drugs on behalf of everyone in the SYB ACS footprint and 
in doing so save resources across the system. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board approved the top 3 priorities 
for this workstream as presented 
 
Idris Griffiths confirmed that the workstream would populate the 
priorities in time for discussion at the meeting in January 2018.  
 
The Chair thanked people for presenting their information at this 
meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N Haywood-
Alexander 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I Griffiths 

128/17 Finance Update 
 
Jeremy Cook, Interim Director of Finance SYB ACS, presented 
his finance report to the meeting.  The report informs members on 
a number of items e.g. Directors of Finance meetings and other 
general updates, the Autumn Budget and financial reporting. 
 
Jeremy Cook informed members that he will be discussing the 
opportunities of undertaking an analytical review across the ACS 
which covers operational productivity (providers), right care 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



14 

 

 

(commissioners), getting it right first time (providers), medicines 
optimisation (commissioners) and menu of opportunities 
(commissioners). 
 
The Chair requested Jeremy Cook to link in with Richard Jenkins 
(and others) regarding the analytical review as this linkage will 
provide information to enable him to highlight the four largest 
common opportunities across the system for 2018/19.  The 
opportunities should identify what should be done at an 
Accountable Care Partnership (ACP) level and what needs to be 
done at an ACS level to improve efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
The Chair highlighted that the top four large common 
opportunities identified from the analytical review will be discussed 
at the workshop in January 2018. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board noted the contents of the 
report. 
 
The Chair thanked Jeremy Cook for his report and for presenting 
the information contained therein. 
 

 

 
 
 
J Cook 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
W Cleary-
Gray 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

129/17 Hospital Services Review Update 
 

Alexandra Norrish updated the group on progress on the Hospital 
Services Review (a copy of her presentation will be circulated to 
members). She said that the first cut and analysis will be 
produced in time to be discussed at the Hospital Services 
Steering Group meeting in January 2018.   
 
Alexandra Norrish informed members that there had been a very 
good and constructive public engagement event held on the 6th 
December 2017 and there will be an interim report published on 
the website regarding this event.  Helen Stevens added that the 
public engagement element of the event had proved to be 
successful. 
 
The Chair thanked Alexandra Norrish for her presentation and 
attendance at this meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A Norrish 

130/17 To consider any other business 
 
There was no other business brought before the meeting. 
 

 
 

131/17 Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting will take place on 12th January 2018 at 9.30am 
to 11.30am in the Boardroom, NHS Sheffield CCG, 722 Prince of 
Wales Road, Sheffield, S9 4EU. 
 

 

 

Page 118



Management/Partnership&AgencyWorking/HealthReform/HWB/HWBReportrePublicQuestions20180130 1

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

30 JANUARY 2018

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AT THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD –
PROCEDURAL ARRANGEMENTS

Report Sponsor: Cllr Sir Stephen Houghton
Report Author: Ian Turner
Received by SSDG: 15 January 2018
Date of Report: 30 January 2018

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To review the procedural arrangements for the public to ask questions at the Health 
and Wellbeing Board meetings, approved at the Board meeting on 6 June 2017.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:-

 agree to pilot arrangements to allow public questions on agenda items with a 
deadline of 12noon on the day after the publication of the agenda; and

 review the arrangements again after six months operation.

3. Introduction/Background

3.1 At its meeting on 6 June 2017, the Board approved arrangements to allow the 
public to ask questions at meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board in order to 
increase transparency in respect of the issues under discussion.  The agreed 
procedure is set out in the appendix to this report.  The Board agreed to review the 
arrangements after 6 months operation.

4. Review of the Arrangements

4.1 The arrangements have applied to two meetings, on 8 August and 3 October 2017.  
A third meeting, scheduled for 28 November, was cancelled due to lack of business.  
The opportunity to ask questions is notified on the meeting page for the Board on 
the Council website.

4.2 No public questions have been asked for either meeting, although the requirement 
to give 10 days’ notice of a question has been queried.  This time limit was 
introduced to ensure that there was sufficient time for an answer to be given at the 
meeting.  Concerns have been raised that this is before publication of the agenda 
for the meeting, meaning that questions cannot be linked to agenda items.

Page 119

HWB.30.01.2018/8



Management/Partnership&AgencyWorking/HealthReform/HWB/HWBReportrePublicQuestions20180130 2

4.3 It should be noted that there is no specific requirement that questions be linked to 
agenda items.  The Chair would also have the facility to allow urgent questions to 
be asked on a matter which the Board is due to consider at any meeting.

4.4 Despite this, however, no public questions have been asked.  In order to establish if 
this is due to the deadline for questions, it is proposed to pilot a revised 
arrangement for a further 6 months.  This will allow questions on a specific agenda 
item to be asked if 5 days’ notice is given, or by 12noon on the day after the agenda 
is issued.  The deadline of 10 days for other items will remain.

5. Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this matter.  The staff time required 
to operate the arrangements will be contained within the Council Governance Unit’s 
existing resources.

6. Consultation with stakeholders

6.1 The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board and SSDG have been consulted.

7. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Proposed Procedure/Arrangements for Public Questions.

8. Background Papers

8.1 Published Works – Barnsley MBC Constitution and associated Local Government 
legislation.

Officer:   Ian Turner    Contact: ianturner@barnsley.gov.uk     Date:   6 December 2017

Page 120

mailto:ianturner@barnsley.gov.uk


Management/Partnership&AgencyWorking/HealthReform/HWB/HWBReportrePublicQuestions20180130 3

APPENDIX 1

PROPOSED PROCEDURE/ARRANGEMENTS FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS

1. A member of the public may ask a question at a meeting of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board that, in the opinion of the Council’s Executive Director, Core 

Services, is relevant to the business of the Board and has been notified to the 

Council Governance Unit in writing by email no less than 10 clear days in advance 

of the meeting in question.

2. No question shall exceed 100 words in length.

3. An item shall be included as the first substantive item on the agenda for each Board 

meeting for the purpose of reporting public questions received.  Details of questions 

received will be made available to the Board by inclusion with the agenda papers, if 

necessary as a supplementary document.  Questions will not generally be read out 

at the meeting, but the person who has submitted the question may attend for the 

item in question.

4. All questions shall be answered by the relevant Board member, who may reserve 

the right to indicate that the answer is given within a specific paper on the Board’s 

agenda or reply in writing after the meeting.

5. The Executive Director, Core Services reserves the right to reject questions that are 

libellous or vexatious, or simply repeat questions answered at previous meetings.

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

30 JANUARY 2018

Barnsley Health and Care Together

Report Sponsor: Jeremy Budd, Director of 
Accountable Care, Barnsley CCG

Report Author: Joe Minton, Barnsley CCG
Received by SSDG: 15 January 2018
Received by HWB: 30 January 2018

1. Purpose of Report

1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the development of the Barnsley 
Health and Care Together partnership for the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board.

1.2. Please note that Barnsley Health and Care Together is the new working name for our 
integrated partnership work together to deliver accountable care. Further work to design a 
brand identity will be undertaken in the future, when appropriate.

2. Recommendations 

2.1. Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to –

 Note the contents of the report.

3. Introduction/Background

3.1. Integration of health and care has been a policy priority for successive Governments in the 
United Kingdom and many other countries around the world.

3.2. The NHS Five Year Forward view states that further integration of primary, community and 
hospital care, social and health care and physical and mental health are imperative to the 
long term sustainability of the NHS along with creating a greater focus on wellbeing and 
prevention. 

3.3. NHS England and the other NHS Five Year Forward View (5YFV) partners have been working 
with new care model vanguards, Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships and 
Accountable Care Systems to develop a framework of Accountable Care that can support 
new integrated models of health and care delivery. 

3.4. Accountable Care Organisations and Systems are population health focussed, clinically and 
social care led and work with a pooled budget to deliver a single set of agreed outcomes. In 
Barnsley, partners are working to deliver the principles of Accountable Care. It has been 
recognised that this term is not well understood and the partnership is considering the best 

Page 123

HWB.30.01.2018/9



2

way to communicate its vision and strategy. A new name for our partnership has been 
agreed as Barnsley Health and Care Together.

3.5. This emerging framework better incentivises interventions to be made “upstream”, support 
wellbeing and prevention and empower people and communities through co-production, 
resulting in less people becoming unwell or experiencing health and related crises. 

3.6. It will no longer be the case where initiatives are delayed or side-lined because they present 
risks to individual organisations even though these are outweighed by the potential benefits 
to people, communities and the wider system.

3.7. Health and care organisations in Barnsley have a long held vision to provide more integrated 
services that will better meet the needs of local people, reduce health inequalities across the 
Borough and improve health and wellbeing. The partnership includes – 

 Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

 South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust

 Barnsley Healthcare Federation

 Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)

 Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

 Barnsley Hospice

Additionally, Healthwatch Barnsley is in attendance, in accordance with its independent 
oversight duties.

3.8. The partnership is also talking to Voluntary Action Barnsley about becoming a member in the 
future.

3.9. Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) has statutory responsibility for health and 
wellbeing in the Borough. The developing partnership of health and social care organisations 
in Barnsley is intended to support the implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and Barnsley Plan. 

3.10. Building on the progress already made with service integration in Barnsley and the strength 
of local partnerships and in light of the emerging national policy framework and the 
developing South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Accountable Care System, partners have come 
together through a Shadow Delivery Board to - 

 Support the delivery of the Barnsley Plan which has been developed and agreed by 
HWB, beginning with priority areas of cardiovascular disease and frail elderly

 Oversee the Alliance Agreement which covers the neighbourhood nursing service, 
intermediate care (including RightCare Barnsley) and BREATHE 

Page 124



3

 Develop the local partnership arrangements, in shadow form initially but moving to a 
legally constituted form by April 2019 or as soon as legally practicable thereafter

 Deliver the place based requirements of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ACS

3.11. The Shadow Delivery Board is accountable to the Accountable Care Partnership Board. It is 
proposed that the Partnership adopts the name “Barnsley Health and Care Together” in 
order to simplify and better communicate the intent of the work programme.

4. Evidence of need / Link to Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

4.1. Over the last 10 years, Barnsley’s position relative to the rest of the country has remained 
virtually unchanged for most health and wellbeing indicators. Death rates from the three 
main killers – cardiovascular disease (heart disease and stroke), cancer and respiratory 
disease have fallen over the last 10 years but still remain significantly higher than the 
England average. Cancer, particularly lung cancer, is the main cause of premature death. 
Levels of obesity and diabetes are higher in Barnsley than the national average contributing 
to high death rates from cardiovascular disease (heart disease and stroke).  

4.2. The Barnsley population experience higher levels of mental ill health than nationally across a 
range of indicators. Forty percent of current illness in the city is either preventable or ‘delay-
able’ and the financial benefit of reducing this matches the moral imperative to do so.  

4.3. The vision of health and care organisations in Barnsley is to create of a simpler, integrated 
health and care system that will accelerate transformation across the Barnsley health and 
care system, support a shift in focus on treating patients with health problems to supporting 
the community to remain healthy in the first instance.  

5. Summary of progress

5.1. Following on from the first public meeting of the Shadow Delivery Board on 23 November, 
the programme has been making strides to establish the underlying workstream leadership, 
governance and objectives.

5.2. A weekly Programme Management (PMO) meeting has been established involving senior 
leaders across the partnership to ensure delivery. This group has been looking at the terms 
of reference and objectives for each of the workstream areas, ensuring that the work 
programmes adopt the operating principles for Accountable Care and how resources can be 
mobilised to support delivery.

5.3. Representatives from the partnership attended the national Accountable Care Learning 
Network (ACLN) at the Kings Fund on 5 December to join national policy leaders and experts 
along with other areas that leading the development of Accountable Care locally across the 
country.  The event included presentations and discussions around the new national 
contract for Accountable Care, collaboration agreements and outcomes frameworks 

5.4. The programme has adopted an approach of learning and sharing local experiences to 
prevent “reinventing the wheel” at every stage. This has included establishing links with 

Page 125



4

Sunderland and Scarborough which are areas further ahead with procurement of a multi-
speciality community provider models, and Wakefield and Tower Hamlets which are 
currently progressing with local provider alliances to embed new clinical and business 
models.

5.5. Over the next month the frail elderly and cardiovascular workstreams will be developing and 
finalising plans for 2018/19 along with system stakeholders, the Delivery Board will be 
developing the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) that includes the local case for change, outline 
care model and scope of services and expected outcomes for Barnsley and oversee the next 
phase in the mobilisation of the new integrated intermediate care service across the 
borough.

5.6. The CCG has engaged the New Business Models team within NHS England that is supporting 
sites looking to commission a novel contract for a new care model. The team is assisting the 
CCG to understand the future commissioning options that will best support the development 
of integrated health and care locally. 

6. Delivery of the Barnsley Place Based Plan

6.1. Greater integration of health and care services through a single accountable governance and 
organisational structure is a core part of the Barnsley Place Based Plan. The Barnsley Health 
and Care Working Together Partnership is taking responsibility for delivering the integration 
objective of the plan as well as wellbeing support, prevention, person-centred care delivery 
and building stronger local communities.

6.2. The initial priorities for the Partnership will be cardiovascular disease, frail elderly, locality 
development and to oversee the ACS performance dashboard for tier one services and 
progress of transformation.

6.3. Engagement and mapping exercises have taken, logic models have been drafted and working 
groups are being established for cardiovascular disease and frail elderly. Barnsley Hospital 
has joined the latest contingent of the Acute Frailty Network, working with peers and 
experts to transform hospital care for this group. Further work is underway to understand 
the resource requirements and map the benefits for people and the health and care system. 

6.4. A development session for the CCG Governing Body on locality working across Barnsley was 
held in November 2018 and a draft Locality Development Plan has been developed and 
submitted to NHS England in December 2018. The CCG Primary Care Team is organising a 
locality event in February to provide practice teams the opportunity to learn more about the 
programme, the opportunities and benefits of integrated working and in localities. 

7. Overseeing the Alliance Agreement

7.1. The Barnsley Alliance Management Team (AMT) continues to meet regularly to give 
assurance that the alliance agreement and associated services are being delivered in line 
with the objectives of the partnership, and to manage performance and risk. The services 
within the contract include - 

Page 126



5

 RightCare Barnsley  - Health Service Journal award winning service for Value in 
Healthcare 

 Intermediate Care

 Neighbourhood Nursing Service

 BREATHE (integrated respiratory service)

7.2. AMT has recently been focussing on the mobilisation of the new intermediate care service. 
The next steps will be to continue to refine the working practices across the new service 
configuration, further work on performance indicators, procurement of a longer term 
solution for independent sector beds and review of Rapid Response and “Hospital @ Home” 
elements of the new service.

7.3. The Shadow Delivery Board will oversee AMT, providing strategic direction to the alliance, to 
manage risk and to hold AMT to account for the performance of the alliance such that it 
achieves its objectives.

8. Developing the local partnership arrangements

8.1. Terms of reference have been drafted for workstreams including finance and contracting, 
communications and engagement and strategy. The Governance work will be taken forward 
by the Partnership Board and Shadow Delivery Board.

8.2. The Finance and Contracting Group met for the first time in under the new Chairmanship of 
Director of Finance at Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. The initial priorities of the 
group are to determine scope of services defined as those delivered in Barnsley for the 
Barnsley population, understand the current activity and the cost base. 

8.3. Agreement on the potential scope will mean partners can demonstrate that bringing services 
together can improve outcomes for patients and communities and ensure the best possible 
use of the Barnsley Pound. Currently this is health focussed. Social care may be included in 
the future with the agreement of all partners.

8.4. The Strategy Group is focused on developing the Strategic Outline Case which includes the 
case for change, design principles, outline care model and outcomes framework.

8.5. The Partnership Board has obtained legal advice to draft a collaboration agreement which 
will bring organisations more closely together to support integration and partnership 
working. It is expected that the collaboration agreement will be in place by the end of March 
2018.

8.6. The programme is reviewing the workstreams and structure of SSDG and HWB to make sure 
that there is not any unnecessary duplication.

Page 127



6

9. Delivering the place-based requirements of the SYB Accountable Care System (ACS)

9.1. The ACS across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw is developing at pace. In November the ACS 
provided an update on the system wide priorities for the forthcoming year and beyond, 
setting out what is expected will be delivered at system, place and organisational level.

Figure 1 SYB ACS Priorities

9.2. The Programme Management Office is currently conducting a review of the SYB ACS groups 
and work programmes to ensure the best possible alignment and efficient ways of working. 

9.3. The partnership has agreed to start to align communications and engagement activities by 
adopting the ACS strapline of “honest and clear”.

10. Stakeholder engagement/co-production

10.1. At the first Delivery Board meeting in public which included the general public, councillors 
and members of partners’ governing bodies a number of issues/concerns were raised 
including – 

 Accountable Care is a way of privatising NHS services in Barnsley.

Response provided: The Accountable Care Partnership, which we are in the process of 
developing is a partnership of publicly owned and publicly funded organisations, primary 
care organisations and the local authority.

 Involvement will not be wide enough to genuinely represent or consult Barnsley 
People and would not meet our statutory duties to consult with the Public.

Response provided: We are currently informing the public about Accountable Care and 
seeking to learn about their needs, ideas and concerns.  This is not a consultation, which is a 

Page 128



7

legal process where significant change to services would need to be consulted on following a 
due process. We have developed a stakeholder map that both includes wide sections of our 
local population and which will be added to as we access more groups.  We will also be 
working at community level to have direct conversations about key accountable care issues 
and seeking to broaden our reach by working with groups to access other representative 
communities, especially within the Protected Groups audiences. Work has already started to 
look at channels to reach the public. Reports will be made of all engagement and 
involvement activity.

 When hearing about the first two priority areas – cardiovascular disease and frailty – 
there was concern social care would not be included

Response provided: The Local Authority including social care is a key partner and are 
involved with our conversations and planning as we all work together to develop better 
outcomes for the people of Barnsley.

 Who is the Accountable Care Shadow Delivery Board accountable to?

Response provided: As a Board we are accountable to the Accountable Care Partnership 
Board, which in turn is widely accountable to all our partner organisations sovereign boards 
and Governing Bodies, including to the CCG which is is accountable to its GP membership, 
Healthwatch, , NHS England, SYB ACS, Health and Wellbeing Board, and scrutiny and 
regulatory bodies, e.g. the Care Quality Commission (CQC).

 All engagement and involvement would be based online and that many of Barnsley’s 
older population would be excluded as a result.

Response provided: We will develop engagement materials and tools accessible to all people 
and, whilst this will include online information, it will also include printed and other formats, 
e.g. larger print.  

 Clarity was sought about if Accountable Care in Barnsley was as an Accountable Care 
‘Partnership’, ‘System’ or ‘Organisation’.

Response provided: There is a South Yorkshire & Bassetlaw Accountable Care System with 5 
accountable care partnerships underpinning the system, Barnsley was one such partnership.  
There was a collective Memorandum of Understanding between partner organisations as 
opposed to a formal agreement.   Alliance contracts were already in place for delivery of 
some local service.  

10.2. The programme communications and engagement workstream is further developing the 
strategy and a suite of communications resources to facilitate continues engagement with 
the stakeholders.

10.3. There are a number of events planned over the next three months to engage with the public 
around the priority areas of work of the partnership including a locality BEST event for 

Page 129



8

primary and community care on 14 February 2018 and a cardiovascular disease and frail 
elderly event in March 2018.

11.Conclusion / Next Steps

11.1. HWB will continue to be updated on the developments of the programme and partnership 
working in Barnsley, and it should be noted that SSDG is updated on a monthly basis.

12.Financial implications

12.1. None included.

13. Appendices

13.1. None included.

14. Background papers

14.1. None included.

Page 130



1

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD

30 January 2018

Integrated Carers Service

Report Sponsor: Jayne Hellowell
Report Author: Jo Ekin/Elaine Equeall

1. Purpose of Report
The purpose of the report is to provide an update with regards to the 
commissioning of an Integrated Carers Service and the development of the 
Strategy Action Plan to support our Carers to optimise their quality of life and to 
continue to be effective in their caring role. 

2. Recommendations

2.1  Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:-

 Support the commissioning of an integrated Carers Service to maximise both 
resources and outcomes for Carers as identified within the Carers Strategy 
and action plan.

3. Introduction/ Background

3.1 The new Carers Strategy 2017-2020 (Appendix 1) highlights the importance of 
recognising the value of Carers both in terms of the support they need themselves 
but also because carers support the most vulnerable to remain healthy and 
independent and prevent people from needing more costly interventions.

The Strategy also tells us there is still more that can be done to support our Carers 
to optimise their quality of life and to continue to be effective in their caring role. 
Information gathered in support of the strategy from via carers, partners and 
providers recognises that current support is sporadic and lacks co-ordination for the 
individual Carer and also identified gaps in a number of areas.

Based on the aims of the Strategy a number of outline actions were identified which 
have helped to shape the Strategy Action Plan. The commissioning of the Integrated 
Carers Service will address a number of the key actions and also contribute to the 
ones accountable to the Carers Strategy Steering Group and wider partners.

Following the presentation of the Carers Strategy to SSDG in May 2017, it was 
recommended that a Carers Strategy Steering Group made up of relevant partners 
should be established to develop and lead on the delivery of a strategy action plan. 

Page 131

HWB.30.01.2018/10



2

In order to achieve the successful delivery of the Strategy and Action Plan it is vital 
that all key partners are represented on the Strategy Steering Group to ensure their 
organisation contribute fully to improving the support for Carers across the borough. 

Central to the action plan (see draft at Appendix 2), is the need to ensure there is a 
more co-ordinated whole system approach to Carer support in Barnsley, which will 
build on and add value to existing partner resource. To achieve this, a key 
recommendation is to commission a new Barnsley Integrated Carers Service. 

The Strategy Steering group has also taken on the role of commissioning project 
group to help shape the model of the new service.  There will be a cut-off point when 
the delivery model is worked up in detail in readiness for the procurement to ensure 
we do not give any member of the steering group a market advantage when it comes 
to the tender submissions.

4. Evidence of need / Link to Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

4.1 Whilst the JSNA recognises that people who provide unpaid care to a friend or a 
member of their family are often subject to health problems, anxiety, low self- esteem 
and social isolation, there is limited information included in the document specifically 
around the carers in our borough. 

However, national data tells us that in the UK, it is estimated that there are 
approximately 6.5 million carers who provide unpaid care and support to a friend or a 
member of their family that is elderly, disabled or seriously ill.1 This equates to 
approximately 1 in 8 adults across the UK.2 Of these, more than 3 million people 
juggle providing care with paid work.3. The number of carers nationwide is 
continually growing and there has been a 16.5% increase in the number of carers in 
the UK between 2001 and 2015. Carers UK predict that by 2037, the number of 
carers nationwide will have increased to around 9 million people.

The vast number of carers across the nation is extremely valuable to the state; £132 
billion per year is saved from the public purse due to the work of unpaid carers.4 
National literature and research clearly demonstrates that the caring role has an 
impact on the health and wellbeing of carers; it is likely that the negative impact that 
caring has on a person’s health will reduce their effectiveness at caring.  
Whilst many carers consider their role to be a rewarding one, unpaid caring can have 
a considerable impact on a carer’s health and wellbeing.  A Carers UK National 
Carers Survey5 of 7286 carers in 2017 found that;

1 UK Census 2011
2 Carers UK
3 UK Census 2011
4 Valuing Carers 2015 - the rising value of carers’ support, Lisa Buckner University of Leeds, Sue Yeandle University of 
Sheffield

5 Carers UK (2017) The State of Caring https://www.carersuk.org/for-professionals/policy/policy-library/state-of-caring-report-
2017  

Page 132



3

 81% have felt lonely or socially isolated as a result of their caring role - this 
rises to 86% for carers providing 50 hours or more of care. 

 6 out of 10 people (61%) said their physical health has worsened as a result 
of caring; 

 7 out of 10 (70%) said they have suffered mental ill health; 
 Nearly half of respondents (46%) said they have suffered from depression 

because of their caring role. 
 7 out of 10 (69%) of carers find it difficult to get a good night’s sleep as a 

result of caring; 
 Over half of people (54%) also reported that they have reduced the amount of 

exercise they take because of caring; 
 45% reported that they have found it difficult to maintain a balanced diet; 
 over two thirds of carers (68%) said that their GP knows but that they don’t do 

anything different as a result; 
 a quarter of people (25%) said they hadn’t had a day off from caring for more 

than five years; 
 4 out of 10 carers (40%) said they hadn’t had a day off for more than a year; 
 6 out of 10 carers (65%) reported having received an assessment of the 

impact of their caring role in the previous year; 
 Three million people, 1 in 9 of the workforce, combine caring for a loved one 

with paid work; 
 4 out of 10 carers (43%) said they had given up work completely to care; 
 13% reporting that they had retired early to care; 
 1 in 5 of all carers (21%) said they had reduced their working hours to care. 

The 2011 Census recorded 27,176 unpaid carers in Barnsley representing 12% of 
the population. 4,075 people identified themselves as caring for 20 hours per week 
or more, with a further 15,473 caring between 1 and 19 hours per week. 7,609 
people said they were caring for 50 hours or more.  By 2015, the number of carers in 
Barnsley increased by 4.6% to 28,429; the value of such care is estimated to be 
around £605 million per year6.

By 2037, Carers UK calculates that the number of carers in the UK will increase by 
40%, which would mean nearly 39,800 carers in Barnsley. 

It is therefore vital that sustainable support solutions are in place for carers that will 
empower them to be independent at an individual and community level. The 
commissioning of an Integrated Carers Service will ensure that carers achieve 
choice and control in their day to day lives and with the support they receive, will be 
enabled to maintain and sustain their caring role whilst maintaining their own health 
and well-being.  This will include practical support and assistance to obtain any 
necessary benefits they are entitled to claim to prevent financial hardship or to avoid 
the cared for person having to access specialist, residential or social support. This 
support should also include access to services that provide aids and adaption and 
assistive living technologies to help the individual to continue to live in their own 
home.  Support will also be provided for carers to help them to have time away from 

6 Valuing Carers 2015 - the rising value of carers’ support, Lisa Buckner University of Leeds, Sue Yeandle University of 
Sheffield

Page 133



4

caring, allowing them to have a healthy lifestyle, social interaction and look after their 
own mental well-being.

The identification of carers can also pose a significant challenge; if a carer doesn’t 
identify as such then they will not access the support they are entitled to. 70% of 
carers come into contact with health professionals yet health professionals only 
identify one in ten carers.7 Therefore, in order to improve outcomes for the wellbeing 
of carers, it is essential that links are made with healthcare professionals to improve 
the identification of carers and ensure they are aware of the support available to 
them.

5. Service Model

5.1 Model of Delivery
The preferred option of the project group is to procure one integrated contract that 
will provide a single point of contact for all carers to access good quality information, 
advice and support via a tiered approach.  

The newly commissioned service will deliver against the outcomes identified for 
Carers in the local strategy to ensure they are;

 Informed and Empowered
 Individually resilient

The aim of the Carers Resource Service will be to promote, support and improve the 
mental, physical, emotional and economic well-being of carers, so they can continue 
in their caring role, look after their own health and wellbeing and have a life of their 
own in terms of opportunities for work, training, education, leisure and social 
interaction. 

A preventative focus will also be required to enable Carers to access appropriate 
support as early as possible to help them improve their health and wellbeing, prevent 
any problems getting worse and reduce the demand for specialist services for both 
themselves and the person they care for.  The service will also provide a range of 
structured interventions and support that will be personalised and service user 
focussed. 

The service will focus on the achievement of key outcomes for Carers to help them 
to optimise the quality of their life and well-being and to support them to continue to 
be effective in their role as a Carer.  A personalised planning support approach and 
an outcome framework tool will be used to measure improvement across the 
following seven areas;

 Health and well-being

7 Macmillan Briefing on Carers Issues 2013, 
https://www.macmillan.org.uk/documents/getinvolved/campaigns/mps/commons2ndreadingbriefing.pdf 

Page 134

https://www.macmillan.org.uk/documents/getinvolved/campaigns/mps/commons2ndreadingbriefing.pdf


5

 The caring role
 Managing at home or that of the person cared for
 Time for yourself 
 How you feel
 Finances
 Work

The service will also be responsible for administering the Carers Grant on behalf of 
the Council to ensure we continue to promote and build capacity to support carers 
within our communities. 

 To maximise both resources and outcomes for carers the service will work 
collaboratively with key partners within the public, voluntary and private sectors 
to develop effective referral and care pathways. The service will ensure that any 
relevant procedures, protocols and appropriate information sharing agreements 
are developed to ensure a whole systems approach that will ensure carers are 
connected to a range of appropriate support to achieve wider health and 
wellbeing benefits for Carers.  Such organisations/agencies will include (but not 
be limited to);  Primary Care, and specifically General Practices; Secondary 
Care; DWP, Mental Health Services, Memory Team, Social Prescribing, Safe 
and Well checks (Fire service), Lifestyle Services, local Self Help forums and 
other provider/support forums etc. 

The service will also be required to encourage and assist Carers to undertake a 
statutory Carers Assessment and will develop a joint working process with Adult 
Social Care to enable this to happen.

Adult Social Care has reviewed their Carers Policy and is considering a number of 
options with regard to allocating one-off payments to carers who may not be eligible 
for support via a carer’s assessment or who have not had an assessment.  This 
process is in its early stages of development particularly around the eligibility criteria 
and management of the payments however, the new Integrated Carers Service will 
need to ensure that carers are supported to access this support. There is also an 
opportunity to look at the possibility of integrating this process into the Integrated 
Carers Service and the provider hosting the funding on behalf of the council to 
provide the allocation of payments to carers. 

The service will work in partnership with the Council and other relevant organisations 
to implement/improve workplace support that local employers provide for carers so 
that they can care more effectively and/or maintain their caring role whilst still 
fulfilling their employment potential and looking after their own health and wellbeing.  

5.2 Location
The Service will be delivered from a range of locations across the borough and at 
various times to be determined by the Service based on identified need and demand.  
Shared accommodation with other services is actively encouraged.  Access points 
and access times should take in to account local public transport links and caring 
arrangements.

Page 135



6

5.3 Young Carers
After exploring the commissioning options for the Young Carers Service the option to 
extend the contract with the existing provider for a further year will be invoked. 
The option to undertake the joint procurement of an integrated Carers Service as a 
whole (adults and children) was explored and considered by the Executive 
Commissioning Group (ECG) and not felt to be appropriate at this stage. It is 
important that Young Carers are supported for all their needs through a holistic offer 
and this is best achieved through connectivity with other children and young people’s 
support services, hence the Young Carers Service needs to be included as part of 
the Vulnerable Adolescent Service Review over the coming year.

It is important that we recognise young carers as children in their own right and 
minimise the potential negative impact of caring responsibilities on their life chances. 
Although this is best achieved through a dedicated and expert response, the 
Integrated Carers Service and the Young Carers Service will be required and 
supported to develop effective collaborative working relationships. In particular, they 
will be expected to join up the response for young people in transition between 
services and to offer joint working where there may be both adult and young carers 
within the family unit.

A time-limited task and finish group is currently being organised to ensure we are 
taking a joined up approach to develop the specification and to investigate the areas 
around young carers that could be potentially included in the integrated service at a 
later date.  This approach will also ensure collaborative working takes place with the 
current young carer’s provider and the new carer’s service provider whilst the 
Vulnerable Adolescent Service Review takes place.  

6. Next Steps

6.1 …Timescales
A project plan and procurement timescales have been drawn up to steer the 
commissioning and procurement process with the aim of the new service 
commencing 1 August 2018.  Key milestone dates are detailed below;

 January 2018 - Market engagement.
 Early February 2018 – Final service specification
 February 2018 – May 2018 – Tender process
 August 2018 – new service commences.
*  timescales subject to change

7. Financial Implications

7.1 ….Resources available
The aim is to procure a 2 year contract with an option to extend for 1 year – the 
annual contract cost being £240,000 per annum.  

We have identified resources totalling £240,000 per annum covering the financial 
years 2018/19 and 2019/20, this comprises;

Page 136



7

 £100,000 per annum from the Better Care Fund (BCF);
  and a maximum of £140,000 per annum from Healthier Communities.  

In terms of BCF a total allocation of £300k (£100k per annum) has been agreed from 
2017/18 to 2019/20.  However it is currently unclear whether the Government will 
allow any unspent allocations from 2017/18 to be carried forward therefore at this 
stage we are working on the basis of £200k in BCF being available to support 
contract costs from its commencement in August 2018 until 31 March 2020. 

In terms of the contribution from Healthier Communities this will be achieved through 
the release of funding linked to contract expirations – KLOE savings linked to 
contracts will be unaffected by this proposal.

At present the proposal requires a temporary resource commitment – continuation 
being predicated on identification of additional income and the success of the 
initiative.

Work is taking place to engage with a broader set of partners to look at opportunities 
for wider joint commissioning and joint funding.  Unfortunately this is not progressing 
as quickly as we would like but we will continue to progress this in the hope that 
additional funds can be identified before the procurement goes live.  

We are also working with corporate procurement to look at building some flexibility 
into the contract to allow us to extend/reduce the services as required. This is to 
ensure that if any additional funds are identified we can direct these into this service 
provision and extend its reach, keeping consistency with the provider and without 
having to commission the same or very similar services via a separate procurement 
because the scope of this one is restricted to only the value of the funds that are 
currently available.

8. Alignment / Delivery of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy 

8.1….The proposed Integrated Carers Service will promote, support and improve the 
mental, physical, emotional and economic well-being of carers, so they can continue 
in their caring role, look after their own health and wellbeing and have a life of their 
own in terms of opportunities for work, training, education, leisure and social 
interaction. 

9. Alignment / Delivery of the Barnsley Place Based Plan 

9.1…. That people are enabled to take control of and improve their health and well-
being.

10. Stakeholder engagement/ co-production 

10.1….Information and intelligence regarding carers has been gathered via the 
consultation process and the co-production of the Carers Strategy and Action Plan.   

Page 137



8

10.2 Consultation on the proposal and scoping of the new service has taken place 
through the Carers Strategy Steering group and the Carer and Friends Group.  The 
draft Service Specification was taken to the Carers and Friends Group on 8 January 
2018 for consultation.

10.3 Benchmarking with other areas similar to Barnsley has taken place to identify 
and examine different delivery models, levels of funding and outcomes achieved.  A 
visit to the Carers Resource Centre in Bradford has also taken place which was 
particularly informative and useful whilst developing the scope of the service in 
Barnsley.

10.4 As part of the procurement process market engagement will take place during 
January to engage with organisations that may be interested in delivering a service 
in Barnsley.  

10.5 Members of the evaluation panel will review and score the quality question 
responses on 19/20 March 2018 and the evaluation panel will then meet on 22 
March to agree the scores and the successful provider.  Members of the panel 
consist of representatives from;

 BMBC Healthier communities
 BMBC Stronger Communities
 Carer representation
 BMBC Adult Social Care
 BMBC Children’s Services
 CCG (to be confirmed)

The following consultation with key partners has also taken place/is planned;

 28 November 2017 – circulate report to Communities and People DMT members 
for comment by 4 December 2017.

 12 December 2017 – final report for approval by SMT.
 15 January 2018 – SSDG.
 30 January 2018 – Health and Well-being Board

11. Appendices

11.1 Appendix 1 - Carers Strategy 2017-2020 #BarnsleyCares 
11.2 Appendix 2 - Carers Strategy Action Plan

12. Background Papers
N/A

Officer: Jo Ekin Contact: 01226 775613 Date:  18/01/2018

Page 138



#BarnsleyCares
Carers’ Strategy for 2017-2020

A strategy by carers for carers

Page 139



Why we need a carers’ 
strategy for Barnsley
In 2013 we developed a three-year carers’ strategy called ‘Caring Together, 
Building a Future for Barnsley’. In this, we recognised the need to support 
carers as one of our most valuable assets to the health and wellbeing of 
Barnsley residents. As a council, we have been working with carers and our 
partners to continue to find ways to make sure that carers are not forgotten, 
and can receive the support they deserve. 

We knew this was something that could not be quickly or easily achieved 
and over the last few years we have been presented with new and different 
challenges; therefore, it is right that we should review and look again at how 
we can best support carers in Barnsley. 

We define carers in Barnsley as:

“Ordinary people whose lives have changed 
because they are looking after a relative or 
friend, who because of disability, illness, 
substance misuse, special condition or the 
effects of old age, cannot manage without help”

This definition recognises anyone of any age including:

• Adult carers
• Parent carers 
• Young carers 
• Working carers
• Kinship carers 
• Carers from community backgrounds

The definition recognises that carers in Barnsley are diverse. They could 
be disabled carers, LGBT (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual or Transgender) carers, 
BME (Black or Minority Ethnic) carers. This strategy recognises that different 
carers may require a different type of support and may need to be engaged 
in a variety of ways. The strategy will, therefore, aim to be flexible to carers 
varying needs and differences, as well as ensuring that all carers have equal 
access to the services and support outlined within this strategy (particularly 
consideration will be given to those carers who may face an additional 
barrier to accessing these services).

#BarnsleyCares
Page 2

#BarnsleyCares
Page 3

What we know about 
carers in Barnsley

We all have a responsibility to support carers but we know that carers can find it difficult 
to access the support and advice they need. People like GP’s, Social Workers and 
Pharmacists play an important role in ensuring carers are identified and connected to 
support services. The Care Act 2014 says that Local Authorities and Health bodies must 
work together to identify carers.1

1Department of Health Care and support statutory guidance, Paragraph 2.35 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-statutory-guidance/care-and-support-statutory-guidance

2.8% 
The percentage 

of age 16+ in Barnsley 
who claimed carers’ 
allowance in 2016.

 Compared with UK
 average of 1.7%

23.2% 
The increase since 2005

 in the number of people aged 
65 years and over. Suggesting

a potential increase in the 
number of individuals 

who may need 
future care.

1,091 
The number of carers

who have registered for a carers 
card (to help with emergency respite 

for those they care for)
since the scheme
started in 2009

27,167
The total number of

people providing unpaid
care. Equivalent to approx

12% of the population (231,221)
of these 15,473 1-19 hours per 

week, 4,075 20-49 hours,
7,619 50 or more hours

The amount of
unpaid care provided by

Barnsley carers in one week is

£8.2 million
(based on £17.20 per hour.

Carers UK research. Carers UK
is a charitable organisation
that campaigns on behalf

of carers)

127 
people who received carers 

assessment  through our adult 
social care team in 2016.

63% were female and 37% male
11% were under 30 years old

7% were aged 30-39, 
25% 50-59,13% 60-69, 

13% 70-79 and
13% 80+

Anyone can become a carer at any time and because of this, we do not 
know the full extent of carers in our borough. This information can be 
difficult to find because many people do not see themselves as a carer or 
label themselves as one in any data we collect. There is currently no central 
registration or support centre in Barnsley therefore we have to rely on a 
number of other measures to get a picture of who our carers are and the 
impact they have on health and social care in the borough. 

P
age 140



What have we achieved? 
Our Carers and Friends group have worked hard alongside our partners 
and providers to support carers in many different ways and the small grants 
fund has enabled people to work together to find solutions.

Our objectives 2013-2016: Some examples of how we achieved 
these:

Improved Services 
Develop and implement 
processes for early 
identification, referral, 
assessment and support.

A pilot programme to help identify carers 
in GP surgeries by Healthwatch.

Delivery of carer Information Support 
Programme (CRISP) by Alzheimer’s.

Enable carers to            
co-produce and 
co-deliver solutions to 
the delivery of services.

Carers were involved in commissioning 
process for new home care contracts with 
Barnsley Council.

Carers testing of Barnsley Council on-line 
assessments for social care.

Develop opportunities for 
support outside caring 
roles and for carers to be 
treated as individuals in 
their own right.

Engaging, learning and creative activities 
programme with young carers at 
Barnardo’s by QDOS creates.

Programme of support for carers of 
terminally ill through Barnsley Hospice.

Access to advice on 
financial management 
and support to 
employment.

Drop–in carer specific sessions delivered 
by Citizen’s Advice Bureau.

Parent support programme for children 
with Autism and Asperger’s.

Promoted health and 
wellbeing of carers 
including emotional and 
physical wellbeing.

Promoted informal support for carers via 
carers’ newsletter. 

Supported a healthy lifestyles programme 
at 360 Engagement.

Provided health and wellbeing through 
carers support programmes at Barnsley 
Beacon.

Understanding what 
more we could do
Whilst we know that what we have accomplished has made a big 
difference, there is still more that can be done to achieve our goals set out 
to support our carers in Barnsley. 
Over the latter part of 2016 and into early 2017 we asked carers, partners 
and providers to work with us to identify the focus of our strategy for the 
next three years. 

These included:
• Carers and Friends Group
• Carers at Carers week and Carers Right Day 2016 
• Carers via Providers, social media and electronic newsletter
• 360 Engagement
• Age UK
• Alzheimer’s
• BIADS
• BMBC Commissioners
• Barnsley Advocacy service
• Barnsley Beacon
• Barnsley council cabinet spokesperson for communities
• CCG
• Healthwatch
• Making Space
• NHS GP Liaison Service
• Parkinson’s UK
• Public health
• Recovery college (SWYFT)
• Royal Voluntary Service
• South Yorkshire Eating Disorders Association (SYEDA)
• South Yorkshire Housing Association
• Together for Mental Health

#BarnsleyCares
Page 4

#BarnsleyCares
Page 5

P
age 141



Together we identified the gaps that still exist in the support for 
carers 

• Lack of information and communication, on-line, in person and on paper.
• Support; financial, emotional, practical and psychological. 
• Support to maintain employment. 
• Developing IT skills.
• Relationships with GP’s. 
• Being recognised and listened to as a carer by professionals.
• Isolation. 
• Support to maintain independence and respite provision.
• Supporting young carers in their transition to adults.
• Greater recognition for kinship carers. 
• Support with hospital visits for carers.
• Better awareness across the community.
• Fragmented services for carers.

Our aims for carers
We have based our aims on three outcomes we want for all carers.

#BarnsleyCares
Page 6

#BarnsleyCares
Page 7

Our strategy is based 
on valuing the role 
carers play by ensuring 
they are supported.

Informed
and 

empowered

• Access to good quality information and 
advice. To not be disadvantaged by the 
role of carer. 

• Knowledge and understanding of the 
services and policies that support carers 
in their role and the ability to influence and 
contribute to these. 

• Education and training to support all 
members of our communities to raise 
awareness and value the role of carers. 

Individually 
resilient 

• Support and improve the physical and 
emotional health and wellbeing of all 
carers.  

• Enable carers to continue to lead and 
enjoy their own life through work and play.

• Ensure carers remain safe within their role 
and free from harassment in the wider 
community.

• Enable carers to participate fully in 
their community and increase social 
connections.

Providers
of good 
quality
care

• Ensure carers have the knowledge and 
skills necessary to support those they care 
for.

• Improve recognition of carers and their 
contribution to health and wellbeing of 
those they care for.

• Work with health care providers to ensure 
that carers are valued and can be seen as 
part of health care process.

P
age 142



Achieving our aims
To achieve our aims we will need to focus our future efforts on: 

• Carers being placed at the heart of the health and wellbeing 
strategy including the planning. 

• Working together to create solutions that we can all contribute to 
and will work for everyone.

• Making the best use of the resources we have available through 
commissioning and funding, which not only responds to needs 
but enables sustainable solutions.

Carers at the heart of 
health and wellbeing
Maintaining the health and wellbeing of everyone is a high priority for 
Barnsley. 

We have already acknowledged the role carers have in this, not only 
regarding the economic value they add to social care, but also the massive 
contribution carers make in supporting the most vulnerable to remain 
healthy and independent. There are many factors in our approach to 
maintaining health and wellbeing and as we develop these we will need to 
consider:

• What do carers contribute to this?
• How does this affect carers?
• How can we support any additional needs this creates for carers?

#BarnsleyCares
Page 8

#BarnsleyCares
Page 9

Working together to 
create solutions
Our strategy planning workshop informed us how we would need to focus 
our attention to support carers and offered some potential solutions. Based 
on our aims we identified the following outline actions for our future strategy 
action plan.  

Aim: Outline actions:

Informed
and 
empowered

To improve access to good 
quality information and 
advice ensuring carers are 
not disadvantaged.

To develop Information Hubs and 
availability of helplines

To support carers to develop 
their digital skills

To develop networking 
opportunities for young carers 
through social media

To improve the knowledge 
and understanding of the 
services and associated 
policies that support carers. 
Carers to be more involved in 
the development and review 
of these.

Improve communications 
between health and social care 
services, carer engagement and 
provider feedback. Co-produced 
services and commissioning.

Education and training to 
support all members of 
our communities to raise 
awareness and value the role 
of carers.

Work with schools, Voluntary 
community and social enterprise 
sector, faith groups and 
businesses to raise awareness of 
carers and help identify hidden 
carers.

P
age 143



#BarnsleyCares
Page 10

#BarnsleyCares
Page 11

Making the best use 
of resources

External
Funding

Voluntary
Sector 

Support

Peer 
Support

BMBC
Funding Carers

Partner 
Funding

Individually 
resilient 

Enable carers to continue to 
lead fulfilling lives.

Improve access to respite care.

Check and challenge how carer 
friendly the major employers in 
Barnsley are

Develop more activities for young 
carers

Ensure carers remain safe 
within their role and free 
from harassment in the wider 
community.

Develop and improve access 
to safeguarding awareness for 
carers

Develop Peer Support for Carers

Enable carers to participate 
fully in their community and 
increase social connections.

Work with Area Councils to 
develop awarenmess of carers.

Develop ‘spot’ ( ad hoc ) support 
for carers to enable short breaks

Develop more befriending and 
volunteer schemes for carers

Work with Universal Services 
such as Libraries to develop the 
offer for carers

Ensure carers have the 
knowledge and skills 
necessary to support those 
who are in their care.

Deliver Carer support 
programmes such as CRISP 
(Carers Resource, Information 
and Support Programme) 

Provide First aid training and 
post-care support.libraries.

Providers
of good 
quality
care

Improve recognition of carers 
contribution to health and 
wellbeing of those who are in 
their care.

Continue to develop the carer 
registration scheme with the 
potential to link this to the carers 
card ( an emergency respite care 
card )
 
Utilise social media to raise 
awareness of the role and 
contribution of carers and 
campaigning where we see 
disadvantage.

Work with health care 
providers to ensure that 
carers are valued and are 
seen as part of the health 
care process.

Work in partnership with health 
care providers in reviewing the 
approach to carers in terms of 
policies and practice.

The next steps in taking 
our strategy forward
Establish the carers’ strategy steering 
group to build an action plan to show how 
we can meet the aims we have identified 
in our strategy, and regularly check the 
progress on this over the next three years.

April 2017 - March 2020

Build and develop a business case 
for the options available to provide a 
comprehensive solution to meet the 
outcomes we have identified. 

Spring - Autumn 2017

Continue to work with all stakeholders to deliver the strategy and 
report into the Health & Wellbeing Board on progress.

As part of our strategy 
planning, we are committed 
to making sure that any 
available resources are put 
to best use. To achieve this, 
we will need to consider all 
resources to help achieve 
the outcomes we have 
identified; this could include 
some or all of the following 
over time.

P
age 144



For more information about this strategy 
please contact us: 
lovewhereyoulive@barnsley.gov.uk
Tel: 01226 773555
f www.facebook.com/YVBarnsley/

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 1

Appendix 2

Carers Strategy Action plan 

Strategy aims

1. Carers Informed and Empowered 

Aim Actions Who will deliver Draft 
Performance 
Indicator 
/timescales 

Lead Support 
1.1 Access to good 
quality information 
and advice to not be 
disadvantaged by the 
role of carer

i. Develop information to highlight 
carer role recognition and 
supporting information . 
Promotion campaign using 
supermarkets, social media and 
through other digital channels. 

ii. Information hubs developed in 
places such as GP surgeries 

iii. Development of Carer 
Champions in schools / GP 
surgeries

iv. Dedicated Advice for carers – 

Comms leads CCG/BDGH/ 
SWYFT/ BMBC

Carer Service

Barnardos / Healthwatch 
YP engagement lead / CCG 
lead   

Carer Service

 Marie Hoyle GP 
liaison

Comms strategy 
Number of 
campaigns, key dates 
, measure of reach 

Number of GP hubs 
developed /number 
of carers engaged

Number of 
Champions 
established/number 
engaged 

No of Carers seen, 

P
age 147



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 2

accredited Advice Providers 
tailored delivery 

Carers service 
DIAL/ CAB

outcome measure 
from advice.

1.2 Knowledge and 
understanding of the 
services and policies to 
support carers in their 
role and able to 
influence and 
contribute to these

i. Improve communications 
between health and social care 
services. 

ii. Improve carer engagement and 
provider feedback mechanisms 
through Co-produced services 
and commissioning. 
(link to Carer Charter) 

iii. Communication map for carers 
including where to go and how 
to take things forward, 
complaint procedure 

iv. Improve communication with 
carer identification and personal 
information sharing scheme. 
(Investigate Link to Current 
Carer Card Scheme /Young carer 
ID scheme pilot

Strategic partnerships 
SSDG/H&WB Board

Strategic Partnership 
approach through Charter

Carer service

Information governance 
leads across partnership / 
Elaine Equeall/ Sharon 
Clarke / 
Carers/Barnardos/Berneslai 
homes 

Partners via 
steering 
group/Carer 
service
Delivery partners 
 

CAB/ DIAL 
through Advice 
role

Strategic 
partnership 
through carer 
charter 
Carer Service 

Development of joint 
policy working 
practice/carer 
charter
Evidence of Carer 
involvement in 
commissioning 
process/contract 
monitoring 

Map developed 
/Carer awareness 
measured

Number of carer ID 
cards taken up
Evaluation of young 
carers identification 
pilot ( Berneslai 
Homes/ Barnardos

1.3 Education and 
Training to support all 
members of our 
communities to raise 
awareness and value 

I. Work with schools, VCSE and 
faith groups to raise awareness 
and help identify and target the 
hidden carers

VAB lead / Young Carer 
commissioner/Young Carer 
ID scheme 

Carer service Equality targets  for 
carers reached 

P
age 148



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 3

the role of carers

II. Carer Ambassador  in 
communities, Young  Carer 
Mentors out of school youth 
groups such as scouts,and 
schools. ( Link to Charter) 

VCSE  & Carer lead / Area 
Teams/ Equalities Forums 
/Barnardos

Carers Service 
No of ambassadors 
/mentors set up

2. Carers Individually Resilient 

Aim Actions Lead Support Draft PI/timescales 
2.1 Support and 
improve the physical 
and emotional health 
and wellbeing of all 
carers

I. Increase take up of carer 
assessments and personal 
budgets. 

II. Increase and improve peer 
support

III. Map and raise awareness of 
activities and groups to support 
carers and the cared for. Identify 
gaps, and target Carers Grant 
provision 

IV. New carer policy to improve 
take up of assessment and get 
feedback. 

Julie Moore BMBC

Carers service 

Carers Service / Carers 
Grant provision 

Julie Moore BMBC

Carers Service

Providers/partners

Partners via Steering 
group / Carer Lead 
& commissioner

Strategy steering 
group 
partners/carers 
service

Increase in number of 
carer assessment 
recorded 
Service and contract 
monitoring to show 
outcomes
Link to comms strategy, 
contract monitoring 
outcomes for carers 
service . Monitoring of 
Carers Grant 

P
age 149



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 4

V. Monitor outcomes and uptake 
from carers grant activities that 
support physical and emotional 
well-being. 

Carers service Carers Grant monitoring 
outcomes

2.2 Enable carers to 
continue to lead and 
enjoy their own life 
through work and 
play 

I. Work with employers to raise 
awareness of carer needs. 
Employer recognition scheme 
#BarnsleyCares and link to 
regional ‘working carers’ 
project. ( link to Carers charter) 

II. Activities for young carers, 
mapped ,developed and 
delivered 

III. New policy for respite – to have 
a break and personal budget 
and to monitor outcomes, 
improve access. 

IV. Leisure – Discounts and info on 
other discounts. Sponsorship. 

NHS, BMBC Workforce 
Strategic Partner 
organisations H&WB  
JCP/ BBIC

Sarah Sinclair 
Children’s 
Commissioning BMBC 
/Barnardos / Carers 
grant providers 

Sharon Graham / Julie 
Moore BMBC 

BPL 
Carers and Friends 

BMBC Carer lead

Carer Service / link 
to comms strategy 

Carers Service role 
to increase take up

Strategy steering 

Number of employers 
signed to the charter

Contract monitoring 
outcomes 

Outcomes from respite 
take up rates , 
experience of carers 
noted 

Carer take up rates and 
outcomes ,

P
age 150



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 5

Feedback from carers about 
what they use or where they 
go/would like to go.

group 
Carers Service 

group partners Leisure organisation 
sign up to charter 

2.3 Ensure Carers 
remain safe within 
their role and free 
from harassment in 
the wider community 

I. Safeguarding awareness training 
to be identified to support 
carers 

             

II. Investigate link to hate & 
harassment team. 

 
III. Representative on safeguarding 

ref group to feed into 
safeguarding board. 

Cath Erine 
Safeguarding 
Manager/Strategy 
steering group 
partners

Cath Erine /Faith 
Ridgewick/strategy 
steering group 

Carers And Friends 
Group 

Training and delivery 
mechanisms identified 

Carer rep identified 

2.4 Enable Carers to 
participate fully in 
their community and 
increase social 
connections

Link to actions aligned with 
2.1 
1.3 

Carer Service Area Teams Carers participating in 
community activity ( 
link to volunteering 
outcomes) 

P
age 151



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 6

3. Carers as providers of good quality care
Aim Actions Lead Support Draft PI/timescales
3.1 Ensure Carers have 
the knowledge and 
skills necessary to 
support those they 
care for

I. Carer support programmes 
developed such as CRISP, First 
Aid training, Post-care support.

II. Skills to Care programme , link 
to young carer needs as well as 
older carers 

VCSE Sector/  
Steering group 
partners 
SWYFT/Providers 

BMBC Workforce 
Development 

Carers Service Number of carers taking 
part in training / 
monitoring from Carers 
Grant 

4 Cohorts (Oct –March 
2018

3.2 Improve 
recognition of carers 
contribution to health 
and wellbeing of those 
they care for 

I. Carer registration and 
identification scheme – link to 
carer’s card. 1.1(i)1.2 (iv) 

II. Link to action point 1.1(i) GP 
identification scheme 

BMBC Sharon 
Clarke, Carer lead 
/Partners Carer 
service 

/Marie Hoyle GP 
liaison / 
BDGH/SWYFT

Strategic partners 
SSDG

Strategic partners 
SSDG

Take up rate of carers 
card / Carers numbers 
involved in health and 
social care consultation 
and assessment process

P
age 152



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 7

3.3 Work with health 
care providers to 
ensure that carers are 
valued and can be seen 
as part of the health 
care process 

I. Health care provider input to 
support programmes link to 3.1

Strategic partners 
BDGH/CCG/SWYFT

Carers Service 

Cross cutting actions

Carer Charter 
Borough wide shared 
commitment to develop a Carer 
Friendly Barnsley 

Develop stakeholder pledge: 
everyone  has an awareness and 
understanding of the part played by carers in 
their community, services and businesses are 
geared towards addressing carer needs , 
doing things differently 

All stakeholders to promote and sign up 
BMBC/NHS to lead with their own workforce

Centralised Carer Offer Links to carer policy BMBC lead Julie Moore / Keith Dodd / Elaine 
Equeall / Carers /Carers Service

P
age 153



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 8

Carers Strategy Steering group membership/distribution list  

Name Organisation 
Christine Key Carer
Margaret Baker Carer 
Rochelle Jagger Carer
Jo Thompson Carer
Allison Sampson Carer
Julie Brown Carer
Martine Tune CCG
Cllr Jenny Platts Cabinet Member for Communities 
Val Cole SWYFT
Zahida Mallard SWYFT
Yvonne Saunders Crossroads Care
Julia Goddard Making Space 
Linda Anderson Making Space 
Jill Morton DIAL
Julie Moore BMBC Carer Policy lead 
Zoe Wardle SYHA 
Kate Phillips Barnardos 
Linda McDermott Barnsley Beacon 
Diane Hinchcliffe Alzheimers 
James Goodwin Healthwatch 
Jo Clark CAB
Tracy Leach BMBC Public health 
Adrian Hobson BMBC Children’s Commissioner
Sarah Sinclair BMBC Children’s Commissioner
Claire Wittal Mind 
Julie Ferry Barnsley Hospice 
Vicky Lowe Cloverleaf 
Sharon Clarke BMBC Adult Social Care 
Elaine Equeall BMBC Communities 
Debbie Lindley BMBC Communities 
Jo Ekin BMBC Commissioner Healthier Communities
Helen Norton BMBC Healthier communities 

P
age 154



18/01/2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Page | 9

P
age 155



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

30th January 2018

Falls Prevention, Early Help and Frailty

Report Sponsor: Brigid Reid (CCG Chief Nurse) 
Report Author: Megan Ward (CCG 

Commissioning and 
Transformation Manager)

Received by SSDG: 17 October 2017
Date of Report: 19.12.17

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To inform the H&WB board of the developments of the work taking place across the borough 
around Falls, Early Help and Frailty

1.2 To acknowledge and promote the effective communication and workstreams across organisational 
boundaries in order to best serve Barnsley people

2. Recommendations

2.1Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:-

 Note the multi-agency work taking place around Falls and Frailty
 Continue to endorse and support the Falls work
 Provide leadership within their organisations to pursue further work

3. Introduction/ Background

In Barnsley, 18% of the total population are aged over 65 years1. Care of older people forms a large 
part of the health and care budget. During 16/17, over half (53%) of non-elective admissions, and 57% 
of A&E attendances were amongst the over 65 age group.

Falls are the largest cause of emergency hospital admissions for older people and significantly impact 
on long term outcomes.2 One in three people over the age of 65 will fall each year, which is 25,500 
people in Barnsley. This figure rises to one in two people aged 80 years old and above. In Barnsley 
the rate of emergency admissions for falls injuries in people aged over 65 years old has increased 
over time.3

1 ONS, October 2016.
2 10Department of Health (2012), Improving outcomes and supporting transparency. Available at:
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DH_132358
3 Barnsley JSNA 2016

Page 157

HWB.30.01.2018/11

http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DH_132358


2

The work described below aligns with the H&WB Strategy 03.09: “Develop comprehensive pathways 
to help to prevent, identify and minimise the impact of frailty and falls”, and the Barnsley Based Plan 
Priority Area 4: “Improving support for older people (Barnsley)”.

3.1 Falls

There is work taking place across the borough from within and across various organisations in order to 
prevent and reduce falls and the impact this has on lives. 
In addition, there is a borough-wide review of assisted living services which will contribute to the falls 
prevention agenda. 

The following projects have either started or due to begin in the next few months:

3.1.1 Back on Your Feet in Barnsley

A new concept has been developed and branded “Back on your Feet in Barnsley”.  
The Universal Offer will: 
- Identify opportunities for prevention
- Increase the number of risk assessments
- Provide a 1st line treatment
- Establish a clear pathway 

This is also an opportunity to better understand root causes of over reliance on transporting to 
hospital, rectify them and enhance preventative measures within care homes.

A pilot project working with selected care homes and neighbourhood nursing teams is due to begin 
imminently. A training pack has been developed to improve the confidence of front-line staff to provide 
a first line of treatment following a fall. A “test the pilot” event took place on October 5th with 
representatives from designated care homes and the neighbourhood nursing service attending, to help 
test and reshape the training pack.  Feedback from the staff was positive and constructive, and the 
first training sessions are scheduled to be delivered to Buckingham Care Home in January 2018. An 
evaluation of the changes in practice and the impact on post-falls interventions in the care home will 
be monitored over 3 months, with a view to rolling out to other care homes in the future. 

3.1.2 Safe and Well Checks Pilot

Using Barnsley data and local referrals to target high-risk individuals in the community, Fire Safety 
officers will deliver training on interventions to engage the public and raise awareness, reduce 
hazards, modify behaviour and reduce harm through early warning. The Safe and Well Checks, 
supported by a multi-agency steering group including health, local authority, police, fire and third 
sector, will be launched in 2018:  in January 2018 Fire Officers will be trained, and in February 2018 
the pilot will be launched from Cudworth fire station.

Page 158



3

3.2 Frailty
The Falls work discussed above contributes to the wider agenda of the Frailty programme. Frailty has 
been identified as one of the Accountable Care Shadow Delivery Board programmes for 2018, and is 
being supported locally by a multi-stakeholder group.

Barnsley CCG and Barnsley Hospital have joined the Acute Frailty Network (AFN), a 12 month 
improvement programme designed to support participating sites to rapidly adopt best practice to 
improve emergency services for frail older people.  The programme, hosted by NHS Elect, is delivered 
by an experienced team of clinicians, operational managers and improvement leaders and is made up 
of national collaborative events workshops, site visits, webinars and on-site individual support for 
participating teams. The AFN aims to support local teams to adopt and spread best practice using the 
‘Silver Book’ and the ‘AFN toolkit’ as examples of best practice with a focus on the urgent care of frail 
older people in the first 72 hours of hospital attendance. This commenced in October 2017and will be 
monitored for changes/improvements. 

Diagram 2 (below) illustrates the work that the DRAFT Frailty programme is undertaking. 

Page 159



4

Frailty Workstream

Inputs

Communications expertise, 
social media, materials and 
printing.

Practice Development 
Agreement

Informatics and 
information governance 
expertise. 

Development of online 
resources.

Staffing resource to 
support virtual multi-
disciplinary team working 
across primary, community 
and secondary care.

Funding for new workforce 
roles.

GP online consultation 
systems funding.

Integration falls service 
review (expected to be 
cash releasing or cost 
neutral) 

Acute Frailty Network 
(funded)
Assisted Living Service 
Review (funded)

SWYPFT Funded post for 
care homes training

BHNFT, SWYPFT internal 
training and CCG BEST 
events (funded)

1. Public awareness campaign 
• Frailty friendly
• Social isolation
• Community support
• Prevention

2. Identification and screening
• Electronic Frailty Index
• Edmonton Frail Scale for diagnosis
• GP practice frailty registers

3. Joint care planning for moderate and 
severe frailty
• Advanced care planning
• Access to specialist advice
• Person held records/hospital passport or red 

bag
• Information sharing

4. Enhanced Case management for 
moderate and severe frailty
• Multi-disciplinary team review of most at 

risk
• Lead professional (GP/Matron/Geriatrician) 

and care navigation/coordination for severe 
frailty

• Supported self-management and care 
coordination

• General support services

5. Service/pathway redesign
• Falls service
• Assisted Living service review
• Virtual (online/video consultations)
• Acute Frailty Pathway
• Support for carer’s

6. Training and education
• Primary and acute care
• Care homes
• Domiciliary care providers

Impacts

Improved outcomes 
for patients with 
moderate and 
severe frailty and 
reduction in health 
inequalities 
(associate savings).

Reduced and more 
appropriate use of 
secondary care and 
improved hospital 
discharge 
(associated 
savings).

Improved patient 
experience of care, 
reduced social 
isolation, better 
quality of life 
including at the end 
of life (associated 
savings).

Increase 
empowerment and 
engagement of 
health and care 
professionals 
(associated 
savings).

Improved and quicker 
access to information, 
advice and guidance 
(patients and staff).

Better care planning; 
increased patient 
knowledge of conditions; 
increased ability to self-
manage.

Care is person-centred 
and better coordinated, 
improved sharing 
information and 
preventing duplication.

More proactive, targeted 
diagnosis and 
management of frailty.

Improved access to care 
(for example by using 
virtual consultations)

Increased knowledge and 
confidence within the 
health and care 
workforce.

People supported to live 
independently at home 
using technology and 
assisted living services.

Activities Short-term outcomes Medium-term outcomes

Objectives
• Provide better, quicker, more consistent care across the whole system
• Provide better, more joined up support for frail patients in their own homes and local community 
• Better support for carer’s (formal and informal) 
• Better targeting of interventions to reduce health inequalities

Frailty friendly 
communities.

Reduced unwarranted 
variation in care. 

Increased capacity and 
capability in primary and 
community care; more 
care provided outside of 
hospital.

Improved dignity in 
dying; patients more 
likely to die in place of 
choice.

Patients and their care’s 
are more activated, in 
control of their care and 
self-managing

New roles which mean 
the workforce is better 
matched to need.

Improved access to 
support services from the 
community and voluntary 
sector.

Create a shared culture 
and understanding of risk 
across the system

P
age 160



5

4. Next Steps

The further development of Back on Your Feet in Barnsley, the safe and well checks in Barnsley, and 
the membership of the frailty network alongside the other work taking place in the borough will 
contribute to addressing the high hospital admission rate due to falls. Perhaps more importantly, the 
intention is that it will allow Barnsley people a greater sense of control over their lives by preventing a 
fall which can result in so many negative impacts on a person’s life.

Once the pilot project in care homes is completed and evaluated, consideration of it’s effective usage 
will be made. 

5. Financial Implications
Back on Your Feet in Barnsley: £0 Refocusing of existing resources
Safe and Well Checks: £0 Commitment to support partnership working between BMBC and the Fire 
Service 
Frailty network membership: £10k (CCG), £10k(BHNFT)

6. Consultation with stakeholders
Key stakeholders such as clinicians, care home staff, and strategic partners have contributed to the 
work taking place above. Two consultation workshops have been facilitated for key stakeholders for 
Back on Your Feet in Barnsley. 

7. Appendices:
Appendix A : Training programme for Care Homes: Back on Your Feet in Barnsley 

Officers: Emma White (BMBC) Contact: emmawhite@barnsley.gov.uk Date: 20.01.18
     Cath Bedford (BCCG)                   cath.bedford1@nhs.net

Page 161

mailto:cath.bedford1@nhs.net


6

Appendix A – Training Programme 

‘Back on your feet in Barnsley’
Care Home pilot training – first line intervention

Post fall workshop
Weds 10th January 2018, 10-1pm

Buckingham Care Home, Penistone

10:00 Welcome & Introductions 
Self assessment 
Ground rules & Icebreakers

10.15 Setting the scene 
 

10:20 What do you know? - true/false continuum   

11:00 Challenges and Barriers facing care home staff  
 

BREAK 

11:30 Case studies & Practice 
How confident are you in managing the situation?  
 

12:00 DISCUSSION: Sharing and learning from your experiences of managing falls 

12:30 Have we addressed the challenges/barriers? 

12:45 Taking the pilot forward 

 13:00 FINISH 

Page 162



1

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

30 January 2018

BARNSLEY PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Report Sponsor: Julia Burrows
Report Author: Rebecca Clarke
Received by SSDG: 15 January 2018
Date of Report: 17 January 2018

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to present the final draft Barnsley Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment (PNA) for approval and publication by 1st April 2018.  The 
final draft can be accessed at www.barnsley.gov.uk/pna.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:-

 Approve the publication of the Barnsley PNA 2018-2020

3. Introduction/ Background

3.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 established Health and Wellbeing 
Boards (HWB). The Act also transferred responsibility to develop and update 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments (PNA) from Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) 
to HWBs.  Barnsley HWB has a statutory duty publish a new PNA for 2018-
2021 by 1 April 2018.

3.2 The PNA is a legal document which details services which would be desirable 
and necessary in a locality based on the local health needs and population 
demographics. 

3.3 PNAs will inform commissioning decisions by local authorities (public health 
services from community pharmacies) and Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs).  NHS England area teams will also use the PNA to inform whether a 
pharmacy application would be desirable for a particular location.

3.4 Following the production of the draft report by the Barnsley PNA Steering 
Group local partners and residents have been invited to comment on the 
document during the 60 day statutory consultation period.  A final draft was 
discussed and agreed at the Barnsley PNA Steering Group on 3rd January 
2018 and the Senior Strategic Development Group on 15th January 2018.

Page 163

HWB.30.01.2018/12

http://www.barnsley.gov.uk/pna


2

4. Summary of the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment

4.1 The PNA looks at the current provision of pharmaceutical services across 
Barnsley’s HWB footprint and whether this meets the needs of the population 
and identifies any potential gaps to service delivery.  The PNA will be used by 
NHS England in its determination as to whether to approve applications to join 
the pharmaceutical list under The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical 
and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013i.

4.2 The PNA is required to be published by each HWB by virtue of section 128A 
of the 2006 Act updated in 2009.ii

4.3 The conclusion of this PNA is that the population of Barnsley has sufficient 
service provision to meet their pharmaceutical needs. This is clearly 
demonstrated by the following points:

 Community pharmacies have an important role to play in improving the 
health of the Barnsley population.  They can contribute to the identified 
health needs of the population in a number of ways, including motivational 
interviewing, providing information and brief advice, providing on-going 
support for behaviour change and signposting to other services.

 Barnsley has good coverage across the borough for pharmaceutical 
services in terms of choice, access and opening hours, with no gaps in 
current provision.

 Barnsley and each of the six Area Councils have slightly better or similar 
coverage of community pharmacies or dispensing GP practices than the 
England and Yorkshire and the Humber averages. 

 The majority of Barnsley residents live within a 1 mile radius or a 10 
minute drive of a pharmacy.

 An increase in population is likely to generate increased demand for 
pharmaceutical services, but on a local level changes in population size 
may not necessarily be directly proportionate to changes in the number of 
pharmaceutical services providers.  The Health and Wellbeing Board will 
need to monitor the development of major housing sites and produce 
supplementary statements to the PNA if deemed necessary, in accordance 
with regulations.

5. Conclusion/ Next Steps

5.1 The Barnsley PNA report should be the basis for all future pharmacy 
commissioning intentions.  Members of the Health and Wellbeing board will 
be consulted on the scope for future reports.

Officer: Rebecca Clarke Contact: 787445 Date: 17 January 2018

i The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013.
Accessed 12.01.15 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made
ii http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/21/section/25

Page 164

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made


 

1 

 

 

BARNSLEY 

PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS 

ASSESSMENT 2018-2021 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

Page 165



 

2 

 

Document Control 
 

Title Barnsley Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018-2021 

Reference 2018 (01) 

Status Draft 

Version 1.3 

Date created 6th October 2017 

Approved by  

Audience Various 

Distribution Web 

Author Barnsley Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Steering Group 

Owner Health & Wellbeing Board 

Document history 19.10.2017 Revisions based on comments from Steering Group 
members 

20.12.2017 Results from the statutory 60 day consultation and Equality 
Impact Assessment added. 

03/01/2018 Final Draft Approved by PNA Steering Group 

15/01/2018 Final Draft Approved by SSDG 

 

 

  

Page 166



 

3 

Content page 

  Page 

1. Acknowledgement 4 

2. Executive summary 5 

3. Introduction 6 

4. Process 7 

5. Context for the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 10 

5.1. Overview of Barnsley 10 

5.2. Population 12 

5.3. Future population and housing growth 13 

5.4. Deprivation 14 

6. Health and wellbeing 16 

6.1. Health inequalities 16 

6.2. Health needs 16 

6.3. Health and wellbeing priorities 17 

7. Current provision of NHS Pharmaceutical Services 26 

7.1. 
Pharmacy service providers – number and geographical 
distribution 

26 

7.2. Comparison with pharmaceutical services elsewhere 27 

8. Access 30 

9. Pharmaceutical services 33 

9.1. Community pharmacy essential services 33 

9.2. Public health campaigns 34 

9.3. Community pharmacy advanced services 34 

9.4. Community pharmacy enhanced services 34 

9.5. 
Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group locally commissioned 
services 

35 

10. The changing face of pharmacy 38 

11. Conclusions 39 

Appendix 1. What services do pharmacists offer? 40 

Appendix 2. Commissioned services by pharmacy 41 

Appendix 3. 
Results from the statutory 60 day consultation 20 October to 19 
December 2017 

42 

Appendix 4. Equality Impact Assessment 47 

  

Page 167



 

4 

1. Acknowledgements 
 

Steering group members: 

 Sohaib Akhtar - Public Health Practitioner, Barnsley Council 

 Matt Auckland -  Clinical Advisor (Pharmacy), NHS England 

 Thomas Bisset - Local Pharmacy Committee representative 

 Rebecca Clarke - Public Health Principal, Barnsley Council 

 Louise Dodson - Business Intelligence Advisor, Barnsley Council 

 Gill Doy - Barnsley Healthwatch 

 Alan Hart - Senior Planning Officer, Barnsley Council 

 Helen Hickson - Business Improvement & Intelligence Officer, Barnsley Council 

 Graham Hoggard - Local Medical Committee representative 

 Chris Lawson - Head of Medicines Management, Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Victoria Lindon - NHS England South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Area Team 

  

Page 168



 

5 

2. Executive Summary 
 

This Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) looks at the current provision of pharmaceutical 

services across Barnsley, whether this meets the needs of the population and identifies any 

potential gaps to service delivery.  

 

The PNA will be used by NHS England in its determination as to whether to approve applications 

to join the pharmaceutical list under The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 20131. 

 

The conclusion of this PNA is that the population of Barnsley currently has sufficient numbers of 

pharmacy contractors to meet their pharmaceutical needs. This is clearly demonstrated by the 

following points:  

 

 Barnsley has good coverage across the borough for pharmaceutical services in terms of choice, 

access and opening hours, with no gaps in current provision. 

 

 Barnsley and each of the six Area Councils have slightly better or similar coverage of 

community pharmacies or dispensing GP practices than the England and Yorkshire and the 

Humber averages.  

 

 The majority of Barnsley residents live within a 1.6km (1 mile) walk of a pharmacy and a 10 

minute drive of a pharmacy. 

 

 The existing distribution of pharmacies corresponds to where future new housing will be 

located. 

 

  

                                                           
1 The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 

www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made (Accessed 7th August 2014) 

Page 169

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made


 

6 

3. Introduction 
 

Legislation requires that Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBB) produce an assessment of the 

need for pharmaceutical services. These assessments (Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments or 

PNA) are due every three years. The last PNA was due on 1 April 2015 and a refreshed PNA is 

due on 1 April 2018. 

 

PNAs describe:  

 current pharmaceutical services;  

 the need for such services; 

 potential future need and;  

 potential need for new services.  

 

Pharmaceutical services are an important part of the health care system. They play a major role in 

improving health and reducing health inequalities. The main roles of pharmacies include: 

 

 supplying prescribed medicines and appliances; and 

 delivering a wide range of commissioned services. These include treating minor ailments, 

reviewing medications and helping those with specific needs. 

 

Community pharmacies provide most of these services. There are other types of pharmacy 

providers and the PNA describes these where relevant. The PNA only covers community 

pharmacies. Assessment of pharmacy services in hospitals or in prisons are considered 

separately.   

 

A range of organisations use PNAs to guide developments and commissioning intentions. NHS 

England considers all applications to introduce new pharmacies and uses the PNA to help assess 

such applications. Local Authorities and Clinical Commissioning Groups use the PNA to guide 

commissioning of services from pharmacies. The PNA is not a stand-alone document and 

organisations use other evidence in their planning. Other evidence includes Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessments and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies.  

 

As part of developing PNAs a consultation must be undertaken for a minimum of 60 days. The 

regulations list those persons and organisations that must be consulted. 

 

The PNA has to be approved by the HWBB. The HWBB includes representatives from the local 

authority, Healthwatch and other relevant partners.  

 

This PNA will be valid for three years from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021.  

 

There is a range of legislation and regulation that specifies the development of PNAs and the 

information they must contain. This PNA complies with these regulations. For more information 

see: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-information-

pack 

  

Page 170

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-information-pack
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-information-pack


 

7 

4. Process 
 

The duty to publish a PNA falls on the HWBB. The Director of Public Health (DPH) in the local 

authority leads on the process and makes sure the PNA meets regulations.  South Yorkshire DsPH 

discussed how to approach the 2018 PNAs. This consideration was to make the most of current 

resources and support the South Yorkshire health care strategy.  

 

The NHS in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw has developed a Sustainability and Transformation 

Plan (STP). The STP is the local approach to delivering the national plan called the Five Year 

Forward View. The STP sets out place specific plans and STP priority plans. These include healthy 

lives, living well and prevention, and primary and community care.  

 

Each of the South Yorkshire local authorities share the same boundaries with the HWBBs. 

Bassetlaw is a district council within Nottinghamshire County Council and so it does not have a 

separate HWBB or a stand-alone PNA. It was thus not possible to develop a PNA on the STP 

footprint. 

 

The DsPH agreed to continue to produce PNAs for their own respective HWBB.  The DsPH agreed 

to combine resource in the production of the PNA to make the most efficient use of resources.  

 

This combined approach would only apply to the production of the 2018 refresh. It does not, at this 

stage, apply to the production of any supplementary statements. Any future collaboration is 

dependent on an evaluation of this approach and any changes to PNA regulations. 

 

4.1.  Governance 
 

The DsPH agreed a project governance structure. A Public Health Specialty Registrar led the work 

on the combined approach supported by a Consultant in Public Health.  PNA leads from each local 

authority agreed to act as a steering group.  The South Yorkshire Local Pharmaceutical Network 

agreed to act as a stakeholder / reference group.  

 

The Barnsley PNA has been developed using a project management approach.  A steering group 

was established consisting of council staff from Planning, Business Intelligence and Public Health 

and representatives from Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Medicines Management 

Team, the Area Team of NHS England (as the main commissioners of these services), the Local 

Pharmaceutical Committee (representing the professional views of local providers), Healthwatch 

Barnsley (representing the interests of patients and the public) and the Local Medical Committee 

(representing the professional views of NHS GPs). The steering group has been responsible for 

the completion of the PNA and to ensure that the PNA exceeds the minimum requirements. This 

steering group approved the timetable, the communications plan, outline of the PNA, and the draft 

for consultation. 

 

  

Page 171



 

8 

 

4.2.  Scope 
 

Regulation 3(2) in the 2013 regulations defines the scope of PNAs.  These state: 

 

“The pharmaceutical services to which each pharmaceutical needs assessment must relate are all 

the pharmaceutical services that may be provided under arrangements made by NHS England: 

 

 The provision of pharmaceutical services (including directed services) by a person on a 

pharmaceutical list. 

 The provision of local pharmaceutical services under an LPS (Local Pharmaceutical 

Service) – not local pharmaceutical services which are not pharmaceutical services. 

 The dispensing of drugs and appliances by a person on a dispensing doctors list (but not 

other NHS services that may be provided under arrangements by the NHS Commissioning 

board with a dispensing doctor).” 

 

There are 3 main types of pharmaceutical services in relation to PNAs: 

 

 Essential Services – services that every community pharmacy providing NHS 

pharmaceutical services must provide. These include dispensing medicines, promoting 

healthy lifestyles and supporting self-care.   

 Advanced Services – community pharmacies can provide advanced services subject to 

accreditation by NHS England. These include Medicine Use Reviews, New Medicines 

Service and Appliance Use Reviews.   

 Locally Commissioned Services – Local Authorities and CCGs commission community 

pharmacies to provide local services.  Examples include Emergency Hormonal 

Contraception, Needle Exchange and Palliative Care Drugs Services. 

 

A pharmaceutical list includes the following: 

 

 Pharmacy contractors – healthcare professionals working for themselves or as 

employees who practice in pharmacy. 

 Dispensing appliance contractors - appliance supplier’s supply, on prescription, 

appliances including stoma and incontinence aids, dressings, bandages etc. They cannot 

supply medicines. 

 Dispensing doctors –medical practitioners authorised to provide drugs and appliances in 

designated rural areas. 

 Local Pharmacy service contractors – these provide a level of pharmaceutical services 

in some HWBB areas  

 

Community pharmacies can provide services to patients that are not commissioned by NHS 

England, Local Authorities or CCGs. For example, some pharmacies provide a home delivery 

service as an added value service to patients. Community pharmacists are free to choose whether 

to charge for these services as part of their business model. 

 

In line with the 2013 regulations this PNA does not consider pharmacy provision in prisons or 

hospital settings. 

 

  

Page 172



 

9 

4.3.  Process 
 

Local leads gathered data from NHS England, local authorities and clinical commissioning groups. 

This data was collated into a single master spreadsheet detailing the following:  

 

- Name / Contacts: Pharmacy name, lead pharmacist and contact details; 

- Geographical information: address, postcode; 

- Opening Times; 

- Advanced Services; 

- Commissioned Services. 

 

As we were looking to combine approaches we decided to use a single piece of software for the 

mapping of PNA data. This software is called SHAPE. SHAPE stands for Strategic Health Asset 

Planning and Evaluation. The Public Health England (PHE) Knowledge and Information Service 

manage the SHAPE tool. PHE have provided support to the South Yorkshire PNAs to help. 

SHAPE can layer geographical information with other indicators. SHAPE maps pharmacy locations 

against demographic information and indicators of health status and need.  

 

To identify health and pharmaceutical need the PNA uses a wide variety of data and information. 

These include the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and other relevant strategies. The PNA 

uses these sources of information to assess current and future population size, measures of health 

and ill-health and other service provision.  

 

The current provision of pharmacy and pharmaceutical services was compared with current and 

potential future demographic and health needs.  

 

A 60 day consultation on the PNA was conducted. This consultation was sent to the list of 

stakeholders as defined by the regulations.  

 

4.4.  Equality Impact Assessment 
 

An Equality Impact Assessment (Appendix 4) will be completed following the statutory 60 day 

consultation with guidance from Barnsley MBC Equality and Diversity Advisors. 

 

  

Page 173



 

10 

5.  Content for the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
 

The PNA for Barnsley is undertaken in the context of the needs of the local population.  The health 

and wellbeing needs for the local population are described in the Barnsley JSNA 

www.barnsley.gov.uk/jsna.  

 

This PNA does not duplicate these detailed descriptions of health needs and should be read in 

conjunction with the JSNA. 

 

5.1.  Overview of Barnsley  
 

Barnsley lies at the mid-point between the region’s two main cities of Leeds to the north and

Sheffield to the south, and covers an area of 329 square kilometres.  

 

Historically Barnsley was centred on coalmining resulting in theborough’sdispersedpatternof

small towns and villages. Because people lived where they worked and coal was moved by rail, 

road links between towns and villages were poor and communities were self-contained. 

 

The borough has a varied geography.  The west of the borough is predominantly rural in character 

with open moorland, arable farmland and natural woodland. It is characterised by attractive hilly 

countryside part of which lies in the Peak District National Park, and is centred on the rural market 

town of Penistone. In the centre of the borough is Barnsley itself and the surrounding urban area 

which is the main shopping, administrative, business and entertainment centre. To the east of the 

borough stretching from the M1 motorway to the Dearne Valley are the towns of the former 

Barnsley coalfield which form a dense settlement pattern and have a relatively high level of 

deprivation. 

 

Barnsley’s local distinctiveness stems from its historical character and culture, including its

settlements and architecture.  Barnsley Town Centre with its market and role as a knowledge hub 

and administrative centre for the borough, the friendly traditional market towns and the former 

mining settlements with their strong communities who have a traditional belief in self-improvement 

and learning, along with the attractive rural villages all define Barnsley's distinctiveness. It also 

includes Barnsley's rural heritage, the Pennine topography, the varied landscapes, and the 

National Park. 

 

The boundary of Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council (BMBC) is coterminous with Barnsley 

Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the borough is divided into 21 electoral wards and six 

Area Councils.  Figure 1 identifies the Area Councils and locations of community pharmacies and 

dispensing practices within Barnsley and surrounding areas. 

 

 

 

Page 174

http://www.barnsley.gov.uk/jsna


 

11 

Figure 1.  Pharmacies (including distance selling, dispensing general practices and appliance contractor in Barnsley with South Yorkshire 
pharmacies and dispensing general practices.  (Requirement schedule 1:7 NHS and Pharmaceutical Services Regulations 2013) based in 
data verified at 31 March 2017)  
 

 

P
age 175



 

12 

5.2. Population 
 

Latest estimates from the Office for National Statistics (ONS mid-year estimates 2016) put this at 

approximately 241,218.  Barnsley’sgrowingpopulationresultsfromanincreasingbirthrate,higher

net inward migration and increasing life expectancy. Figure 2 illustrates this data in a population 

pyramid and table. 

 

Figure 2: Barnsley population by age group and gender 

 

             

Age Band Males Females Persons 

Number % Number % Number % 

00-04 7,334 6.2 7,264 5.9 14,598 6.1 

05-09 7,523 6.3 6,888 5.6 14,411 6.0 

10-14 6,591 5.5 6,437 5.3 13,028 5.4 

15-19 6,773 5.7 6,454 5.3 13,227 5.5 

20-24 7,130 6.0 6,882 5.6 14,012 5.8 

25-29 7,575 6.4 7,825 6.4 15,400 6.4 

30-34 7,589 6.4 7,811 6.4 15,400 6.4 

35-39 6,700 5.6 6,990 5.7 13,690 5.7 

40-44 7,328 6.2 7,434 6.1 14,762 6.1 

45-49 9,213 7.7 9,102 7.5 18,315 7.6 

50-54 8,968 7.5 9,087 7.4 18,055 7.5 

55-59 8,186 6.9 8,261 6.8 16,447 6.8 

60-64 7,133 6.0 7,064 5.8 14,197 5.9 

65-69 7,096 6.0 7,162 5.9 14,258 5.9 

70-74 5,613 4.7 5,966 4.9 11,579 4.8 

75-79 3,907 3.3 4,475 3.7 8,382 3.5 

80-84 2,553 2.1 3,424 2.8 5,977 2.5 

85+ 1,878 1.6 3,602 2.9 5,480 2.3 
          Source:  ONS mid-2016 population estimates 

Page 176



 

13 

5.3. Future population changes and housing growth 
 

Over the coming years the population in Barnsley is expected to increase in both age and number.  

An increase in population is likely to generate increased demand for pharmaceutical services, but 

on a local level changes in population size may not necessarily be directly proportionate to 

changes in the number of pharmaceutical services providers. 

 

To facilitate commissioning of pharmaceutical services, responsive to population needs, the Health 

and Wellbeing Board partners will monitor the development of major housing sites and produce 

supplementary statements to the PNA if deemed necessary, in accordance with regulations. 

 

 

5.3.1. Population changes in Barnsley 
 

The number of births rose form 2,789 in 2014 to 2,832 in 2016.  Births are projected to rise to 

2,864 in 2020.  The proportion of people from black and minority ethic (BME) communities also 

increased from 0.9% of the total population in 2001 to 2.1% in 2011. 

 

The estimated population of Barnsley was 237,843 in 2014 and is expected to increase by 7% to 

255,366 by 2025.  Barnsley is also expected to experience a 24% increase in older people aged 

over 65 years and over.  Figure 3 illustrates the population forecasts for specific age groups.   

 

Figure 3.  Barnsley population projections by age groups, 2012 to 2017 

 

Age Band 2014 2025 % change 

0-4 years 14,669 14,501 -1% 

5-9 years 13,861 14,649 6% 

10-14 years 12,511 15,136 21% 

15-19 years 14,007 14,296 2% 

20-64 years 138,779 142,253 3% 

65 years and over 44,016 54,532 24% 

Total 237,843 255,366 7% 
        Source: ONS 2014 based sub-national population projections 

 

  

Page 177



 

14 

 

5.3.2.  Housing growth 
 

The Barnsley Local Development Framework (LDF) proposes to achieve the completion of at least 

21,500 net additional homes during the period 2008 to 2026. The distribution of the new housing is 

set out in Figure 4.  

 

Whilst the individual core strategy areas do not directly correspond with the six Area Councils, it is 

the case that the existing distribution of pharmacies corresponds to where future new housing will 

be located. 

 

Figure 4. The distribution of new homes in Barnsley, 2008 to 2026 

Core strategy areas Number 
% figure representation 

of 21500 new homes 

Urban Barnsley 9800 46 

Cudworth 1800 8 

Goldthorpe 3000 14 

Hoyland 1800 8 

Penistone 1100 5 

Royston 1000 5 

Wombwell 2000 9 

Other Settlements 1000 5 

Total 21500 100 
Source: Barnsley Local Development Framework (LDF) Core Strategy, 2011. Page 71. 

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/3093/core-strategy.pdf (Accessed 20th September 2017) 

 

 

5.4. Deprivation 
 
The Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015 (IMD 2015) is used to measure inequalities in the wider 

determinants of health.  It combines a range of economic, social and housing indicators to provide 

the most up to date and comprehensive picture of deprivation for each local authority in England.  

 

Figure 5 illustrates that there are clear geographical inequalities in the wider determinants of health 

in Barnsley.  85,243 (36.2%) people in Barnsley are living in the 20% most deprived areas in 

England; an increase from the IMD 2010 rate of 32.6%.   

  

Page 178

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/3093/core-strategy.pdf


 

15 

Figure 5.  Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015, Barnsley 

 
 

 

P
age 179



 

16 

6. Health & Wellbeing 
 

A detailed analysis of health and wellbeing needs in Barnsley is set out in our Joint Strategic 

NeedsAssessment(JSNA).ThiscanbeaccessedfromtheCouncil’swebsite

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/joint-strategic-needs-

assessment/  

 

In addition, the PNA uses Barnsley level and Area Council level data to describe the health needs 

and pharmaceutical provision of the local population.  A comprehensive set of health need profiles 

are available at https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-

statistics/health-profiles-by-area-and-ward/  

 

The data outlined in the section will be updated and published on an annual basis on the Public 

Health Outcomes Framework at https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-

framework  

 

6.1. Health inequalities 
 

Although we have seen an improvement in life expectancy at birth in Barnsley for both men and 

women between 2011-2013 and 2014-2016, the rates remain significantly lower than regional and 

national rates. 

 

Significant health inequalities exist within Barnsley at electoral ward level.  Latest published data 

shows that male life expectancy at birth ranges from 75.3 years in Dearne North to 82.0 years in 

Penistone East – a difference of 6.7 years (2011-2015).  For women, rates range from 78.6 years 

in Wombwell to 86.1 years in Penistone East – a gap of 7.5 years. (2011-2015)  

 

In terms of healthy life expectancy at birth, men in Barnsley could expect to live 4.7 years less in 

“good”healththanmeninEngland,whilstforwomen,thedifferenceis4.1years.(2014-2016) 

 

Smoking prevalence amongst Barnsley adults is slowly declining (from 24.4% in 2012 to  20.6% in 

2016), although the rate still remains significantly higher than the England average of 15.5%.  

Within Barnsley, latest published data range from 12.5% in Penistone West to 27.2% in Dearne 

South. (2015)  

 

In 2016/17, the rates for children in Barnsley who are a healthy weight at 4-5 years old (81.0%) 

and 10-11 years old (66.6%) are significantly higher than the England average. However the rates 

for children in Barnsley who are underweight at 4-5 years (2.2%) and 10-11 years old (2.3%) is 

significantly higher than the national rates of 1.0% and 1.3% respectively.  

 

  

Page 180

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/health-profiles-by-area-and-ward/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/health-profiles-by-area-and-ward/
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework


 

17 

6.2. Health needs 
 

Children, adults and the elderly are all vulnerable to the risk factors that contribute to preventable 

non-communicable diseases.  This may as a result of unhealthy diets, physical inactivity, exposure 

to tobacco smoke or the effects of the harmful use of alcohol.2 

 

Lifestyle related diseases such as diabetes are increasing. An ageing population with a range of 

health issues will also put pressure on health and social services. The JSNA provides further detail 

on specific health needs.  

 

Key points for health needs in Barnsley are: 

 

 Deprivation is higher than average and almost a quarter (24.6%) (10,600) of children under 16 

live in poverty; 

 Life expectancy for men (78.2 years) and women (81.9) is lower than the England average 

(79.5 for men and 83.1 for women)  

 The rate of alcohol specific hospital stays, among those under 18 is significantly worse than the 

average for England; 

 Levels of teenage pregnancy, GCSE attainment, breastfeeding and smoking at time of delivery 

are worse than the England average; 

 72.4% of adults in Barnsley are classified as overweight or obese, significantly worse than the 

average for England (64.8%); 

 The rate of hospital stays for alcohol related conditions (858) is significantly worse than the 

average for England (647); 

 The rate of smoking related deaths is significantly worse than the rate for England. This 

represents approximately 490 deaths per year for Barnsley; 

 Estimated levels of physical activity amongst Barnsley adults are significantly worse than the 

England average; 

 Rates of sexually transmitted infections, people killed and seriously injured on roads, cancer 

screening (breast, cervical and bowel) and childhood immunisations are better than average. 

 

6.3. Health and wellbeing priorities 
 

Health improvement and inequality continue to be a challenge for the borough and this is 

influenced by a number of factors such as the quality of healthcare, lifestyle and wider factors such 

as employment, education, housing and poverty.   

 

Various aspects of health and wellbeing are prioritised through the partnership development of the 

Barnsley Place Based Plan, as a key building block of the South Yorkshire & Bassetlaw 

Accountable Care System (ACS).  The plan draws on inputs through the engagement and design 

of our health and care services, as well the priorities set out in key documents including the 

Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Five Year Forward View, GP Forward View, Mental 

Health Forward View, Facing the Future and National Cancer Strategy.  The development of the 

plan has been overseen and driven via the Barnsley Senior Strategic Development Group and is 

one part of the delivery model for the Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Barnsley.  The plan 

                                                           
2 World Health Organisation. Factsheet:Noncommunicable diseases (Updated June 2017). Available at : 

http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs355/en/ (Accessed 4the October 2017) 

Page 181



 

18 

highlights the following priority areas where our local system can work together to deliver a greater 

collective benefit for Barnsley people: 

 

 Improving healthy life expectancy; 

 Building stronger communities and being in control of my wellbeing; 

 Improving mental health and wellbeing; 

 Improving support for older people; 

 Changing the way we work together (new models of care). 

There is a clear focus across the borough on supporting people to make healthier choices by 

providing the environment, infrastructure, skills and opportunities to do so. 

 

Community pharmacies are ideally placed as a provider of services, a community asset and as 

employers to contribute towards improving population health in the borough. They are easily 

accessible and are often the first point of contact, including for those who might otherwise not 

access health services. 

 

Community pharmacies can contribute to the local public health agenda in a number of ways, 

including but not limited to:  

 

 motivational interviewing; 

 providing education, information and brief advice; 

 providing on-going support for behaviour change; 

 sign-posting to other services or resources. 

 

The range of services provided by community pharmacies varies due to several factors, including: 

availability of accredited pharmacists, capacity issues in the pharmacy, changes to service level 

agreements and the need for a service (for example, in response to pandemic flu). 

 

The following areas represent those aspects of health and wellbeing where community pharmacies 

have the greatest contribution to make. 

 

 

6.3.1. Smoking 
 

Smoking is the single biggest cause of preventable death in Barnsley and in Britain, claiming more 

lives each year than the next six most common risk factors combined3. Tobacco use is a major 

cause of coronary heart disease, lung and other cancers, and respiratory diseases, particularly 

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). Around 490 people in Barnsley die from smoking 

related illnesses each year, this is significantly worse than the England average.4  The estimated 

cost to the NHS each year of treating diseases caused by smoking is upwards of £5billion.  

 

                                                           
3 Department of Health (2011) Healthy Lives, Healthy People: A Tobacco Control Plan for England. HM Government 

4 Public Health England, Local Tobacco Control Profiles, May 2017 http://www.tobaccoprofiles.info/ 

 (Accessed 23 May 2017) 

 

 

Page 182

http://www.tobaccoprofiles.info/


 

19 

Smoking is the main cause of inequalities in death rates between communities. Smoking is most 

common in 25-29 year olds, in areas of deprivation and in routine and manual workers.  2016 

smoking prevalence estimates show that 20.6% of the Barnsley adult population smoke. This is 

significantly worse than the England average of 15.5%. 

 

Within Barnsley, latest published data adult smoking prevalence varies from 12.5% in Penistone 

West Ward to 27.6% in Dearne North Ward (2015).  The percentage of women smoking at the time 

of delivery in 2015/16 was higher in Barnsley (17.6%) compared to England (10.6%). Locally 

collected midwifery data in Barnsley, for the period 2014/15 shows that 39.7% of all new mothers 

living in Dearne North smoked during pregnancy compared to 6.1% of new mothers living in 

Penistone East. 

Barnsley Council commissions South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

(SWYPFT) to deliver Stop Smoking Services. 

 

Role of local pharmacies 

 

 Provision of the Stop Smoking Service. 

 Dispensing of stop smoking medications. 

 Provision of oral anti-smoking agents and signposting. 

 Referral to the Stop Smoking Service. 

 Public Health campaigns related to Tobacco Control, e.g. Smokefree Homes and Cars and 

Stoptober. 

 

6.3.2. Sexual Health 
 

Although sexual health affects all ages in the population, the burden is not evenly distributed 

across society, as young people, black and minority ethnic communities, men who have sex with 

men and people who are recently divorced or separated, can be disproportionately affected by 

Sexually Transmitted Infections (STIs).  The age and gender structure of the population has 

important implications for sexual health and maternity services.  

 

Barnsley Council commissions services from Spectrum to deliver a range of sexual health and 

contraceptive provision.  This includes testing and treatments for STIs.  Among their other 

responsibilities, Spectrum commission services from community pharmacies to provide free 

condoms to young people, free chlamydia testing kits to people in the eligible population and the 

free provision of emergency hormonal contraception to women aged 16 and over.  

 

 

6.3.3. Chlamydia 
 

Chlamydia,alsoknownasthe‘silent’diseaseduetothelackofsymptomsinover50%ofmenand

70% of women, has become the most commonly diagnosed STI in the UK. Young people under 25 

are the most likely to get infected. 

 

Chlamydia causes avoidable sexual and reproductive ill health, including symptomatic acute 

infections and complications such as Pelvic Inflammatory Disease (PID), ectopic pregnancy and 

tubal-factor infertility. The Chlamydia diagnosis rate amongst under 25 year olds is a measure of 

Chlamydia control activities, representing infections identified and treated (reducing risk of 

sequelae in those patients) and can be correlated to changes in Chlamydia prevalence. 

Page 183



 

20 

 

Chlamydia remains one of the most prevalent STIs in Barnsley. Increasing the diagnostic rate 

through initiatives such as the National Chlamydia Screening Programme (NCSP) will reduce the 

prevalence of infection.  Public Health England (PHE) recommends that local authorities should be 

working towards achieving a detection rate of at least 2,300 per 100,000 population aged 15-24. In 

Barnsley, this detection rate is 2,261 per 100,000 aged 15-24.  

 

 

6.3.4. Teenage Conceptions 
 

There are strong links between teenage pregnancy and deprivation, and even stronger links with 

attainment and a range of other risks for young people (e.g. alcohol use, low aspirations, emotional 

wellbeing). These contribute to a complex picture requiring both significant cultural and behavioural 

shifts to reduce teenage conception rates in the short term. 

 

Barnsley has seen a reduction in the rate of teenage conceptions from 51.8 per 1000 15-17 years 

old women in2001to33.7per1000in2015.Despitethisreduction,Barnsley’srateisstillhigher

than the regional and national rates of 24.3 and 20.8 respectively, and it is important therefore that 

this remains a priority area.  Barnsley Council commissions Spectrum to provide an emergency 

hormonal conception service for women aged 16 and over in the following community pharmacies:- 

 

 Boots The Chemists Ltd, Barnsley Town Centre 

 Gatehouse Pharmacy, Staincross 

 Lloyds Pharmacy, Kendray  

 Lloyds Pharmacy, Barnsley Town Centre 

 Weldricks Pharmacy, Bolton-Upon-Dearne  

 Weldricks Pharmacy, Goldthorpe 

 Weldricks Pharmacy, Royston 

 Weldricks Pharmacy, Thurnscoe 

 Well Pharmacy, Penistone 

 

The service aims to integrate pharmacy with sexual health services in Barnsley offering easier 

access with longer opening hours than existing services.  Signpostingunder16’sandothercases

outside of the specification to sexual health services is easier as a result of integration.  The sign 

up for C-Cards, supply of condoms and supplying a test for Chlamydia screening are also part of 

the service. 

 

Barnsley Council are seeking to extend this to cover those aged 13-15, who can demonstrate an 

understanding of the decision they are making, deemed as Gillick competent5. 

 

Role of local pharmacies 

 

 Providing emergency hormonal conception. 

 Advice on and signposting to Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC). 

 Providing chlamydia screening. 

 Referral to relevant treatment and advice services. 

                                                           
5 Gillick competence is a term used in medical law to decide whether a child (under 16 years of age) is able to consent to his or her own medical treatment, without 
the need for parental permission or knowledge. 

Page 184

http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=14130
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=90100
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=4642
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=6782
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=5568
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=6472
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=4363
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=5806
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/pharmacies/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=8273


 

21 

 Public Health pharmacy campaigns (STIs/unwanted pregnancy, provision of condoms and 

self-testing kits for chlamydia). 

 

6.3.5. Alcohol and Drug Misuse Related Harm 
 

Alcohol is one of the three biggest lifestyle risk factors for disease and death in the UK, after 

smoking and obesity.  It is estimated 7.5 million people are unaware of the damage their drinking 

could be causing.  Alcohol is a causal factor in more than 60 medical conditions, including: mouth, 

throat, stomach, liver and breast cancers; high blood pressure and cirrhosis of the liver.  As well as 

physical health issues, alcohol misuse can be attributable to poor mental health, homelessness, 

lack of child development and domestic abuse.  It can result in unemployment and loss of 

productivity in the workplace, violence, alcohol related anti-social behaviour, and other crime.6 

 

In line with national trends, alcohol consumption in Barnsley has increased steadily in recent years.  

Current estimates based on self-reported data suggest that approximately 21% of adult drinkers in 

Barnsley drink at increasing risk and 7% higher risk levels.7 

 

ThecurrentalcoholstrategyforBarnsley‘BarnsleyAlcoholHarmReductionStrategy2014– 2017’

was produced in 2014 by the Barnsley Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT).  The current 

strategy provides an excellent overview of the problems Barnsley faces, focussing on a range of 

approaches for tackling this issue, notably promoting screening and identification of people with 

alcohol related problems.  As the strategy ends 2017, Public Health will work with key stakeholders 

to produce a concise Barnsley Alcohol Strategy and an Action Plan.   

 

Drug misuse can cause a wide range of health and social harms including the physical and mental 

health of the individual misusing drugs and their significant others as well as the local community.  

There are many reasons why people may consider misusing drugs, including peer pressure, 

recreation and to self-medicate for harm committed against them and/or to cope with mental health 

issues.   

 

The latest estimates show there are around 2,000 problematic opiate and or crack cocaine drug 

users aged 15-64 in Barnsley.  During 2016-17, 985 opiate users accessed structured drug 

treatment and 120 individuals accessed treatment for non-opiate drug misuse. 

 

While all drug use does not necessarily involve the injecting practice, the ingestion of opiates 

typically does, although it may also be smoked.  Injecting drug use can lead to long term conditions 

such as Hepatitis B and C or venous disease due to their substance misuse.  Harm reduction is a 

priority, particularly in relation to those screened, tested and referred for blood borne virus 

treatment. 

 

BarnsleyCouncil’sHeathierCommunitiesTeamworkcloselywithkeypartnersfromPublicHealth

and Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group to roll out the implementation of the national drug and 

alcohol strategies – 2017NationalDrugStrategyandTheGovernment’sAlcoholStrategy2012- at 

a local level. 

 

The Heathier Communities Team commissions an integrated substance misuse service which 

provides for the needs of drug and alcohol users, alleviating at the same time the effect on the 

                                                           
6 Alcohol Concern; Statistics on Alcohol, 2016 
7 http://www.lape.org.uk/downloads/alcoholestimates2011.pdf Accessed 25th September 2017 

Page 185

http://www.lape.org.uk/downloads/alcoholestimates2011.pdf


 

22 

local community. The service, Barnsley Recovery Steps, is delivered by DISC and focuses on 

preventing harm, engaging individuals and families in treatment, and supports all service users in 

their recovery.  

As part of the substance misuse service, DISC http://www.disc-vol.org.uk/projects/barnsley are 

responsible for contracting directly with pharmacies to deliver two pharmacy based services; 

supervised consumption and the needle and syringe exchange programme.  To support these 

services Barnsley Recovery Steps will hold regular training events to ensure pharmacies deliver an 

informed and sensitive service, which links in to the wider treatment service. 

 

There are seven community pharmacies, delivering the needle and syringe exchange programme 

in the following areas: Penistone, Barnsley town centre, Darfield, Hoyland, Wombwell, and 

Thurnscoe.    

 

Forty three pharmacies provide supervised consumption in addition to normal prescription 

dispensing.   

 

Role of local pharmacies 

 

 Provide brief interventions and signposting to treatment to address alcohol misuse. 

 Needle and syringe exchange. 

 Supervised consumption. 

 Promote the benefits of signposting to testing for Hepatitis B and C. 

 Provide advice on the improved awareness of the transmission of Hepatitis B and C. 

 Referral to treatment services. 

 Medicines optimisation. 

 

 

6.3.6.   Older people’s health 
 

People are living longer. In the last 10 years, Barnsley has experienced a 17% increase in the 

number of people aged over 75 years and a 37% increase in people in the over-85 year age group.  

 

Life expectancy data illustrates that people are generally living much longer, which is an important 

achievement.  However, with increased longevity comes the increased potential for poorer health 

and frailty, and we face a key challenge in ensuring increases in life expectancy are not 

accompanied by a longer time spent in ill health. 

 

Currently around 3,034 older people (approximately 7% of all people over 65) receive some adult 

social care support in Barnsley.  By 2025 it is estimated that there will be a 30% increase in people 

aged over 75 years living alone, and an increase of 20% in people over 65 years old unable to 

manage at least one self-care activity on their own.  At present, it is also estimated that around 7% 

of people aged over 65 years are living with some form of dementia.  It is estimated that by 2030, 

the prevalence of dementia in people aged over 65 years will increase to 10%.   The growing 

population of older people is estimated to increase demand for care homes.  The changing age 

profile of residents is anticipated to change the support required with individuals already presenting 

with increasingly complex, high dependency needs.  National evidence suggests we can expect to 

see a gender difference in dependency, with higher numbers of women experiencing severe 

disability or requiring help with self-care tasks.  

 

Page 186

http://www.disc-vol.org.uk/projects/barnsley


 

23 

In the context of an ageing population therefore greater attention will need to be paid to the way in 

which we provide prevention and early intervention and increasingly integrated, community-based 

support when problems occur that will help to maintain the independence of the older person. Key 

health needs relate to mental health (particularly depression), sensory impairment, frailty/disability, 

dementia, multiple morbidity (and related medicine use) and health and social care service use. 

 

Role of local pharmacies 

 

 Medicines use reviews. 

 Medicines optimisation. 

 Minor ailments scheme. 

 Access to palliative care medicines. 

 Advice to care homes. 

 Falls care pathway. 

 Seasonal influenza vaccination. 

 Dementia Friendly Pharmacy. 

 Providing support and advice for carers. 

 Provide support and advice around maintaining independence. 

 Promoting the benefits of and signposting to screening for sight/hearing problems including 

Public Health pharmacy campaign related to preventable sight loss. 

 

 

6.3.7.  The health of families, children and young people 
 

There is now overwhelming evidence that conception through to the early years is a crucial phase 

of human development and is the time when focussed attention can bring huge rewards for 

society.  Infants thrive when they feel safe, secure and loved. Therefore the foundations for 

children’scommunication,socialandemotionaldevelopmentandnutrition lie inthequalityof the

parent-infant relationship, and the interactions they experience. 

 

Child poverty and deprivation is one of the most important factors determining health inequalities in 

childhood and throughout life. We now have a very good understanding from research that a 

child’sphysical,socialandcognitivedevelopmentduringtheearlyyearsstrongly influences their 

school readiness, educational attainment, their employment chances and general health and 

wellbeing outcomes through to adulthood and older age. 

 

Supporting parent-infant relationships is a priority for Barnsley.  We know that the mental and 

physical health of mothers during and immediately after pregnancy can have lifelong impacts on 

the child.  Factors such as nutrition, smoke exposure and decisions about immunisation will impact 

on the child’s future health and wellbeing. Key priorities continue to include reducing maternal 

obesity, improved support for post-natal depression, increasing breastfeeding, reducing smoking in 

pregnancy, reducing teenage pregnancy and increasing childhood vaccination and immunisation. 

 

Role of local pharmacies 

 

 Promoting the importance of breastfeeding and immunisation and vaccination, including 

signposting to relevant support. 

Page 187



 

24 

 Raising awareness of the potential consequences of leaving children unprotected, 

especially within vulnerable communities. 

 Promote and provide advice and support in relation to stopping smoking, reducing alcohol 

consumption and maintaining a healthy weight, particularly during pregnancy. 

 Sign-posting to and advice about treatment 

 Promoting and providing advice in relation to adolescent health needs – particularly as 

these relate to sexual health, mental health, smoking, alcohol consumption and drug 

misuse. 

 Minor ailments scheme 

 Seasonal influenza vaccination (pregnant women) 

 

6.3.8. Obesity 
 

Obesity, poor diet and increasingly sedentary behaviour are associated with a higher risk of 

hypertension,heartdisease,diabetesandcertaincancers.Itcanalsoimpairaperson’swellbeing,

quality of life and ability to work. 

 

More than 7 out of 10 (72.4%) of the Barnsley adult population are classified as being overweight 

or obese; this is significantly worse than the England average of 64.8%.   

 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council commissions a healthy lifestyle service (Be Well Barnsley) 

which supports families and adults to lead healthier lives. Courses include weight loss programmes 

and fitness classes.  

 

Barnsley CCG commissions SWYFT to deliver a 12 week weight management programme for both 

adults and children.  The service also provides more tailored specialist input, such as pre-bariatric 

surgery support for individuals.  

 

Role of local pharmacies 

 

 Promoting, signposting, providing advice and support to maintaining a healthy weight. 

 

6.3.9. NHS Health Checks 
 

The NHS Health Check programme aims to prevent heart disease, stroke, type 2 diabetes and 

kidney disease and raise awareness of dementia both across the population and within high risk 

and vulnerable groups.  Adults between the ages of 40 and 74, who have not already been 

diagnosed with one of these conditions, can be invited (once every 5 years) to have a check to 

assess their cardiovascular risk and be offered support and advice to help the individual to reduce 

or manage their risk. 

 

The NHS Health Checks programme in Barnsley has been delivered by general practices since its 

introduction in 2009.  Data from March 2016 to April 2017 show that 80.7% of eligible 

people offered an NHS Health Check received one.  This is significantly higher than the England 

average of 49.9%. 

 

Page 188



 

25 

NHS Health Checks are a statutory public health service commissioned by Barnsley Council.  

From April 2018, there will be a single provider in Barnsley, with the majority of checks provided at 

GP practices, but with additional workplace provision.  

 

A recent public consultation confirmed that the local population would like to receive their health 

check invitation through their GP and receive their check at a GP practice, but want increased 

flexibility with respect to timing and availability of appointments.  In some areas of the country, 

NHS Health Checks are delivered through pharmacies to ensure coverage across the population.  

The local consultation showed even spread between the numbers of people very likely, very 

unlikely and indifferent to wanting to attend their check at a local pharmacy. 

 

Role of local pharmacies 

 

 Promoting the benefits of and signposting to Health Checks. 

 

  

Page 189



 

26 

7. Current provision of NHS pharmaceutical services in Barnsley 
 

The PNA identifies and maps the current provision of pharmaceutical services in order to assess 

the adequacy of provision of such services. 

 

7.1. Pharmacy service providers – number and geographical 
distribution 
 

Community pharmacies 

 

There were a total of 52 community pharmacies in Barnsley as of 21/03/2017. Figure 1 illustrates 

their location. 

 

Dispensing GP practices 

 

There are three GP dispensing practices in Barnsley as of 21/03/2017. Figure 1 illustrates their 

location. 

 

Distance selling pharmacies 

 

There was one mail order/ internet pharmacy within Barnsley as of 21/03/2017. This pharmacy is 

based in Central Area Council. 

 

Patients have the right to access pharmaceutical services from any community pharmacy including 

mail order / internet pharmacy of their choice and therefore can access any of the many internet 

pharmacies available nationwide. 

 

Dispensing Appliance Contractor 

 

There is currently one Dispensing Appliance Contractor (DAC) in Barnsley: Fittleworth Medical Ltd, 

Thurnscoe.  Appliances are also available from community pharmacies, dispensing GP practices 

and other DAC outside Barnsley. 

 

Hospital pharmacies 

 

There is one hospital pharmacy providing services to the Barnsley population at Barnsley Hospital 

NHS Foundation Trust (BHNFT). 

 

 
  

Page 190



 

27 

7.2.   Comparison with pharmaceutical service provision elsewhere 
 

Assuming a population of 241,218 in Barnsley and 52 community pharmacies; there is an average 

of one pharmacy provider per 4,638 people.  This is very similar to the average for England 4,647 

people per pharmacy representing local coverage slightly better to the national position. 

 

This can also be quantified as 22 pharmacies per 100,000 people in Barnsley which is equal to the 

England average.  The number of community pharmacies per 100,000 population ranged from 26 

community pharmacies per 100,000 population in Lancashire & Greater Manchester and Cheshire 

& Merseyside to 18 per 100,000 population in South Central region. This is illustrated in figure 6 

below. 

 

Figure 6. Community pharmacies on the pharmaceutical list and population by NHS 

England Region, 2015/16 

 

 

Number of 
community 
pharmacies 

Prescription 
items dispensed 

per month 
(000s) 

ONS 
Population 
(000s) mid 

2014 

Pharmacies 
per 100,000 
population 

ENGLAND 11,688 82,940 54,317 22 

North of England 3,723 28,542 15,259 24 

Yorkshire & Humber 1,275 9,709 5,468 23 

Lancashire & Greater 
Manchester 

1,089 7,810 4,238 26 

Cumbria & North East 727 6,441 3,123 23 

Cheshire & Merseyside 632 4,582 2,430 26 

Midlands & East 3,446 24,642 16,487 21 

North Midlands 775 5,514 3,591 22 

West Midlands 980 6,402 4,123 24 

Central Midlands 890 6,706 4,518 20 

East 801 6,020 4,255 19 

London 1,853 10,455 8,539 22 

London 1,853 10,455 8,539 22 

South 2,666 19,301 14,032 19 

Wessex 511 3,752 2,742 19 

South West 637 4,818 3,171 20 

South East 880 6,210 4,540 19 

South Central 638 4,522 3,578 18 

Sources: NHS Prescription Services, Population estimates - Office for National Statistics, NHS Digital 

http://digital.nhs.uk/pubs/genphasernov16 

  

Page 191

http://digital.nhs.uk/pubs/genphasernov16


 

28 

7.3.  Area Council pharmaceutical service provision  
 

Figure 7 illustrates that at an Area Council level there are between 3,699 and 8,053 people per 

pharmacy.  On the whole this is lower than the average for England 4,647 people per pharmacy, 

representing slightly better or similar coverage to the national position.  Whilst Penistone Area 

Council has the highest population per pharmacy (8,053) the area has the largest proportion of 

dispensing GP practices in the borough, for example Thurgoland does not have a pharmacy as 

there is a dispensing GP practice as illustrated in figure 8.  

 

Figure 7. Community Pharmacy by Area Council 

 

 

Number of 
pharmacies 

Population Population 
per 

pharmacy 

Pharmacies 
per 100,000 
population 

Central 15 55,481 3,699 27 

South Barnsley 11 46,423 4,220 24 

North Barnsley 9 43,231 4,803 21 

Dearne 5 22,596 4,519 22 

North East 9 47,429 5,270 19 

Penistone 3 24,159 8,053 12 

Source: PHE Shapeatlas & ONS mid-2015 population estimates  

 

Five local authority areas border Barnsley - Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, Kirklees and 

Wakefield.  These areas have pharmacies that are accessible to the residents who live near the 

borders of the borough as illustrated in Figure 1. 

 

 

Page 192



 

29 

Figure 8.  Pharmacies (including distance selling , dispensing general practices and appliance contractor in Barnsley with South Yorkshire 
pharmacies and dispensing general practices with Barnsley population distribution 

 

 

P
age 193



 

30 

8.  Access 
 

An important part of the PNA is to assess how accessible pharmacies are to residents.  This is 

measured by geographical access and opening times 

8.1.  Geographical access 
 

Geographical access is measured by the proportion of residents who are within a 1.6km (1mile) 

walk of a pharmacy and by the proportion of residents who are within a 10 minute drive of a 

pharmacy.  

The method of calculating these measures has changed since the last PNA was published in 2015. 

The method now uses mapping software to assess access.  This may give a better indication of 

access, particularly walking access than using a fixed radius around a pharmacy. This is 

demonstrated below. Figure 9 shows a 1.6km circle around Barugh Green Pharmacy in light purple 

and a 1.6km walking distance in pale yellow.  

Figure 9.  Example of geographical access analysis – Barugh Green Pharmacy  

 

 

8.1.1.  Results 
 

Using the SHAPE access tool the following results have been calculated.  To prepare these results 

consideration was also given the pharmacies outside of Barnsley that could be reached within a 

1.6km walk.  22 such pharmacies were identified within 1.6km of the Barnsley boundary.  Of these 

onlyone,McGill’sinBrampton,Rotherhamwascloseenoughtoimproveaccess. The Rowlands 

pharmacy in Wombwell, whilst further away for many residents, was still within a 1.6km walk and 

therefore the overall access picture was not changed. 

Page 194



 

31 

As a result of the analysis shows that the proportion of Barnsley residents within a 1.6km (1 mile) 

walk of a pharmacy is 84.1% and 99.3% are within a 10 minute drive of a pharmacy. 

 

8.1.2.  Discussion 
 

The walking access measure shows a reduction from 95.2% in the last PNA.  This is due to the 

change in methods of analysis rather than a change in the population or pharmacy provision. This 

new method of analysing access does still have some methodological weaknesses which can bias 

the results. We will work with the developers to continue to improve this analysis as we believe that 

over time this will give a more accurate measure of access.  

The driving access measure shows a similar picture to the previous PNA with access within a 10 

minute drive to over 99% of residents.  Analysis shows that everyone in Barnsley is within a 15 

minute drive of a pharmacy.  

 

8.2.  Opening times 
 

ThemajorityofBarnsley’scommunitypharmaciesareopenMondaytoFriday between 9.00am 

and 6.00pm.  Two pharmacies are open until 11.00pm (one opens at 7.00am and the other at 

8.00am) and one pharmacy is open from 7.45am to 11.15pm.  Theremainingpharmacies’opening

times vary, opening between 8.00am and 9.00am and closing between 5.30pm and 10.30pm.  One 

pharmacy opens at 6:30am Tuesday to Saturday, closing at 22:30 Tuesday to Friday and 22:00 on 

a Saturday.  

22 pharmacies open on a Saturday, 10 of which close by 1.00pm.  Three pharmacies are open 

until 10.00pm and one closes at 11.15pm.  The remaining pharmacies that open on a Saturday 

have varying opening times, opening between 6:30am and 9.00am and closing between 4.00pm 

and 8.00pm.  

Seven pharmacies open on a Sunday.  Two of these open at 9.00am with the remainder opening 

at 10.00am.  Closing times vary between 4.00pm (four pharmacies) and 10.00pm (one pharmacy). 

Community pharmacy opening times and contact details can be accessed via the NHS Choices 

website http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10 

The opening hours for dispensing GP practices and branch dispensing GP practices were 

identified using the NHS Choices website http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/ 

It is assumed that the dispensaries at the dispensing GP surgeries are open at the same hours as 

the rest of the practice. 

  

Page 195

http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10
http://www.nhs.uk/Service-Search/


 

32 

 

8.2.1.  Extended opening hours 
 

There are currently five ‘100 hour’ pharmacies in Barnsley. These are included in the

pharmaceutical list under regulation 13(1)(b) of the National Health Service (Pharmaceutical 

Services) Regulations 2005; premises which the applicant is contracted to open for at least 100  

hours per week for the provision of pharmaceutical services.  The 100 hour pharmacies are:  

 

 Stone Pharmacy, Darfield 

 Asda Pharmacy, Barnsley 

 Cohens Chemist, Hoyland 

 Gatehouse Pharmacy, Mapplewell Pharmacy 

 Tesco Instore Pharmacy, Barnsley 

 

The ‘100hour’pharmaciesaregeographically locatedacross theboroughgivinggoodaccessto

pharmaceutical services on Saturdays, Sundays and late night opening. 

 

Due to changes in shopping habits a number of pharmacies now open on many Bank Holidays, 

although they are not contractually obliged to do so.  NHS England works with community 

pharmacies to ensure an adequate rota service is available for Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New 

Year’sDayandEasterSundayasthesearedayswherepharmaciesarestill traditionally closed.  

NHS England is responsible for working with community pharmacies to ensure an adequate rota.  

  

Page 196



 

33 

9. Pharmaceutical services 
 

Community pharmacies provide three tiers of pharmaceutical services:  

 

 Essential services – services all pharmacies are required to provide.  

 Advanced services – services to support patients with safe use of medicines.  

 Enhanced services – services that can be commissioned by NHS England.  

 Locally commissioned services – services that are mainly commissioned by the CCG and local 

authority. 

 

Appendix 1 outlines the services community pharmacies provide and Appendix 3 outlines the 

commissioned community pharmacy services. 

 

 

9.1. Community pharmacy essential services 
 

All community pharmacies are required to provide all the essential services.  These services are: 

 

 Dispensing medicines and actions associated with dispensing. 

 Dispensing appliances. 

 Repeat dispensing. 

 Disposal of unwanted medicines. 

 Public health campaigns (see 8.2). 

 Signposting. 

 Support for self-care. 

 Clinical governance. 

 

NHS England is responsible for ensuring that all pharmacies deliver all of the essential services as 

specified. Each pharmacy has to demonstrate compliance with the community pharmacy 

contractual framework by providing sufficient evidence for delivery of every service.  Any pharmacy 

unable to provide the evidence will be asked to provide an action plan, outlining with timescales 

how it will then achieve compliance.  These self-assessments are supported by contract monitoring 

visits.  

 

All Barnsley pharmacies have been assessed as compliant with the contract to date. NHS England 

will continue the work previously undertaken by NHS Barnsley to work with pharmacies and their 

representative organisation to provide this assurance of service delivery. 

  

Page 197



 

34 

9.2. Public health campaigns 
 

As part of the essential services, at the request of NHS England, NHS pharmacists are required to 

participate in up to six campaigns each year to promote public health messages to their users.8  

Participation in these campaigns is part of the community pharmacy essential services. 

 

Pharmacies can download a variety of marketing campaigns and resources and materials from 

PublicHealthEngland’scampaignsresourcecentre 

https://campaignresources.phe.gov.uk/resources/  

 

Campaigns include One You, Active 10, Change 4 Life, Be Clear on Cancer, Act F.A.S.T, Sepsis, 

Smokefree, Stoptober; Stay well this winter, Breast Cancer, NHS 111, Anti-microbial Resistance 

and NHS Health Checks. 

 

Pharmacies can use the materials to promote public health messages to members of the public 

and share with colleagues involved in workplace health and wellbeing. 

 

 

9.3. Community pharmacy advanced services 
 

In addition to essential services the community pharmacy contractual framework allows for 

advanced services, which currently include Medicines Use Reviews (MUR), Appliance Use 

Reviews (AUR), New Medicines Service (NMS) and the Stoma Customisation Service (SCS), Flu 

vaccinations (in certain circumstances) and NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advance Service 

(NUMSAS)   . Each of the advanced services is intended to support and empower patients to 

optimise their safe and effective use of medicines or appliances and to reduce waste.  

 

 

9.4. Community pharmacy enhanced services 
 

Pharmaceutical service providers are an important part of primary care. As well as dispensing 

prescriptions they provide information about medicines, self-care, general health care, and other 

sources of advice. They complement services provided by general practice.  

 

The third tier of Pharmaceutical Service that can be provided from pharmacies are the Enhanced 

Services. These are services that can be commissioned from pharmacies by NHS England. 

 

Every pharmacy has a responsibility to direct patients to an alternative pharmacy that can provide 

the service they need.  

 

These services can only be referred to as Enhanced Services if they are commissioned by NHS 

England. If local services are commissioned by the CCG or local authority they are referred to as 

locally commissioned services (see 9.4).  

 

 

                                                           
8 The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 No.349 Schedule 4 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/pdfs/uksi_20130349_en.pdf (Accessed 13th October 2017 ) 

Page 198

https://campaignresources.phe.gov.uk/resources/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/pdfs/uksi_20130349_en.pdf


 

35 

9.5. Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group locally commissioned 
services 
 

For Barnsley, the following services are locally commissioned by the Clinical Commissioning 

Group (see Appendix 2).  Further information on locally commissioned services is available on the 

Barnsley LPC website at http://psnc.org.uk/barnsley-lpc/lpcs-work/  

 

9.5.1. Advice to care homes service  
 

Community pharmacies may be commissioned to provide advice and support to the residents and 

staff of care homes in Barnsley to improve safety and patient care. This service extends beyond 

the Dispensing Essential service and aims to ensure: 

 

 medicines are ordered within a safe, timely process, which ensures the maintenance of 

adequate stock of medicines whilst avoiding waste 

 medication and appliances are used in a clinically appropriate, cost effective manner 

 safe systems exist in relation to the storage, administration and disposal of medication, 

whether it is prescribed or purchased 

 proper record keeping is used to support the delivery and continuity of care. 

 

Care Homes in Barnsley, registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) are contacted about 

receiving the service. The service may also be available to care homes whose residents are 

predominantly registered with a GP in the Barnsley area. Community pharmacies providing the 

service are expected to visit the care homes they serve, actively maintaining a relationship. The 

pharmacy does not however need to be situated geographically within Barnsley. 

 

The service is commissioned by Barnsley CCG. 

 

 

9.5.2. Specialist drug stockist service (on demand availability of 

specialist drugs service) 
 

The Specialist Drug Stockist service aims to create a network of community pharmacies who will 

stock a locally agreed range of specialist drugs, the demand for which may be urgent and/or 

unpredictable, for example palliative care drugs. The service aims to ensure that users of the 

service have prompt access to these specialist drugs when they are required. The service can be 

provided by any pharmacy, though due to the nature of the service community pharmacies are 

invited to provide the service based upon their opening hours and location to ensure these 

specialistdrugscanbeeasilyaccessedwhenneeded.Barnsley’sPalliativeCare Team is the most 

frequent user of the service which is accessed as and when required by palliative care staff. 

 

The service is commissioned by Barnsley CCG. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 199

http://psnc.org.uk/barnsley-lpc/lpcs-work/


 

36 

9.5.3. Medication management system service (medicines assessment 

and compliance support service) 
 

The medication management system service aims to implement a controlled safe environment 

where home carers are able to carry out the controlled administration of medication that meets the 

specific needs of each service user. The service can be provided by pharmacists who hold a 

relevant Medicines Use Review (MUR) qualification and have undergone a Disclosure and Barring 

Service (DBS) check. Service users are referred to the nearest pharmacy which provides the 

service and an initial Medical Management Service Medication Review is undertaken, usually in 

theserviceuser’shome.FromthisinformationaMedicationPlandetailingthenatureandlevelof

support required for the service user is created. Service providers are expected to undertake 

reviews toensuretheserviceuser’sMedicationPlanremainscurrent. 

 

The service is commissioned by Barnsley CCG. 

 

 

9.5.4.  Pharmacy First (minor ailment scheme) 
 

The Pharmacy First pilot scheme aims to direct Barnsley patients to local pharmacies for the initial 

treatment of minor conditions such as pain, dermatitis, heartburn, nasal congestion, constipation, 

headache and cough. Pharmacy staff will use their existing knowledge and procedures to 

undertake the patient consultations and will advise patients to obtain appropriate treatment should 

their symptoms indicate a more serious condition or supply an ‘over the counter’ pack of

medication. 

The service is open to all patients registered with a Barnsley GP. As with NHS prescriptions, 

medicines supplied to patients who don't normally pay for their prescriptions will be free. Patients 

who pay for their prescriptions may be encouraged to purchase their medication, as the cost of the 

medication should be much less than the prescription charge. However, all patients may still 

benefit from the additional printed advice material about their symptoms. Further information is 

available on the Barnsley CCG website http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/patient-help/pharmacy-

first.htm  

 

9.5.5.  Not dispensed scheme 
 

The Barnsley CCG “Not dispensed” pilot scheme is to help address the substantial waste 

medicines problem.  The scheme allows the Pharmacist to intervene, identify and thus prevent the 

dispensing of those items included on repeat prescriptions, which the patient does not require at 

the time of dispensing.  

 

Pharmacists or appropriately qualified staff should check with all patients presenting at their 

pharmacy with a repeat prescription. The patient will be asked if all the items prescribed need to be 

dispensed or supplied that month.   For any items which the patient indicates they do not take 

regularly, the following questions may be asked;  

 

1. Have they stock at home of the item?  

2. Do they require all the items ordered on the prescription?  

 

Page 200

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/patient-help/pharmacy-first.htm
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/patient-help/pharmacy-first.htm


 

37 

For any items that are not required by the patient, the prescription item will be endorsed with a 

clear ‘notdispensed’. 

 

The overall aim of the service is to reduce medicinal waste and unnecessary ordering of repeat 

items.   Further information is available on the Barnsley LPC website at http://psnc.org.uk/barnsley-

lpc/bccg-payment-not-to-dispense/  

 

9.5.6.  Primary care eye assessment referral scheme (PEARS) 
 

The Primary care eye assessment referral scheme (PEARS) is a free eye care service pilot for 

Barnsley people with minor eye conditions. Instead of waiting for a GP appointment or attending 

A&E, people can now make an appointment with their local participating optician and be seen 

within one or two working days.   

 

The optician will assess and treat the condition, or make a referral where appropriate.  Patients will 

be referred to a participating community pharmacy via an optometrist providing care under the 

PEARS pathway. The pharmacist will supply the appropriate medicine for a minor eye condition 

diagnosed by an optometrist.  Further information is available on the Barnsley CCG website 

http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/patient-help/pears.htm  

 

 

  

Page 201

http://psnc.org.uk/barnsley-lpc/bccg-payment-not-to-dispense/
http://psnc.org.uk/barnsley-lpc/bccg-payment-not-to-dispense/
http://www.barnsleyccg.nhs.uk/patient-help/pears.htm


 

38 

 

10.  The changing face of pharmacy 
 

It is important to note the ways in which pharmacy and its role within the community has changed 

since the last PNA was produced and how this may develop over the next three years.  

 

The Community Pharmacy Forward View (2016)9 sets out the sector’s ambitions to radically 

enhance and expand the personalised care, support and wellbeing services that community 

pharmacies provide. The document outlines how pharmacy teams could be fully integrated with 

other local health and care services in order to improve quality and access for patients, increase 

NHS efficiency and produce better health outcomes for all. In particular it focuses on the following 

three key roles for the community pharmacy of the future: 

 

As the facilitator of personalised care for people with long-term conditions 

 

Community pharmacists and their teams will support people with long-term conditions and their 

carers by providing a one-stop hub for advice, treatment and co-ordination of care related to 

medicines.  This will include support following diagnosis, monitoring and adjusting treatment 

according to outcomes defined in an individual’s care and support plan, and ensuring that all

medicine’s related aspects of care are managed safely and efficiently when someone’s

circumstances change, for example when admitted to or leaving hospital. 

 

To achieve this vision, community pharmacists and their team will work in partnership with their 

colleagues across the wider health and care system.  In some areas, people will be able to register 

with a community pharmacy to coordinate their care and support them with management of their 

long-term condition, where this is agreed as appropriate between the individual, their GP and 

pharmacist. 

 

As the trusted, convenient first port of call for episodic healthcare advice and treatment 

 

Thinking‘pharmacyfirst’fornon-emergency episodic care will become the public norm.  To 

achieve this vision, system that enable seamless triage to and referral from community pharmacy 

will be include in all local urgent care pathways and in the NHS 111 service.  Pharmacies will 

provide access to diagnostics and be able to make appointments with other health professionals.  

Pharmacists will be able to prescribe as well as supply products. 

 

As the neighbourhood health and wellbeing hub 

 

Pharmacies will operate as neighbourhood health and wellbeing centres, becoming the ‘go-to’

destination for support, advice and resources on staying well and living independently. As a trusted 

local community resource, all pharmacies will be connected with other organisations that support 

health, wellbeing and independence – ranging across local community groups, charities, places of 

worship, leisure and library facilities, social care, education, employment, housing and welfare 

services – and will be able to refer and sign-post people to them. Community pharmacists and their 

teams will work closely with employers to support workplace health initiatives, and will help people 

make best use of data, technology and devices they use to monitor and manage their own physical 

and mental health and wellbeing. 

                                                           
9
 http://psnc.org.uk/our-news/community-pharmacy-shares-its-forward-view-a-vision-for-the-future/ (Accessed 17

th
 

October 2017) 

Page 202

http://psnc.org.uk/our-news/community-pharmacy-shares-its-forward-view-a-vision-for-the-future/


 

39 

11.  Conclusions 
 

The aim of a pharmaceutical needs assessment is the requirement to assess the extent to which 

the demography of the local population and its health needs are met by the current provision of 

pharmaceutical services 

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA no gaps have been identified 

in the: 

 

 provision of essential services 

 provision of essential services outside normal working hours 

 provision of advanced or enhanced services 

 need for essential, advanced or enhanced services in specified future circumstances have been 

or would provide improved access and choice. 

 

In summary, our analysis of this information shows that: 

 

 Community pharmacies have an important role to play in improving the health of the Barnsley 

population.  They can contribute to the identified health needs of the population in a number of 

ways, including motivational interviewing, providing information and brief advice, providing on-

going support for behaviour change and signposting to other services 

 

 Barnsley has good coverage across the borough for pharmaceutical services in terms of choice, 

access and opening hours, with no gaps in current provision 

 

 Barnsley and each of the six Area Councils have slightly better or similar coverage of 

community pharmacies or dispensing GP practices than the England and Yorkshire and the 

Humber averages 

 

 the majority of Barnsley residents live within a one mile (1.6km) radius or a ten minute drive of a 

pharmacy 

 

 an increase in population is likely to generate increased demand for pharmaceutical services, 

but on a local level changes in population size may not necessarily be directly proportionate to 

changes in the number of pharmaceutical services providers. The Health and Wellbeing Board 

will monitor the development of major housing sites and produce supplementary statements to 

the PNA if deemed necessary, in accordance with regulations. 

 

  

Page 203



 

40 

Appendix 1.  What services do pharmacists offer?10 
 

Pharmacists dispense prescriptions and other medicines, offer testing and screening for common 

conditions, and can advise on minor ailments. Not all pharmacies supply the same services and 

depend on NHS priorities in that area.  

 

The services that may be available from your local pharmacy are: 

 

Essential services – which are set out in schedule 4 of the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 (the 2013 Regulations). All pharmacy contractors must 

provide the full range of essential services, these include: 

 

 Dispensing medicines and actions associated with dispensing (e.g. keeping records) 

 Dispensing appliances 

 Repeat dispensing 

 Disposal of unwanted medicines 

 Public health – (promotion of healthy lifestyles) 

 Signposting 

 Support for self-care. 

 

Advanced services – Any contractor may choose to provide advanced services. There are 

requirements which need to be met in relation to premises, training or notification to the NHS 

England Area team, these include: 

 

 Medicines Use Review 

 New Medicines Service 

 Appliance Use Reviews 

 Stoma Appliance Customisation Service. 

 

Any contractor may choose to provide advanced services. There are requirements which need to 

be met in relation to premises, training or notification to the NHS England Area team. 

 

Enhanced services - Only those contractors directly commissioned by NHS England can provide 

these services. The National Health Service Act 2006, The Pharmaceutical Services (advanced 

and enhanced services) (England) Directions 2013, Part 4 14.-(1) outlines the enhanced services 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-services-advanced-and-enhanced-

services-england-directions-2013  

 

  

                                                           
10 http://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/AboutNHSservices/pharmacists/Pages/pharmacistsandchemists.aspx (Accessed 4th October 2017) 

Page 204

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-services-advanced-and-enhanced-services-england-directions-2013
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-services-advanced-and-enhanced-services-england-directions-2013
http://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/AboutNHSservices/pharmacists/Pages/pharmacistsandchemists.aspx


 

41 

Appendix 2.  Commissioned services  
 

 

  

Page 205



 

42 

Appendix 3.  Results from the statutory 60 day consultation 20th  October to 19th  
December 2017 

 

 

This summary outlines the response from the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) Steering 

Group to the feedback obtained in the consultation on the PNA for Barnsley. 

The PNA consultation ran from the 20th October until 19th December 2017, and was made known 

to key stakeholder organisations and members of the public: 

 Barnsley Community Pharmacies 

 Dispensing GPs 

 Barnsley Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Steering Group 

 BarnsleyCouncil’sSeniorStaffDevelopmentGroup 

 Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) 

 BCCG’sPatient Safety and Quality Committee 

 Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

 Local Healthwatch 

 Local Pharmaceutical Committee  

 Local Medical Committee  

 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

 Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board 

 Doncaster Health and Wellbeing Board 

 Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Board 

 Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 

 Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Board 

 Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Board 

and through a variety of communication channel and targeted correspondence: 

 BarnsleyCouncil’sinternalcommunicationschannels(intranet,weekly staff email) 

 BarnsleyCouncil’swebsite(www.barnsley.gov.uk/pna) 

 Barnsley Council’s social media accounts (twitter @barnsleycouncil and facebook

www.facebook.com/barnsleycouncil) 

 Barnsley Healthwatch contacts / newsletters 

 Local media channels via press release. 

TofacilitatetheconsultationthedraftPNAreportwasuploadedontoBarnsleyCouncil’swebsite.

To allow comment and feedback a short survey form was developed to complete.  This method of 

consultation was undertaken to reduce amount of paper sent out and limit the environmental 

impact.  

There were 10 respondents to the consultation questionnaire.  The majority of the respondents 

were female and responding to the survey as a member of the public. 

The consultation was undertaken in a manner which made it possible for many of those who have 

a stake in pharmaceutical services in Barnsley to respond, should they wish to do so. Of note, the 

consultation was sent to neighbouring Health and Wellbeing Boards in accordance with the 

national PNA guidance. 

Page 206

http://www.barnsley.gov.uk/pna
http://www.facebook.com/barnsleycouncil


 

43 

A summary of the feedback obtained through the consultation is described in the figure 16 below. 

The table sets out the response from the PNA Steering Group where appropriate. It is noted that 

the majority of responders were supportive of the messages reported in the draft PNA.  

Page 207



 

44 

Summary of feedback to the consultation on the draft Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for Barnsley and responses to this feedback 

including revisions to the final PNA report. 

 

Consultation Question: Q2. Has the purpose of the PNA been clearly explained? 
 

Summary of Feedback Response from the PNA Steering Group on behalf of Barnsley 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

All 10 respondents felt that the purpose of the PNA had been clearly 
explained. 
 
 

 It is noted that all the respondents felt the purpose of the PNA 
was clearly explained. 

 

Consultation Question: Q3. Are you aware of any current pharmacy services that are not mentioned in the draft PNA? 
 

Summary of Feedback Response from the PNA Steering Group on behalf of Barnsley 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

9 respondents felt they were not aware of any current pharmacy 
services that are not mentioned in the draft PNA. 
 
1 respondent said yes and noted that South West Yorkshire 
Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) have a pharmacy service for 
staff and patients. 
 

 It is noted that the majority of respondents were not aware of 
any current pharmacy services that are not mentioned in the 
draft PNA. 

Consultation Question: Q4. Do you feel the pharmaceutical needs of the population have been accurately reflected in the PNA? 
 

Summary of Feedback Response from the PNA Steering Group on behalf of Barnsley 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

All 10 respondents felt that the pharmaceutical needs of the 
population had been accurately reflected in the PNA. 

 It is noted that all the respondents felt that the pharmaceutical 
needs of the population have been accurately reflected in the 
PNA. 

  

P
age 208



 

45 

Consultation Question: 5. Is the draft PNA easy to read and understand? 
 

Summary of Feedback Response from the PNA Steering Group on behalf of Barnsley 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

9 out of the 10 respondents felt that the draft PNA is easy to read and 
understand. 
 
1 respondent said no.  They felt that there needs to be an easy read / 
summarised version of the assessment.  As people who may use 
pharmaceutical services will be unable / unlikely to read the full 
version of the PNA. 
 

 It is noted that the majority of respondents felt that the draft 
PNA is easy to read and understand.  

 
The PNA Steering Group acknowledge this request and will consider 
producing an easy read version of the PNA to support the consultation 
process when the PNA is next updated. 

Consultation Question: Q6  Do you agree with our assessment of the ways pharmacies could make a greater contribution to 
improving health of people in Barnsley 

Summary of Feedback Response from the PNA Steering Group on behalf of Barnsley 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

All 10 respondents agreed with our assessment of the ways 
pharmacies could make a greater contribution to improving health of 
people in Barnsley. 
 
 

 It is noted that all the respondents agreed with the 
assessment of the ways pharmacies could make a greater 
contribution to improving health of people in Barnsley. 

 

Consultation Question: Q7. Is there anything else that you feel should be included in the PNA? 
 

Summary of Feedback Response from the PNA Steering Group on behalf of Barnsley 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

Respondents were invited to add any further comments on anything 
else that they felt should be included in the PNA.  
 
Innovation to use pharmaceutical services more effectively  
 
Pharmacies were felt to have a vital role to play in the provision of 
health services, including information and advice, to the general 
public. Two respondents commented on:- 
 

 Improved signposting of the services offered to the public by 
individual pharmacies. 

 

 

 It is noted that the majority of respondents did not have any 
further comments on anything else they felt should be 
included in the PNA. 

 
 
 
 
The Barnsley Local Pharmaceutical Committee website 
http://psnc.org.uk/barnsley-lpc/ provides details of the services offered 
by individual pharmacies. 
 

P
age 209

http://psnc.org.uk/barnsley-lpc/


 

46 

Access to Specialist Drug Stockist service 
 

 Stock availability of specialist palliative care drugs in community 
pharmacies 

 

 
 
The PNA Steering Group acknowledges this comment and will 
feedback this back to Barnsley CCG who commissions this service. 
 

 

 

P
age 210



 

47 

Appendix 4| Equality Impact Assessment 

1. Policy / Strategy / Service to be assessed: Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

2. Lead Officer: Rebecca Clarke  

3. Equality Impact Assessment Person / Team Faith Ridgwick  

4. Date of Assessment 19th December 2017 

5. The main purpose and outcomes of policy / 
strategy / service to be assessed 

Health and Wellbeing Boards assumed statutory responsibility for publishing and keeping up to 
date a pharmaceutical needs assessment (PNA) from 1 April 2013. The PNA provides a 
comprehensive, ongoing assessment of the local need for pharmaceutical services.  
 
The National Health Service Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services Regulations 
2013 require every HWB to publish its first PNA by 1 April 2015. The PNA informs NHS England 
of the need for pharmaceutical services across Barnsley. This includes decisions on applications 
for new pharmacy and dispensing appliance contractor premises. 

6. Groups who the piece of work should benefit 
or apply to, for example: 

- Service users 
- Staff 
- Other external or external 

stakeholder 
- (will the piece of work be delivered in 

partnership with another agency) 

Community Pharmacies 
Dispensing GP Practices 
Dispensing Appliance Contractor 
Barnsley CCG 
Barnsley Local Pharmaceutical Committee 
Barnsley Local Medical Committee 
Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 
Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board 
Neighbouring Health and Wellbeing Boards 
Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
NHS England 
Members of the public 
Healthwatch 

7. Any associated strategies, guidelines, 
frameworks 

Barnsley Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2015-2018 
National Health Service, England. The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local 
Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 
Department of Health. Pharmaceutical needs assessments. Information Pack for local authority 
Health and Wellbeing Boards. 

 

 

P
age 211



 

48 

Gathering Information 

1. Who should be served by the policy / strategy / piece of work? 

Community pharmacy contractors, dispensing GP practices, dispensing appliance contractors, NHS England, members of the public. 

2. What relevant information do you know about the people who this piece of work is aimed at? 

Groups Information (research / data) 

Men Information used to inform the production of this discount has been sourced from: 

 Barnsley JSNA 

 TheDirectorofPublicHealth’sAnnualReport 

 Public Health Barnsley 

 Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Barnsley Council Planning Department 

 NHS England 

 Pharmaceutical Service Providers 

 The Census 

 Local Pharmaceutical Committee 

 Local Medical Committee 

 Healthwatch 

 Members of the public 

Women 

Disabled people 

BME people 

LGB people 

Trans people 

Young People 

Older people 

Faith groups 

Pregnancy / maternity 

Other: 

3. Do you have monitoring data or consultation findings specific to your areas of work?  If yes list the sources of evidence 

 Statutory 60 day public consultation to key stakeholders (Appendix 2). 

4. What consultation activity has taken place / will be taking place on this piece of work and the inequality impact assessment? 

 Statutory 60 day consultation has been carried out between the 20th October and the 19th December 2017.  

 

Assessing Impact 

1. What does your monitoring data of your service users tell you? 
Are any groups under or over presented compared to what you would expect to see from the baseline data. What are the potential 
access issues or barriers for people in each equality groups? 

 Groups 

 Age  
Pharmaceutical provision in Barnsley is very similar to the England average. Geographical 
access at Area Council level is slightly better tor similar to the average for England.  Likewise the 
pharmacies with extended opening hours are located across the borough giving good access to 
pharmaceutical services on Saturdays, Sundays and late night opening.  The majority of 

 Disability 

 Gender reassignment 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

 Pregnancy and maternity  

P
age 212



 

49 

 Race Barnsley residents live within a 1 mile radius or ten minute drive of a pharmacy.   
 
The majority of premises where pharmaceutical services are available allow for wheelchair 
access and have suitable facilities in place to provide services in private designated areas.  The 
majority of providers of pharmaceutical services offer free home delivery service for dispensed 
medicine.Nearlyhalfofpharmaciesarewillingtoundertakeconsultationinthepatient’shomeor
other suitable site. 

 Religion / belief 

 Sex 

 Sexual orientation 

 

2. Based on the evidence gathered have you identified any potential differential impact for any of the equality groups? 

 Groups Positive Negative 

 Age The PNA identifies good provision of services 
for all ages.   
 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA.   
Older people may have a higher prevalence of illness and 
take regular medicines. Pharmacy staff can support people 
to live independently by supporting optimisation of use of 
medicines, support with ordering, re-ordering medicines, 
home delivery and appropriate provision of multi-
compartment compliance aids and other interventions such 
as reminder charts to help people to take their medicines. 

 Disability The majority of community pharmacies allows 
for wheelchair access and provides home 
delivery services.  
 

No specific negative impacts identified in from this PNA.  
When patients are managing their own medication but 
need some support, pharmacists must comply with the 
Equality Act 2010. Where the patient is assessed as having 
a long term physical or mental impairment that affects their 
ability to carry out every day activities, such as managing 
their medication, the pharmacy contract includes funding 
for reasonable adjustments to the packaging or instructions 
that will support them in self-care. The first step should be 
a review to ensure that the number of medications and 
doses are reduced to a minimum. If further support is 
needed, then compliance aids might include multi-
compartment compliance aids, large print labels, easy to 
open containers, medication reminder alarms/charts, eye 
dropper or inhaler aids. 
 

 Gender reassignment No specific negative impacts identified from 
this PNA. 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA. 
 

P
age 213



 

50 

 

 Marriage and civil partnership No specific negative impacts identified from 
this PNA. 
 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA. 
 

 Pregnancy and maternity No specific negative impacts identified from 
this PNA. 
 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA. 
Community pharmacies can provide an important source of 
advice for minor ailments for conditions which commonly 
occur in pregnancy.  For women planning pregnancy, 
access to a community pharmacy for advice can also be 
important. 
 

 Race No specific negative impacts identified from 
this PNA. 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA. 

 Religion / belief No specific negative impacts identified from 
this PNA. 
 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA. 
 

 Sex No specific impact for either men or women 
has been identified from this PNA 
 
 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA. 
 
Life expectancy and healthy life expectancy for men is 
lower than that for women in Barnsley and nationally 

 Sexual orientation No specific impact has been identified from this 
PNA. 
 

No specific negative impacts identified from this PNA. 
 

 

Promoting Equality 

1. What has been included to promote equality in this piece of work? 
Thisincludesanymeasuresyou’veputinplaceto: 

 Improve the accessibility of your service 

 Improving the quality outcomes for people from different groups 

 Make your service/policy/strategy more inclusive 

 Ensure staff are trained appropriately 
Promote community cohesion or good relationships between different groups of people 

Age The PNA has taken into account accessibility of pharmaceutical services in Barnsley as outlined 
in the statutory guidance https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-
assessments-information-pack 

Disability 

Gender reassignment 

P
age 214

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-information-pack
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-information-pack


 

51 

Marriage and civil partnership In general the majority of providers of pharmaceutical services have made suitable adjustments 
to ensure everyone has equal access to pharmaceutical services. 
 
The Equality Act 2010, sets out a framework which requires providers of goods and services, not 
to discriminate against persons with a disability. It is expected that pharmacists are required to 
provide a service that is equal for everyone regardless of their ethnicity, sexual orientation and 
transgender identity.  Similarly it is also expected the pharmacy makes reasonable adjustments, 
if this is what is needed in order to allow the person to access the service. 
 

Pregnancy and maternity 

Race 

Religion / belief 

Sex 

Sexual orientation 

2. What further actions are required? 

None 

3. Have any changes been made to this piece of work as a result of doing the Equality Impact Assessment? 

No 

 

P
age 215



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 3rd October, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/2)
	3 Minutes from the Children and Young People's Trust Executive Group held on 28th September and 13th November, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/3)
	TEG Minutes 13 November 2017

	4 Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 14th September, and 27th November, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/4)
	Safer Barnsley 27th November 2017 Minutes

	5 Minutes from the Provider Forum held on 13th September and 13th December, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/5)
	Provider Forum 13th December, 2017 Minutes

	6 Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 15th August, and 21st November, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/6)
	SCP Minutes 21st November, 2017

	7 Minutes from the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation Partnership held on 8th September, 13th October, 10th November, and 8th December, 2017 (HWB.30.01.2018/7)
	STP minutes 13 October 2017
	STP minutes 10 November 2017
	STP minutes meeting 8 December 2017

	8 Public Questions  (including review) (HWB.30.01.2018/8)
	9 Barnsley Health and Care Together (HWB.30.01.2018/9)
	10 Integrated Carers Service (HWB.30.01.2018/10)
	Appendix 1 Carers Strategy
	Appendix 2 Carers Strategy draft action plan

	11 Falls Prevention, Early Help and Frailty (HWB.30.01.2018/11)
	12 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (HWB.30.01.2018/12)
	Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment final draft HWB


